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PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

ITEM 1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

 June 29, 2014  December 31, 2013

 (Unaudited)   
ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 116,326  $ 102,180
Short-term investments 95  95
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,832 and $2,449, respectively 168,541  144,742
Inventories, net 196,389  199,404
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,817  19,815
Deferred income tax asset 19,476  17,686

Total Current Assets 520,644  483,922
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 105,461  107,724
OTHER ASSETS:    

Goodwill 76,860  75,876
Intangibles, net 34,476  35,656
Deferred income tax asset 16,779  18,579
Other assets 4,866  4,893

TOTAL ASSETS $ 759,086  $ 726,650
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
CURRENT LIABILITIES:    

Accounts payable $ 81,886  $ 70,589
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 63,023  57,507
Accrued compensation and benefits 24,369  31,289
Income taxes payable 6,396  3,965
Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt 3,642  7,203

Total Current Liabilities 179,316  170,553
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTION 39,797  42,435
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 9,236  9,666
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,375  27,109
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:    

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding —  —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 29,000,000 shares authorized; 17,674,618 and 17,610,526 shares issued
and outstanding at June 29, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively 170  176
Additional paid-in capital 274,580  269,884
Retained earnings 227,868  202,930
Accumulated other comprehensive gain, net of taxes 4,744  3,897

Total Shareholders’ Equity 507,362  476,887
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 759,086  $ 726,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

 

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended

 
June 29, 

2014  
June 30, 

2013  
June 29, 

2014  
June 30, 

2013

Net revenues $ 207,884  $ 223,644  $ 419,070  $ 429,042
Cost of revenues 148,184  153,538  294,731  299,086

GROSS PROFIT 59,700  70,106  124,339  129,956
Selling, general and administrative expenses 42,609  47,596  87,498  93,168
Special charges, net 1,257  2,254  100  3,632

OPERATING INCOME 15,834  20,256  36,741  33,156
Other (income) expense:        

Interest expense, net 891  838  1,809  1,625
Other (income) expense, net (384)  626  (853)  1,239

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSE, NET 507  1,464  956  2,864
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 15,328  18,792  35,785  30,292

Provision for income taxes 3,402  6,124  9,227  9,715
NET INCOME $ 11,926  $ 12,668  $ 26,558  $ 20,577

Earnings per common share:        
Basic $ 0.68  $ 0.72  $ 1.51  $ 1.17
Diluted $ 0.67  $ 0.72  $ 1.50  $ 1.17

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:        
Basic 17,665  17,565  17,643  17,539
Diluted 17,767  17,607  17,754  17,569

Dividends paid per common share $ 0.0375  $ 0.0375  $ 0.0750  $ 0.0750

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
 

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended

 June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013

Net income $ 11,926  $ 12,668  $ 26,558  $ 20,577
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:       

Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,566  112  851  (8,531)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,566  112  851  (8,531)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 13,492  $ 12,780  $ 27,409  $ 12,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 Six Months Ended

 
June 29, 

2014  
June 30, 

2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Net income $ 26,558  $ 20,577
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation 8,185  8,035
Amortization 1,591  1,509
Compensation expense of share-based plans 4,020  2,156
Tax effect of share-based plan compensation (971)  (422)
(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (54)  (129)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:    
Trade accounts receivable, net (23,705)  (9,406)
Inventories, net 3,600  (4,059)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 143  (2,412)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 7,988  3,583

Net cash provided by operating activities 27,355  19,432
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Additions to property, plant and equipment (5,603)  (8,808)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 32  314
Net cash used in investing activities (5,571)  (8,494)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Proceeds from long-term debt 81,910  74,255
Payments of long-term debt (88,776)  (84,679)
Dividends paid (1,341)  (1,340)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 237  1,498
Tax effect of share-based compensation 971  422
Net cash used in financing activities (6,999)  (9,844)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (639)  (2,002)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,146  (907)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 102,180  61,738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 116,326  $ 60,831
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:    
Cash paid during the period presented for:    

Income taxes $ 6,375  $ 3,464
Interest $ 1,358  $ 1,054

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(1) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited, consolidated financial statements have been prepared according to the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, which include normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair
presentation of the consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of cash flows of CIRCOR International, Inc.
(“CIRCOR”, the “Company”, “us”, “we” or “our”) for the periods presented. We prepare our interim financial information using the same accounting
principles as we use for our annual audited financial statements. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in the annual audited financial
statements have been condensed or omitted in accordance with prescribed SEC rules. We believe that the disclosures made in our consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes are adequate to make the information presented not misleading.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013 is as reported in our audited financial statements as of that date. Our accounting policies are described
in the notes to our December 31, 2013 financial statements, which were included in our Annual Report filed on Form 10-K. We recommend that the financial
statements included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes included in our Annual Report filed
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

We operate and report financial information using a 52-week fiscal year ending December 31. The data periods contained within our Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q reflect the results of operations for the 13-week, 26-week and 39-week periods which generally end on the Sunday nearest the calendar quarter-
end date. Operating results for the three and six months ended June 29, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2014.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies used in preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 29, 2014
are consistent with those discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2013.

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued
Operations and Disclosure of Disposals of Components of an Entity, to modify the requirements for reporting a discontinued operation. The new guidance is
applicable for all disposals (or classification as held for sale) of components of an entity that occur within annual periods beginning on or after December 15,
2014. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals (or classifications as held for sale) that have not been reported in financial statements previously
issued or available for issuance. No discontinued operations were disclosed during the three and six months ended June 29, 2014 or June 30, 2013.

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new standard substantially converges revenue recognition under
U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. The new standard is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2017, and interim and annual periods thereafter. Early adoption is not permitted. This new accounting guidance had no impact on our disclosures for the
three and six months ended June 29, 2014 or June 30, 2013.

There were no additional new accounting pronouncements adopted during the six months ended June 29, 2014 that had a material impact on our financial
statements.
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(3) Share-Based Compensation

As of June 29, 2014, we have two share-based compensation plans. The 2014 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "2014 Plan") was adopted by our Board of
Directors on February 12, 2014 and approved by our shareholders at the Company's annual meeting held on April 30, 2014. As of April 30, 2014, no new
awards will be granted under the existing Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plan”). Any shares subject to outstanding
awards under the 1999 Plan that expire, are canceled or otherwise terminate, or are withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations are not available for award
grant purposes under the 2014 Plan. Both plans permit the grant of the following types of awards to our officers, other employees and non-employee
directors: incentive stock options; non-qualified stock options; deferred stock awards; restricted stock awards; unrestricted stock awards; performance share
awards; cash-based awards; stock appreciation rights ("SARs") and dividend equivalent rights. The 2014 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 1,700,000
shares of common stock (subject to adjustment for stock splits and similar events). Under the 2014 Plan, shares issued for awards other than stock options or
SARs count against the aggregate share limit as 1.9 shares for every share actually issued. New options granted under the 2014 Plan could have varying
vesting provisions and exercise periods. Options granted under the 1999 Plan vest in periods ranging from one year to five years and expire either seven years
or ten years after the grant date. Restricted stock units granted under the 1999 Plan generally vest from two years to six years. Vested restricted stock units
will be settled in shares of our common stock. As of June 29, 2014, there were 490,330 stock options (including the CEO and CFO stock option awards noted
below) and 205,000 restricted stock units outstanding. In addition, there were 1,697,002 shares available for grant under the 2014 Plan as of June 29, 2014.
As of June 29, 2014, there were 250 outstanding restricted stock units that contain rights to nonforfeitable dividend equivalents and are considered
participating securities that are included in our computation of basic and fully diluted earnings per share. There is no difference in the earnings per share
amounts between the two class method and the treasury stock method, which is why we continue to use the treasury stock method.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of each stock option grant at the date of grant excluding the 2013 and 2014 CEO
and CFO stock option awards noted below. Black-Scholes utilizes assumptions related to volatility, the risk-free interest rate, the dividend yield and employee
exercise behavior. Expected volatilities utilized in the model are based on the historic volatility of the Company’s stock price. The risk free interest rate is
derived from the U.S. Treasury Yield curve in effect at the time of the grant.

On April 9, 2013, the Company granted stock options to purchase 200,000 shares of common stock to its newly appointed President and Chief Executive
Officer at an exercise price of $41.17 per share ("2013 CEO Option Award"). On December 2, 2013, the Company granted stock options to purchase 100,000
shares of common stock to its newly appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at an exercise price of $79.33 per share ("2013 CFO
Option Award"). On March 5, 2014, the Company granted stock options to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock to its President and Chief Executive
Officer at an exercise price of $70.42 per share ("2014 CEO Option Award"). Both the 2013 CEO Option Award and the 2013 CFO Option Award were
considered inducement awards and were granted outside of the Company's 1999 Plan. All three of these option awards include a service period and a market
performance vesting condition. The stock options will vest if the following stock price targets are met based on the stock price closing at or above these
targets for 60 consecutive trading days:

2013 CEO Option Award  
Stock Price Target Cumulative Vested Portion of Stock Options (in Shares)

$50.00 50,000
$60.00 100,000
$70.00 150,000
$80.00 200,000

2013 CFO and 2014 CEO Option Award  
Stock Price Target Cumulative Vested Portion of Stock Options (in Shares)

$87.50 25,000
$100.00 50,000
$112.50 75,000
$125.00 100,000
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Vested options may be exercised 25% at the time of vesting, 50% one year from the date of vesting and 100% two years from the date of vesting. On August
8, 2013, the $50.00 Stock Price Target for the 2013 CEO Option Award was met. On January 6, 2014 and January 28, 2014, the $60.00 and $70.00 Price
targets for the 2013 CEO Option Award were met, respectively. Therefore, 150,000 options have vested of which 37,500 are currently exercisable under the
2013 CEO Option Award. These stock option awards are being expensed utilizing a graded method and are subject to forfeiture in the event of employment
termination (whether voluntary or involuntary) prior to vesting. All three of these option awards have a 10 year term but to the extent that the market
conditions above (Stock Price Targets) are not met, these options will not vest and will forfeit 5 years from grant date. The Company used a Monte Carlo
simulation option pricing model to value these option awards.

During the six months ended June 29, 2014, the Company granted 164,503 stock options (including the 2014 CEO Option Award noted above). This
compares with 200,000 stock options granted during the first six months of 2013. The average fair value of stock options granted during the first six months
of 2014 was $26.32 and was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 1.8%
Expected life (years) 3.7
Expected stock volatility 41.4%
Expected dividend yield 0.2%

We account for Restricted Stock Unit Awards (“RSU Awards”) by expensing the weighted average fair value to selling, general and administrative expenses
ratably over vesting periods generally ranging from two to six years. During the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013, we granted 33,532 and
130,845 RSU Awards with approximate fair values of $72.11 and $42.12 per RSU Award, respectively. During the first six months of 2014 and 2013, the
Company granted performance-based RSUs as part of the overall mix of RSU Awards. These performance-based RSUs include metrics for achieving Return
on Invested Capital and Adjusted Operating Margin with target payouts ranging from 0% to 200%. Of the 33,532 RSUs granted during the six months ended
June 29, 2014, 11,881 are performance-based RSU awards. This compares to 35,329 performance-based RSU awards granted during the six months ended
June 30, 2013.

The CIRCOR Management Stock Purchase Plan, which is a component of both the 2014 Plan and the 1999 Plan, provides that eligible employees may elect
to receive restricted stock units in lieu of all or a portion of their pre-tax annual incentive bonus and, in some cases, make after-tax contributions in exchange
for restricted stock units (“RSU MSPs”). In addition, non-employee directors may elect to receive restricted stock units in lieu of all or a portion of their
annual directors’ fees. Each RSU MSP represents a right to receive one share of our common stock after a three year vesting period. RSU MSPs are granted at
a discount of 33% from the fair market value of the shares of common stock on the date of grant. This discount is amortized as compensation expense, to
selling, general and administrative expenses, over a four year period. RSU MSPs totaling 32,752 and 28,463 with per unit discount amounts representing fair
values of $23.61 and $13.90 were granted under the CIRCOR Management Stock Purchase Plan during the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30,
2013, respectively.

Compensation expense related to our share-based plans for the six month periods ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $4.0 million and $2.3 million,
respectively, and was recorded as selling, general and administrative expense. As of June 29, 2014, there was $14.3 million of total unrecognized
compensation costs related to our outstanding share-based compensation arrangements. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period
of 2.2 years.

The weighted average contractual term for stock options outstanding and options exercisable as of June 29, 2014 was 8.7 years and 7.8 years, respectively.
The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the six months ended June 29, 2014 was $0.6 million and the aggregate intrinsic value of stock
options outstanding and options exercisable as of June 29, 2014 was $9.4 million and $2.5 million, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of RSU Awards settled during the six months ended June 29, 2014 was $3.4 million and the aggregate intrinsic value of RSU
Awards outstanding and RSU Awards vested and deferred as of June 29, 2014 was $7.3 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively.

The aggregate intrinsic value of RSU MSPs settled during the six months ended June 29, 2014 was $1.1 million and the aggregate intrinsic value of RSU
MSPs outstanding and RSU MSPs vested and deferred as of June 29, 2014 was $2.9 million and none, respectively.
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The Company also grants Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards to its international participants. These Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards typically cliff-vest in three
years and are settled in cash based on the company's closing stock price at the time of vesting. As of June 29, 2014, there were 38,418 Cash Settled Stock
Unit Awards outstanding compared to 40,568 Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards as of June 30, 2013. During the six months ended June 29, 2014, the aggregate
cash used to settle Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards was $0.6 million. As of June 29, 2014, the company had $1.2 million of accrued expenses in current
liabilities associated with these Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards compared with $0.8 million as of June 30, 2013. Cash Settled Stock Unit Awards related
compensation costs for the six month periods ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $0.3 million and $0.5 million, respectively, and was recorded as
selling, general, and administrative expense.

(4) Inventories
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):

 June 29, 2014  December 31, 2013

Raw materials $ 67,322  $ 59,255
Work in process 94,001  95,236
Finished goods 35,066  44,913

 $ 196,389  $ 199,404

(5) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The following table shows goodwill by segment as of June 29, 2014 (in thousands): 

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  
Consolidated

Total

Goodwill as of December 31, 2013 $ 52,930  $ 22,946  $ 75,876
Currency translation adjustments 999  (15)  984
Goodwill as of June 29, 2014 $ 53,929  $ 22,931  $ 76,860

The table below presents gross intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization as of June 29, 2014 (in thousands):

 
Gross

Carrying
Amount  

Accumulated
Amortization

Patents $ 6,066  $ (5,703)
Non-amortized intangibles (primarily trademarks and trade names) 17,165  —
Customer relationships 34,992  (20,426)
Backlog 1,174  (1,174)
Other 7,666  (5,284)

Total $ 67,063  $ (32,587)
Net carrying value of intangible assets $ 34,476   

The table below presents estimated remaining amortization expense for intangible assets recorded as of June 29, 2014 (in thousands):

 2014  2015  2016  2017  2018  After 2019

Estimated amortization expense $ 1,572  $ 3,139  $ 2,852  $ 2,717  $ 2,455  $ 4,579
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(6) Segment Information
The following table presents certain reportable segment information (in thousands):

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  
Corporate /
Eliminations  

Consolidated
Total

Three Months Ended June 29, 2014        
Net revenues $ 160,581  $ 47,303  $ —  $ 207,884
Inter-segment revenues 339  52  (391)  —
Operating income (loss) 22,992  (2,235)  (4,923)  15,834

Interest expense, net       891
Other (income) expense, net       (384)

Income before income taxes       $ 15,328
Identifiable assets 628,626  213,114  (82,654)  759,086
Capital expenditures 1,707  1,039  187  2,933
Depreciation and amortization 2,910  1,717  294  4,921
        

Three Months Ended June 30, 2013        
Net revenues $ 173,558  $ 50,086  $ —  $ 223,644
Inter-segment revenues 261  19  (280)  —
Operating income (loss) 22,299  4,527  (6,570)  20,256

Interest expense, net       838
Other (income) expense, net       626

Income before income taxes       $ 18,792
Identifiable assets 572,579  228,382  (91,535)  709,426
Capital expenditures 3,278  745  79  4,102
Depreciation and amortization 2,836  1,599  343  4,778
        

Six Months Ended June 29, 2014        
Net revenues $ 323,167  $ 95,903  $ —  $ 419,070
Inter-segment revenues 545  131  (676)  —
Operating income (loss) 44,767  4,335  (12,361)  36,741

Interest expense, net       1,809
Other (income) expense, net       (853)

Income before income taxes       $ 35,785
Identifiable assets 628,626  213,114  (82,654)  759,086
Capital expenditures 3,479  1,688  435  5,603
Depreciation and amortization 5,727  3,443  606  9,776
        

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013        
Net revenues $ 330,661  $ 98,381  $ —  $ 429,042
Inter-segment revenues 483  24  (507)  —
Operating income (loss) 38,539  6,464  (11,847)  33,156

Interest expense, net       1,625
Other (income) expense, net       1,239

Income before income taxes       $ 30,292
Identifiable assets 572,579  228,382  (91,535)  709,426
Capital expenditures 6,306  2,353  149  8,808
Depreciation and amortization 5,633  3,206  705  9,544

Each reporting segment is individually managed and has separate financial results that are reviewed by our chief operating decision-maker. Each segment
contains related products and services particular to that segment. For further discussion of the
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products included in each segment refer to Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

In calculating operating income for each reporting segment, certain administrative expenses incurred at the corporate level for the benefit of other reporting
segments were allocated to the segments based upon specific identification of costs, employment related information or net revenues.

Corporate / Eliminations are reported on a net “after allocations” basis. Inter-segment intercompany transactions affecting net operating profit have been
eliminated within the respective operating segments.

The operating loss reported in the Corporate / Eliminations column in the preceding table consists primarily of the following corporate expenses:
compensation and fringe benefit costs for executive management and other corporate staff; corporate development costs (relating to mergers and
acquisitions); human resource development and benefit plan administration expenses; legal, accounting and other professional and consulting fees; facilities,
equipment and maintenance costs; and travel and various other administrative costs. The above costs are incurred in the course of furthering the business
prospects of the Company and relate to activities such as: implementing strategic business growth opportunities; corporate governance; risk management;
treasury; investor relations and shareholder services; regulatory compliance; and stock transfer agent costs.

The total assets for each operating segment have been reported as the Identifiable Assets for that segment, including inter-segment intercompany receivables,
payables and investments in other CIRCOR businesses. Identifiable assets reported in Corporate / Eliminations include both corporate assets, such as cash,
deferred taxes, prepaid and other assets, fixed assets, as well as the elimination of all inter-segment intercompany assets. The elimination of intercompany
assets results in negative amounts reported in Corporate / Eliminations for Identifiable Assets for the periods ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013.
Corporate Identifiable Assets after elimination of intercompany assets were $34.9 million and $32.2 million as of June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013,
respectively.

(7) Earnings Per Common Share (in thousands, except per share amounts):
 

 Three Months Ended

 June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013

 
Net

Income  Shares  
Per Share
Amount  

Net
Income  Shares  

Per Share
Amount

Basic Earnings Per Common Share ("EPS") $ 11,926  17,665  $ 0.68  $ 12,668  17,565  $ 0.72
Dilutive securities, common stock options —  102  (0.01)  —  42  0.00

Diluted EPS $ 11,926  17,767 $ 0.67 $ 12,668 17,607 $ 0.72

            

 Six Months Ended

 June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013

 
Net

Income  Shares  
Per Share
Amount  

Net
Income  Shares  

Per Share
Amount

Basic EPS $ 26,558  17,643  $ 1.51  $ 20,577  17,539  $ 1.17
Dilutive securities, common stock options —  111  (0.01)  —  30  0.00

Diluted EPS $ 26,558  17,754  $ 1.50  $ 20,577  17,569  $ 1.17

There were 142,740 and 209,319 anti-dilutive stock options, RSU Awards, and RSU MSPs outstanding for the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30,
2013, respectively.

(8) Financial Instruments

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these
financial instruments. Short-term investments (principally guaranteed investment certificates) are carried at cost which approximates fair value at the balance
sheet date. The fair value of our variable rate debt approximates its carrying amount.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations including foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The
Company currently uses derivative instruments to manage foreign currency risk on certain business transactions denominated in foreign currencies. To the
extent the underlying transactions hedged are completed, these forward contracts do not subject us to significant risk from exchange rate movements because
they offset gains and losses on the related foreign currency denominated transactions. These forward contracts do not qualify as hedging instruments and,
therefore, do not qualify for fair value or cash flow hedge treatment. Any unrealized gains and losses on our contracts are recognized as a component of other
expense in our consolidated statements of income.

As of June 29, 2014, we had five forward contracts: two U.S. Dollar/Euro contracts with a total value of $3.1 million and three Brazilian Real/Euro contracts
with a total value of less than $0.1 million. This compares to fourteen forward contracts as of December 31, 2013. The fair value asset of the derivative
forward contracts as of June 29, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was less than $0.1 million and was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on our
balance sheet. The unrealized foreign exchange gain for each of the six month periods ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was less than $0.1 million and
$0.5 million, respectively. Unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) are included in other (income) expense in our consolidated statements of income.

We have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our foreign currency forward contracts fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, found
under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 820. The credit valuation adjustments, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the
likelihood of default by us and our counterparties are Level 3 inputs. However, we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation
adjustments on the overall valuation of our foreign currency forward contracts and determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the
overall valuation. As a result, we have determined that our derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

(9) Guarantees and Indemnification Obligations

As permitted under Delaware law, we have agreements whereby we indemnify certain of our officers and directors for certain events or occurrences while the
officer or director is, or was, serving at our request in such capacity. The term of the indemnification period is for the officer’s or director’s lifetime. The
maximum potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. However, we have
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policies that limit our exposure for events covered under the policies and should enable us to recover a portion of
any future amounts paid. As a result of the coverage under these insurance policies, we believe the estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements
based on Level 3 criteria as described under ASC Topic 820 is minimal and, therefore, we have no liabilities recorded from those agreements as of June 29,
2014.

We record provisions for the estimated cost of product warranties, primarily from historical information, at the time product revenue is recognized. While we
engage in extensive product quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, utilization levels, material usage,
service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure, and supplier warranties on parts delivered to us. Should actual product failure rates, utilization
levels, material usage, service delivery costs or supplier warranties on parts differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be
required.

The following table sets forth information related to our product warranty reserves for the six months ended June 29, 2014 (in thousands):
 

Balance beginning December 31, 2013 $ 4,194
Provisions 1,885
Claims settled (1,214)
Currency translation adjustment (17)

Balance ending June 29, 2014 $ 4,848

Warranty obligations increased $0.6 million from $4.2 million as of December 31, 2013 to $4.8 million as of June 29, 2014, primarily due to provisions
recorded within the Energy segment for isolated product defect claims.
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(10) Contingencies and Commitments
Asbestos-related product liability claims continue to be filed against two of our subsidiaries Spence Engineering Company, Inc. (“Spence”), the stock of
which we acquired in 1984; and Circor Instrumentation Technologies, Inc. (f/k/a Hoke Incorporated) (“Hoke”), the stock of which we acquired in 1998. Due
to the nature of the products supplied by these entities, the markets they serve and our historical experience in resolving these claims, we do not believe that
these asbestos-related claims will have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of Spence or Hoke, or our
financial condition, consolidated results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

We are currently involved in various other legal claims and legal proceedings, some of which may involve substantial dollar amounts. Periodically, we review
the status of each significant matter and assess our potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceeding is considered probable
and the amount can be estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss. Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the
determination as to whether an exposure can be reasonably estimated. Because of uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based on the best
information available at the time. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to our pending claims and litigation
and may revise our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial position.

Standby Letters of Credit
We execute standby letters of credit, which include bid bonds and performance bonds, in the normal course of business to ensure our performance or
payments to third parties. The aggregate notional value of these instruments was $46.0 million at June 29, 2014. Our historical experience with these types of
instruments has been good and no claims have been paid in the current or past five fiscal years. We believe that the likelihood of demand for payments
relating to the outstanding instruments is remote. These instruments generally have expiration dates ranging from less than 1 month to 5 years from June 29,
2014.

The following table contains information related to standby letters of credit instruments outstanding as of June 29, 2014 (in thousands):

Term Remaining
Maximum Potential
Future  Payments

0–12 months $ 30,222
Greater than 12 months 15,759

Total $ 45,981

(11) Defined Pension Benefit Plans

We maintain two pension benefit plans, a qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan and a nonqualified, noncontributory defined benefit supplemental
plan that provides benefits to certain retired highly compensated officers and employees. To date, the supplemental plan remains an unfunded plan. These
plans include significant pension benefit obligations which are calculated based on actuarial valuations. Key assumptions are made in determining these
obligations and related expenses, including expected rates of return on plan assets and discount rates. Benefits are based primarily on years of service and
employees’ compensation.

As of July 1, 2006, in connection with a revision to our retirement plan, we froze the pension benefits of our qualified noncontributory plan participants.
Under the revised plan, such participants generally do not accrue any additional benefits under the defined benefit plan after July 1, 2006.

During the three and six months ended June 29, 2014, we made cash contributions of $0.4 million and $0.8 million to our qualified defined benefit pension
plan, respectively. Additionally, substantially all of our U.S. employees are eligible to participate in a 401(k) savings plan. Under this plan, we make a core
contribution and match a specified percentage of employee contributions, subject to certain limitations.
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The components of net pension benefit expense are as follows (in thousands):

 Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended

 
June 29, 

2014  
June 30, 

2013  
June 29, 

2014  
June 30, 

2013

Interest cost on benefits obligation 545  491  1,090  982
Estimated return on assets (697)  (591)  (1,394)  (1,182)
Loss amortization 127  189  254  378
Net periodic cost of defined pension benefit plans $ (25)  $ 89  $ (50)  $ 178

(12) Income Taxes
As required by ASC 740, Income Taxes, at June 29, 2014 and at December 31, 2013, we had $1.9 million and $1.6 million of unrecognized tax benefits,
respectively, of which $1.2 million and $0.9 million, respectively, would affect our effective tax rate if recognized in any future period.

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of June 29, 2014, we had approximately $0.8 million of
accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in various state, local and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject
to examination by the Internal Revenue Service for years prior to 2010 and is no longer subject to examination by the tax authorities in foreign and state
jurisdictions prior to 2006. The Company is under examination for income tax filings in various foreign jurisdictions.

For 2014, we expect an effective income tax rate of approximately 27.0%. The effective tax rate was 22.2% for the quarter ended June 29, 2014.  The primary
driver of the lower tax rate in the quarter was the lower percentage of US income over total income.

Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower statutory rates and vice
versa. Changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets or liabilities, or changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof may also adversely affect our future
effective tax rate. In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax
authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income
taxes.

The Company has a net domestic deferred income tax asset and a net foreign deferred tax asset. With regard to deferred income tax assets, we maintained a
total valuation allowance of $13.9 million at June 29, 2014 and $13.9 million at December 31, 2013 due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize certain
of these assets, primarily consisting of certain foreign tax credits, foreign and state net operating losses and state tax credits carried forward. The valuation
allowance is based on estimates of taxable income in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate and the period over which our deferred tax assets will be
recoverable. If market conditions improve and future results of operations exceed our current expectations, our existing tax valuation allowances may be
adjusted, resulting in future tax benefits. Alternatively, if market conditions deteriorate or future results of operations are less than expected, future
assessments may result in a determination that some or all of the deferred tax assets are not realizable. Consequently, we may need to establish additional tax
valuation allowances for all or a portion of the gross deferred tax assets, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. The Company has had a history of domestic and foreign taxable income, is able to avail itself of federal tax carryback provisions, has
future taxable temporary differences and projects future domestic and foreign taxable income. We believe that after considering all of the available objective
evidence, it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the remaining deferred tax assets.

(13) Special Charges / Recoveries

Background

During the third quarter of 2012, we announced restructuring actions in the Energy and Aerospace & Defense segments including actions to consolidate
facilities, shift expenses to lower cost regions, and restructuring some non-strategic product lines ("2012 Announced Restructuring").

On August 1, 2013 and October 31, 2013, we announced restructuring actions associated with our Energy and Aerospace & Defense segments under which
we will simplify the manner in which we manage our businesses ("2013 Announced
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Restructuring"). Under these restructurings, we consolidated facilities, shifted expenses to lower cost regions, restructure certain non-strategic product lines,
and also consolidated our group structure from three groups to two, reducing management layers and administrative expenses.

On January 24, 2014, we reached a settlement on the T.M.W. Corporation ("TMW") arbitration where it was agreed that TMW would waive all rights to
amounts due from us under a contingent consideration promissory note established at the time of acquisition, resulting in a special gain of approximately $2.2
million during the first quarter of 2014. See our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on April 22,
2014 for additional information.

On March 28, 2014, we entered into a settlement agreement for $1.5 million with Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Accordingly, we recorded a $0.3 million
special charge in the quarter, net of amounts previously accrued. See our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on April 22, 2014 for additional
information.

On April 22, 2014, we announced additional restructuring actions ("2014 Announced Restructurings"), under which we will continue to simplify our
businesses. Under this restructuring, we will reduce certain general and administrative expenses and close or consolidate a number of smaller facilities. The
savings from these restructuring actions will be utilized for growth investments.

2014 Quarter-to-Date and Year-to-Date

During the three months ended June 29, 2014, we recorded $1.0 million of net special charges associated with the 2014 Announced Restructuring action and
$0.3 million of net special charges associated with the 2013 Announced Restructuring action.

During the six months ended June 29, 2014, we recorded $1.1 million of net special charges associated with the 2013 Announced Restructuring actions, $0.3
million of special charges associated with the Watts legal settlement, a $2.2 million gain associated with the TMW settlement, and $1.0 million of net special
charges associated with the 2014 Announced Restructuring actions.
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The following tables summarizes our 2014 QTD and YTD special charges or recoveries by expense type and business segment (in thousands):

 Special Charges / (Recoveries)

 As of and for the three months ended June 29, 2014

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Accrued special charges as of March 30, 2014       $ 2,725
Facility and professional fee related expenses 88  9  —  97

  Employee related expenses 422  449  289  1,160
Total special charges $ 510  $ 458  $ 289  $ 1,257

Special charges paid       1,887
Accrued special charges as of June 29, 2014       $ 2,095

        

 Special Charges / (Recoveries)

 As of and for the six months ended June 29, 2014

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Accrued special charges as of December 31, 2013       $ 4,180
Facility and professional fee related expenses 424  93  —  517

  Employee related expenses 773  464  289  1,526
Total restructuring charges $ 1,197  $ 557  $ 289  $ 2,043

Watts settlement —  —  300  300
TMW settlement special gain —  (2,243)  —  (2,243)

Total special charges (recoveries) $ 1,197  $ (1,686)  $ 589  $ 100
Special charges paid       2,185

Accrued special charges as of June 29, 2014       $ 2,095

Also, during the second quarter of 2014, in connection with the restructuring of certain landing gear product lines, we recorded $5.1 million of inventory
related charges within the Aerospace & Defense segment. These restructuring related inventory charges were included as cost of revenues. See further
explanation in Item 2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

In addition, during the second quarter of 2014, we performed an ASC 360, Plant, Property, and Equipment, impairment analyses for our Aerospace & Defense
related California operations. No asset impairment charges were required as the fair value of the California operations exceeded the carrying value.

2013 Quarter-to-Date and Year-to-Date

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we incurred $2.3 million and $3.6 million, respectively, of special charges associated with the 2012
Announced Restructuring actions. The following table summarizes our 2013 QTD and YTD special charges by expense type and business segment (in
thousands):
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 Special Charges / (Recoveries)

 As of and for the three months ended June 30, 2013

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Accrued special charges as of March 31, 2013       $ 71
Facility and professional fee related expenses 458  1,299  —  1,757
Employee related expenses 311  186  —  497

Total restructuring charges $ 769  $ 1,485  $ —  $ 2,254
Special charges paid       1,733

Accrued special charges as of June 30, 2013       $ 592

        

 Special Charges / (Recoveries)

 As of and for the six months ended June 30, 2013

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Accrued special charges as of December 31, 2012       $ 800
Facility and professional fee related expenses 838  1,838  —  2,676
Employee-related expenses 383  573  —  956

Total restructuring related special charges $ 1,221  $ 2,411  $ —  $ 3,632
Special charges paid       3,840

Accrued special charges as of June 30, 2013       $ 592

Inception to Date

The following table summarizes our 2012 Announced Restructuring related special charges incurred from the end of the third quarter of 2012 through
December 31, 2013. Charges with this action began in the third quarter of 2012 and were finalized in the fourth quarter of 2013.

 
2012 Announced Restructuring Charges / (Recoveries) as of

June 29, 2014

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Facility and professional fee related expenses - incurred to date 2,270  2,854  —  5,124
Employee related expenses - incurred to date 1,085  968  —  2,053

Total restructuring related special charges - incurred to date $ 3,355  $ 3,822  $ —  $ 7,177

We do not anticipate any additional special charges to be incurred associated with the 2012 Announced Restructuring actions.

The following table summarizes our 2013 Announced Restructuring related special charges incurred from the third quarter of 2013 through June 29, 2014:

 
2013 Announced Restructuring Charges / (Recoveries) as of

June 29, 2014

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Facility and professional fee related expenses - incurred to date 2,117  473  —  2,590
Employee related expenses - incurred to date 2,945  1,519  —  4,464

Total restructuring related special charges - incurred to date $ 5,062  $ 1,992  $ —  $ 7,054

We do not anticipate any additional special charges to be incurred associated with the 2013 Announced Restructuring actions.

The following table summarizes our 2014 Announced Restructuring related special charges incurred during the second quarter of 2014:
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2014 Announced Restructuring Charges / (Recoveries) as of

June 29, 2014

 Energy  
Aerospace &

Defense  Corporate  Total

Facility and professional fee related expenses - incurred to date (93)  9  —  (84)
Employee related expenses - incurred to date 316  449  289  1,054

Total restructuring related special charges - incurred to date $ 223  $ 458  $ 289  $ 970

Additional special charges that we expect to be recorded with the 2014 announced restructuring action are included in the future projection below.

Future Projection

We expect to incur additional related special charges between $4.0 million and $5.7 million that are primarily facility and employee related during the
remainder of 2014 (between $2.5 million and $3.0 million for the Energy segment, between $1.5 million and $2.5 million for the Aerospace & Defense
segment, and between $0.0 million and $0.2 million for Corporate) to complete these 2014 restructuring actions. These restructuring activities are expected to
be funded with cash generated from operations.

(14) Subsequent Event

On July 31, 2014, we entered into a new five year unsecured credit agreement ("2014 Credit Agreement"), filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, that provides for a $400 million revolving line of credit and replaced the 2011 Credit Agreement. The 2014 Credit Agreement includes a $200
million accordion feature for a maximum facility size of $600 million. The 2014 Credit Agreement also allows for additional indebtedness not to exceed $110
million. We anticipate using this 2014 Credit Agreement to fund potential acquisitions, to support our operational growth initiatives and working capital
needs, and for general corporate purposes.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains certain statements that are “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) and releases issued by the SEC. The words “may,” “hope,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” and other expressions which are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and which do
not relate to historical matters, identify forward-looking statements. We believe that it is important to communicate our future expectations to our
stockholders, and we, therefore, make forward-looking statements in reliance upon the safe harbor provisions of the Act. However, there may be events in the
future that we are not able to accurately predict or control and our actual results may differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-
looking statements. Forward looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, the cyclicality and highly competitive nature of some of
our end- markets which can affect the overall demand for and pricing of our products, changes in the price of and demand for oil & gas in both domestic and
international markets, any adverse changes in governmental policies, variability of raw material and component pricing, changes in our suppliers’
performance, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, our ability to hire and maintain key personnel, our ability to continue operating our
manufacturing facilities at efficient levels including our ability to prevent cost overruns and continue to reduce costs, our ability to generate increased cash
by reducing our inventories, our prevention of the accumulation of excess inventory, our ability to successfully implement our acquisition, divestiture,
restructuring, or simplification strategies, fluctuations in interest rates, potential security measure breaches or attacks, our ability to continue to successfully
defend product liability actions including asbestos-related claims, as well as the uncertainty associated with the current worldwide economic conditions and
the continuing impact on economic and financial conditions in the United States and around the world as a result of terrorist attacks, current Middle Eastern
conflicts and related matters. We advise you to read further about certain of these and other risk factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” of our
Annual Report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, together with subsequent reports we have filed with the SEC on Forms 10-Q
and 8-K, which may supplement, modify, supersede, or update those risk
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factors. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.

Company Overview

CIRCOR International, Inc. designs, manufactures and markets valves and other highly engineered products and sub-systems used in the oil & gas, power
generation, aerospace, defense and industrial markets. Within our major product groups, we develop, manufacture, sell and service a portfolio of fluid-control
products, sub-systems and technologies that enable us to fulfill our customers’ unique fluid-control application needs.
 
We have organized our reporting structure into two segments: Energy and Aerospace & Defense. The primary markets served by our Energy segment are oil
& gas: upstream, mid-stream and downstream; as well as the global power generation market. The Aerospace & Defense segment primarily serves
commercial and military aerospace end-markets as well as certain international Navy applications.

Basis of Presentation

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. We monitor our business in two segments: Energy and
Aerospace & Defense.

We operate and report financial information using a 52-week fiscal year ending December 31. The data periods contained within our Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q reflect the results of operations for the 13-week, 26-week and 39-week periods which generally end on the Sunday nearest the calendar quarter-
end date.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following discussion of accounting policies is intended to supplement the section “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” presented in Note 2 to
our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. These policies were selected
because they are broadly applicable within our operating units. The expenses and accrued liabilities or allowances related to certain of these policies are
initially based on our best estimates at the time of original entry in our accounting records. Adjustments are recorded when our actual experience, or new
information concerning our expected experience, differs from underlying initial estimates. These adjustments could be material if our actual or expected
experience were to change significantly in a short period of time. We make frequent comparisons of actual experience and expected experience in order to
mitigate the likelihood of material adjustments.

There have been no significant changes from the methodology applied by management for critical accounting estimates previously disclosed in our most
recent Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when products are delivered, title and risk of loss have passed to the customer, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, no
significant post-delivery obligations remain, the price to the buyers is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.
We have limited long-term arrangements with customers, representing less than 1% of our revenue, requiring delivery of products or services over extended
periods of time and revenue and profits on certain of these arrangements are recognized in accordance with the percentage of completion method of
accounting. Shipping and handling costs invoiced to customers are recorded as components of revenues and the associated costs are recorded as cost of
revenues.

Allowance for Inventory

We typically analyze our inventory aging and projected future usage on a quarterly basis to assess the adequacy of our inventory allowances. We provide
inventory allowances for excess, slow-moving, and obsolete inventories determined primarily by estimates of future demand. The allowance is measured on
an item-by-item basis determined based on the difference between the cost of the inventory and estimated market value. The provision for inventory
allowance is a component of our cost of revenues. Assumptions about future demand are among the primary factors utilized to estimate market value. At the
point of the loss recognition, a new, lower-cost basis for that inventory is established, and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not result in the
restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.

Our net inventory balance was $196.4 million as of June 29, 2014, compared to $199.4 million as of December 31, 2013. Our inventory allowances as of
June 29, 2014 was $24.6 million, compared with $21.3 million as of December 31, 2013.
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Our provision for inventory obsolescence was $1.6 million and $2.4 million for the first six months of 2014 and 2013, respectively. During the second quarter
of 2014 we recorded $5.1 million of restructuring related inventory charges in connection with certain landing gear product lines within the Aerospace &
Defense segment. We believe our inventory allowances remain adequate with the net realizable value of our inventory being higher than our current inventory
cost after allowances.

If there were to be a sudden and significant decrease in demand for our products, significant price reductions, or if there were a higher incidence of inventory
obsolescence for any reason, including a change in technology or customer requirements, we could be required to increase our inventory allowances and our
gross profit could be adversely affected.
 
Inventory management remains an area of focus as we balance the need to maintain adequate inventory levels to ensure competitive lead times against the
risk of excess or obsolete inventory.

Penalty Accruals

Some of our customer agreements, primarily in our project related businesses and large aerospace programs, contain late shipment penalty clauses whereby
we are contractually obligated to pay consideration to our customers if we do not meet specified shipment dates. The accrual for estimated penalties is shown
as a reduction of revenue and is based on several factors including historical customer settlement experience and management’s assessment of specific
shipment delay information. Accruals related to these potential late shipment penalties as of June 29, 2014, and December 31, 2013 were $9.5 million and
$10.3 million, respectively. As we conclude performance under these agreements, the actual amount of consideration paid to our customers may vary from the
amounts we currently have accrued.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade
receivables. A significant portion of our revenue and receivables are from customers who are either in or service the energy, aerospace and industrial markets.
We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and maintain allowances for potential credit losses. During 2013, 2012, and 2011, the Company did
not experience any significant losses related to the collection of our accounts receivable. For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 we had no
customers from which we derived revenues that exceeded 5% of our consolidated revenues.

Legal Contingencies

We are currently involved in various legal claims and legal proceedings, some of which may involve substantial dollar amounts. Periodically, we review the
status of each significant matter and assess our potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceeding is considered probable
and the amount can be estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss. Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the
determination as to whether an exposure can be reasonably estimated. Because of uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based on the best
information available at the time. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to our pending claims and litigation
and may revise our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial position. For more information related to our outstanding legal proceedings, see “Contingencies and Commitments” in Note 10 of the
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements as well as “Legal Proceedings” in Part II, Item 1 hereof.

Impairment Analysis

As required by ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other,” we perform an annual assessment as to whether there was an indication that goodwill and
certain intangible assets are impaired. We also perform impairment analyses whenever events and circumstances indicate that goodwill or certain intangibles
may be impaired. In assessing the fair value of goodwill, we use our best estimates of future cash flows of operating activities and capital expenditures of the
reporting unit, the estimated terminal value for each reporting unit and a discount rate based on the weighted average cost of capital.

If our estimates or related projections change in the future due to changes in industry and market conditions, we may be required to record additional
impairment charges. The goodwill recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as of June 29, 2014 increased $1.0 million to $76.9 million compared to $75.9
million as of December 31, 2013 due to foreign currency fluctuations. There were no goodwill impairment triggering events as of June 29, 2014.

We performed an ASC 360, Plant, Property, and Equipment, impairment analyses for our Aerospace & Defense related California operations as part of our
second quarter 2014 closing process. No asset impairment charges were required as the fair value of the California operations exceeded the carrying value.
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Income Taxes

See "Income Taxes" in Note 12 of the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Pension Benefits

We maintain two pension benefit plans, a qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan and a nonqualified, noncontributory defined benefit supplemental
plan that provides benefits to certain highly compensated officers and employees. To date, the supplemental plan remains an unfunded plan. These plans
include significant pension benefit obligations which are calculated based on actuarial valuations. Key assumptions are made in determining these obligations
and related expenses, including expected rates of return on plan assets and discount rates. Benefits are based primarily on years of service and employees’
compensation.

As of July 1, 2006, in connection with a revision to our retirement plan, we froze the pension benefits of our qualified noncontributory plan participants.
Under the revised plan, such participants generally do not accrue any additional benefits under the defined benefit plan after July 1, 2006 and instead receive
enhanced benefits associated with our defined contribution 401(k) plan in which substantially all of our U.S. employees are eligible to participate. No existing
employees benefit from the supplemental plan.

During the three and six months ended June 29, 2014, we made cash contributions of $0.4 million and $0.8 million, respectively, to our qualified defined
benefit pension plan. For the remainder of 2014, we expect to make a voluntary cash contribution of approximately $0.8 million to our qualified defined
benefit pension plan, although global capital market and interest rate fluctuations may impact future funding requirements.

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 29, 2014 Compared to the Three Months Ended June 30, 2013 (unaudited)

The following table sets forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenues and the period-to-period percentage change in certain financial data for the
three months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013:

 Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended   

 June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  % Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Net revenues $ 207,884  100.0 %  $ 223,644  100.0%  (7.0)%
Cost of revenues 148,184  71.3 %  153,538  68.7%  (3.5)%

Gross profit 59,700  28.7 %  70,106  31.3%  (14.8)%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 42,609  20.5 %  47,596  21.3%  (10.5)%
Special (recoveries) charges, net 1,257  0.6 %  2,254  1.0%  (44.2)%

Operating income 15,834  7.6 %  20,256  9.1%  (21.8)%
Other (income) expense:          

Interest expense, net 891  0.4 %  838  0.4%  6.3 %
Other (income) expense, net (384)  (0.2)%  626  0.3%  (161.3)%
Total other expense, net 507  0.2 %  1,464  0.7%  (65.4)%

Income before income taxes 15,327  7.4 %  18,792  8.4%  (18.4)%
Provision for income taxes 3,402  1.6 %  6,124  2.7%  (44.4)%

Net income $ 11,925  5.7 %  $ 12,668  5.7%  (5.9)%

Net Revenues

Net revenues for the three months ended June 29, 2014 decreased by $15.8 million, or 7%, to $207.9 million from $223.6 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2013. The change in net revenues for the three months ended June 29, 2014 was attributable to the following:
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 Three Months Ended  

Total Change  Operations  
Foreign

ExchangeSegment June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  
 (In thousands)

Energy $ 160,580  173,557  $ (12,977)  (14,822)  1,845
Aerospace & Defense 47,304  50,087  (2,783)  (4,466)  1,683

Total $ 207,884  $ 223,644  $ (15,760)  $ (19,288)  $ 3,528

The Energy segment accounted for approximately 77% of net revenues for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to 78% for the three months
ended June 30, 2013 with the Aerospace & Defense segment accounting for the remainder.

Energy segment revenues decreased by $13.0 million, or 7%, for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2013.
The decrease was primarily driven by operational declines in large international projects (11%) and our control valves businesses (4%), partially offset by
higher shipment volumes in the upstream North American short-cycle business (4%), downstream instrumentation and sampling businesses (1%), and by
favorable foreign currency impact of $1.8 million (1%). Orders decreased $3.5 million to $160.3 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared
to $163.8 million for the same period in 2013 primarily due to lower bookings due to delays in upstream large international projects offset in part by higher
bookings in our downstream instrumentation and sampling businesses. Backlog for our Energy segment has increased $15.9 million to $279.5 million as of
June 29, 2014 compared to $263.6 million as of June 30, 2013 primarily due to bookings in the instrumentation and sampling businesses.

 
Aerospace & Defense segment revenues decreased by $2.8 million, or 6%, for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013.
The decrease was primarily driven by operational declines in our California businesses related to landing gear product lines (5%), UK defense businesses
(4%), and French operations (3%), partially offset by higher actuation shipments in the US (2%) and favorable foreign currency impact of $1.7 million (3%).
Orders increased $7.1 million to $43.4 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $36.3 million for the same period in 2013. The increase
in Orders was primarily attributed to higher US actuation products and UK defense related orders. Order backlog decreased $36.4 million to $133.5 million as
of June 29, 2014 compared to $169.9 million as of June 30, 2013 primarily as a result of the $28.6 million backlog reduction as we restructured certain
landing gear product lines during the three months ended June 29, 2014, as well as the shipment of landing gear products.

Operating Income (Loss)

The change in operating income (loss) for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:
 

 Three Months Ended  

Total Change  Operations  
Foreign

Exchange

 Inventory
Restructuring &

Special
(Recoveries)
Charges, netSegment

June 29, 
2014  

June 30, 
2013   

Energy $ 22,992  $ 22,299  $ 693  $ 205  $ 182  $ 306
Aerospace & Defense (2,235)  4,527  (6,762)  (2,601)  239  (4,400)
Corporate (4,923)  (6,570)  1,647  1,936  —  (289)

 $ 15,834  $ 20,256  $ (4,422)  $ (460)  $ 421  $ (4,383)
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Special charges and inventory restructuring actions for the three months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 were as follows:

 Three Months Ended  
Inventory

Restructuring*  
Special (Recoveries)

Charges, netSegment June 29, 2014  

 (In thousands)     
Energy $ 510  $ —  $ 510
Aerospace & Defense 5,597  5,139  458
Corporate 289  —  289

Total $ 6,396  $ 5,139  $ 1,257
      
 Three Months Ended  

Inventory
Restructuring*  

Special (Recoveries)
Charges, netSegment June 30, 2013  

 (In thousands)     
Energy $ 816  $ 47  $ 769
Aerospace & Defense 1,197  (288)  1,485
Corporate —  —  —

Total $ 2,013  $ (241)  $ 2,254
      

* Inventory restructuring charges are included in cost of revenues.   

See "Special Charges / Recoveries" in Note 13 of the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements for more detail on these special charges and
inventory restructuring actions for the three months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013.

Operating income decreased 22%, or $4.4 million, to $15.8 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $20.3 million for the same period
in 2013.

Operating income for our Energy segment increased $0.7 million, or 3%, to $23.0 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014, compared to $22.3
million for the same period in 2013. The increase in operating income was driven by lower special and inventory restructuring charges $0.3 million (1%), net
operational increases of $0.2 million (1%), and favorable foreign exchange fluctuations $0.2 million (1%). Operating margins improved 150 basis points to
14.3% compared to the same period in 2013 primarily due to better product mix within our large international projects business, higher productivity and
savings from previous restructuring actions.

Our Aerospace & Defense segment recorded an operating loss of $2.2 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014, a decrease of $6.8 million (149%),
compared to operating income of $4.5 million for the same period in 2013. The operating loss was primarily a result of higher operational costs in California
and a restructuring related inventory charge of $5.1 million (114%) associated with the restructuring of certain landing gear product lines recorded during the
three months ended June 29, 2014 as well as lower income from our French operations (20%). These decreases were partially offset by lower special charges
of $1.0 million (23%) and favorable foreign exchange fluctuations $0.2 million (5%).

Corporate operating expenses decreased $1.6 million, or 25%, to $4.9 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013,
primarily due to lower compensation related costs.

 
Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, increased $0.1 million to $0.9 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $0.8 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2013. This change in interest expense was primarily due to higher outstanding debt balances    during the period.

Other (Income) Expense, Net

Other income, net, was $0.4 million for the three months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $0.6 million of expense for the same period of 2013. This change
was primarily due to foreign exchange fluctuations.

24



Provision for Taxes

The effective tax rate was 22.2% for the quarter ended June 29, 2014 compared to 32.6% for the same period of 2013. The primary driver of the lower tax rate
in the quarter ended June 29, 2014 was decreased pre-tax income in the US, a reduction in foreign losses that produce no tax benefit, as well as a reduction in
a valuation allowance related to higher foreign source income.
 
Net Income

Net income decreased approximately $0.7 million to $11.9 million for the quarter ended June 29, 2014 compared to $12.7 million for the same period in
2013.

Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 29, 2014 Compared to the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

The following table sets forth the results of operations, percentage of net revenues and the period-to-period percentage change in certain financial data for the
six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013:

 Six Months Ended  Six Months Ended   

 June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  % Change
 (Dollars in thousands)

Net revenues $ 419,070  100.0 %  $ 429,042  100.0%  (2.3)%
Cost of revenues 294,731  70.3 %  299,086  69.7%  (1.5)%

Gross profit 124,339  29.7 %  129,956  30.3%  (4.3)%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 87,498  20.9 %  93,168  21.7%  (6.1)%
Special charges 100  — %  3,632  0.8%  (97.2)%

Operating income 36,741  8.8 %  33,156  7.7%  10.8 %
Other (income) expense:          

Interest expense, net 1,809  0.4 %  1,625  0.4%  11.3 %
Other expense, net (853)  (0.2)%  1,239  0.3%  (168.8)%
Total other (income) expense 956  0.2 %  2,864  0.7%  (66.6)%

Income before income taxes 35,785  8.5 %  30,292  7.1%  18.1 %
Provision for income taxes 9,227  2.2 %  9,715  2.3%  (5.0)%

Net income $ 26,558  6.3 %  $ 20,577  4.8%  29.1 %

Net Revenues

Net revenues for the six months ended June 29, 2014 decreased by $10.0 million, or 2%, to $419.1 million from $429.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013. The change in net revenues for the six months ended June 29, 2014 was attributable to the following:
 

 Six Months Ended  

Total Change  Operations  
Foreign

ExchangeSegment June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  
 (In thousands)

Energy $ 323,167  $ 330,661  $ (7,494)  $ (9,965)  $ 2,471
Aerospace & Defense 95,903  98,381  (2,478)  (5,565)  3,087

Total $ 419,070  $ 429,042  $ (9,972)  $ (15,530)  $ 5,558

The Energy segment accounted for 77% of net revenues for the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 with the Aerospace & Defense segment
accounting for the remainder.

Energy segment revenues decreased by $7.5 million, or 2%, for the six months ended June 29, 2014 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013. The
decrease was primarily driven by operational declines in large international projects (5%) and our control valves businesses (2%), partially offset by higher
shipment volumes in the upstream North American short-cycle business (2%), downstream instrumentation and sampling businesses (1%), and by favorable
foreign currency impact of
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$2.5 million (2%). Energy segment orders decreased $17.4 million to $319.9 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $337.3 million for
the same period in 2013 primarily due to lower bookings in upstream large international projects. Orders within our large international project business are
unpredictable or "lumpy" given the nature of the procurement process.

Aerospace & Defense segment revenues decreased by $2.5 million, or 3%, for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to
the six months ended June 30, 2013. The decrease was primarily driven by declines in our California businesses related to landing gear product lines losses
(3%) and French operations (3%), partially offset by our US actuation product sales (2%). Orders for this segment decreased $5.9 million to $83.7 million for
the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $89.6 million for the same period in 2013 primarily as a result of lower landing gear orders.

Operating Income (Loss)

The change in operating income (loss) for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

 Six Months Ended  
Total

Change  Operations  
Foreign

Exchange  

Inventory
Restructuring &

Special (Recoveries)
Charges, netSegment June 29, 2014  June 30, 2013  

 (Dollars In thousands)   
Energy $ 44,766  $ 38,539  $ 6,227  $ 5,627  $ 282  $ 318
Aerospace & Defense 4,335  6,464  (2,129)  (1,306)  505  (1,328)
Corporate (12,360)  (11,847)  (513)  76  —  (589)

Total $ 36,741  $ 33,156  $ 3,585  $ 4,397  $ 787  $ (1,599)

Special charges and inventory restructuring for the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 were as follows:

 Six Months Ended  

Inventory Restructuring  
Special (Recoveries)

Charges, netSegment June 29, 2014  
 (In thousands)

Energy $ 1,198  $ —  $ 1,198
Aerospace & Defense 3,452  5,139  (1,687)
Corporate 589  —  589

Total $ 5,239  $ 5,139  $ 100

      

 Six Months Ended  

Inventory Restructuring  
Special (Recoveries)

Charges, netSegment June 30, 2013  
 (In thousands)

Energy $ 1,516  $ 296  $ 1,220
Aerospace & Defense 2,124  (288)  2,412
Corporate —  —  —

Total $ 3,640  $ 8  $ 3,632

      

* Inventory restructuring charges are included in cost of revenues.

See "Special Charges / Recoveries" in Note 13 of the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements for more detail on these Special charges and
inventory restructuring actions for the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013.

Operating income increased 11%, or $3.6 million, to $36.7 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $33.2 million for the same period in
2013.
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Operating income for our Energy segment increased $6.2 million, or 16%, to $44.8 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014, compared to $38.5
million for the same period in 2013. The increase in operating income was driven by operational increases of $5.6 million (15%), lower special and inventory
restructuring related charges of $0.3 million (1%), and favorable foreign exchange fluctuations of $0.3 million (1%). Operating margins improved 220 basis
points to 13.9% compared to the same period in 2013 primarily due to better product mix within our upstream large international projects and North
American short-cycle businesses, as well as savings from previous restructuring actions.

Operating income for the Aerospace & Defense segment decreased $2.1 million, or 33%, to $4.3 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014, compared to
operating income of $6.5 million for the same period in 2013. The decrease in operating income was primarily a result of restructuring related inventory
charges of $5.1 million (80%) associated with the restructuring of certain landing gear product lines during the six months ended June 29, 2014 and
operational decreases of $1.3 million (20%). These decreases were partially offset by a special recovery of $2.2 million (39%) associated with a legal
settlement recorded during the first quarter of 2014 and favorable foreign currency exchange fluctuations of $0.5 million (8%).

Corporate operating expenses increased $0.5 million, or 4%, to $12.4 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013,
primarily due to higher special charges.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, increased $0.2 million to $1.8 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013. This
change in interest expense was primarily due to higher outstanding debt balances during the period.

Other (Income) Expense, Net

Other income, net was $0.9 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to other expense, net of $1.2 million in the same period of 2013. The
difference of $2.1 million was primarily due to foreign currency fluctuations.

Provision for Taxes

The effective tax rate was 27.0% for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to 32.1% for the same period of 2013. The primary driver of the lower
2014 tax rate were reduction in foreign losses that produce no tax benefit, as well as a reduction in a valuation allowance related to higher foreign source
income.

Net Income

Net income increased $6.0 million to $26.6 million for the six months ended June 29, 2014 compared to $20.6 million for the same period in 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity needs arise primarily from capital investment in machinery, equipment and the improvement of facilities, funding working capital requirements
to support business growth initiatives, restructuring actions, acquisitions, dividend payments, pension funding obligations and debt service costs. We have
historically generated cash from operations and believe we remain in a strong financial position, with resources available for reinvestment in existing
businesses, strategic acquisitions and managing our capital structure on a short and long-term basis.

The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the six months ended June 29, 2014 (in thousands):
 

Cash flow provided by (used in):  
Operating activities $ 27,355
Investing activities (5,571)
Financing activities (6,999)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (639)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 14,146

During the six months ended June 29, 2014, we generated $27.3 million of cash from operating activities compared to $19.4 million generated during the
same period in 2013. The $7.9 million year over year increase in cash generated from operating activities was primarily due to a $6.0 million increase in net
income.
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During the six months ended June 29, 2014, we used $5.6 million for investing activities as compared to $8.5 million during the same period in 2013. The
$2.9 million decrease in cash used for investing activities was primarily related to lower purchases of capital equipment year over year.

During the six months ended June 29, 2014, we used $7.0 million for financing activities as compared to $9.8 million during the same period in 2013. The
$2.8 million decrease in cash used by financing activities was primarily related to our net borrowing activity as we made borrowing repayments of $6.1
million during the six months ended June 29, 2014 while we made borrowing repayments of $10.9 million for the same period in 2013. Total debt as a
percentage of total shareholders’ equity was 8.6% as of June 29, 2014 compared to 10.4% as of December 31, 2013.

In May 2011, we entered into a five year unsecured credit agreement (“2011 Credit Agreement”) that provided for a $300 million revolving line of credit. The
2011 Credit Agreement included a $150 million accordion feature for a maximum facility size of $450 million and also allowed for additional indebtedness
not to exceed $80 million. As of June 29, 2014, we had borrowings of $39 million outstanding under this 2011 Credit Facility and $46 million outstanding
under letters of credit.

On July 31, 2014, we entered into a new five year unsecured credit agreement ("2014 Credit Agreement"), filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, that provides for a $400 million revolving line of credit and replaced the 2011 Credit Agreement. The 2014 Credit Agreement includes a $200
million accordion feature for a maximum facility size of $600 million. The 2014 Credit Agreement also allows for additional indebtedness not to exceed $110
million. We anticipate using this 2014 Credit Agreement to fund potential acquisitions, to support our operational growth initiatives and working capital
needs, and for general corporate purposes.

Certain of our loan agreements contain covenants that require, among other items, maintenance of certain financial ratios and also limit our ability to: enter
into secured and unsecured borrowing arrangements; issue dividends to shareholders; acquire and dispose of businesses; invest in capital equipment; transfer
assets among domestic and international entities; participate in certain higher yielding long-term investment vehicles; and issue additional shares of our stock.
The two primary financial covenants are leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio. We were in compliance with all financial covenants related to our existing
debt obligations on June 29, 2014 and we believe it is reasonably likely that we will continue to meet such covenants in the near future.

The ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 2.90:1 as of June 29, 2014 compared to 2.84:1 at December 31, 2013. The increase in the current ratio was
primarily due to a $14.1 million increase in cash and a $23.8 million increase in accounts receivable due to timing of customer payments as of June 29, 2014
as compared to December 31, 2013.

As of June 29, 2014, cash and cash equivalents totaled $116.3 million, of which approximately $115.9 million was held in foreign bank accounts. This
compares to $102.2 million of cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 substantially all of which was held in foreign bank accounts. The cash and
cash equivalents located at our foreign subsidiaries may not be repatriated to the United States or other jurisdictions without significant tax implications. We
believe that our U.S. based subsidiaries, in the aggregate, will generate positive operating cash flows and in addition we may utilize our 2014 Credit Facility
for U.S. based subsidiary cash needs. As a result, we believe that we will not need to repatriate cash from our foreign subsidiaries with earnings that are
indefinitely reinvested.

In 2014, we expect to generate positive cash flow from operating activities sufficient to support our capital expenditures and pay dividends of approximately
$2.7 million based on our current dividend practice of paying $0.15 per share annually. Based on our expected cash flows from operations and contractually
available borrowings under our credit facility, we expect to have sufficient liquidity to fund working capital needs and future growth. We continue to search
for strategic acquisitions; a larger acquisition may require additional borrowings and/or the issuance of our common stock.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial
condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources that is material to investors.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Risk

As of June 29, 2014, our primary interest rate risk is related to borrowings under our revolving credit facility. The interest rate for our revolving credit facility
fluctuates with changes in short-term interest rates. We had $39.2 million borrowed under our revolving credit facility as of June 29, 2014. Based upon
expected levels of borrowings under our credit facility in 2014, an increase in variable interest rates of 100 basis points would have an effect on our annual
results of operations and cash flows of approximately $0.2 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations including foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The
Company currently uses derivative instruments to manage foreign currency risk on certain business transactions denominated in foreign currencies. To the
extent the underlying transactions hedged are completed, these forward contracts do not subject us to significant risk from exchange rate movements because
they offset gains and losses on the related foreign currency denominated transactions. These forward contracts do not qualify as hedging instruments and,
therefore, do not qualify for fair value or cash flow hedge treatment. Any unrealized gains and losses on our contracts are recognized as a component of other
expense in our consolidated statements of income.

As of June 29, 2014, we had five forward contracts: two U.S. Dollar/Euro contracts with a total value of $3.1 million and three Brazilian Real/Euro contracts
with a total value of less than $0.1 million. This compares to fourteen forward contracts as of December 31, 2013. The fair value asset of the derivative
forward contracts as of June 29, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was less than $0.1 million and was included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on our
balance sheet. The unrealized foreign exchange gain for each of the six month periods ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was less than $0.1 million and
$0.5 million, respectively. Unrealized foreign exchange gains (losses) are included in other (income) expense in our consolidated statements of income.

We have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our foreign currency forward contracts fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, found
under ASC 820. The credit valuation adjustments, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by us and our counterparties
are Level 3 inputs. However, we have assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of our foreign
currency forward contracts and determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation. As a result, we have determined
that our derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, respectively), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
designed and were effective to give reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and financial officers, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure and that such information is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

We have made no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended June 29, 2014 that materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION.
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ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Asbestos-related product liability claims continue to be filed against two of our subsidiaries Spence Engineering Company, Inc. (“Spence”), the stock of
which we acquired in 1984; and Circor Instrumentation Technologies, Inc. (f/k/a Hoke Incorporated) (“Hoke”), the stock of which we acquired in 1998. Due
to the nature of the products supplied by these entities, the markets they serve and our historical experience in resolving these claims, we do not believe that
these asbestos-related claims will have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of Spence or Hoke, or our
financial condition, consolidated results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

We are currently involved in various other legal claims and legal proceedings, some of which may involve substantial dollar amounts. Periodically, we review
the status of each significant matter and assess our potential financial exposure. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceeding is considered probable
and the amount can be estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss. Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the
determination as to whether an exposure can be reasonably estimated. Because of uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based on the best
information available at the time. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to our pending claims and litigation
and may revise our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial position.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

We have not identified any material changes from the risk factors as previously disclosed in Item 1A to Part I of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Working Capital Restrictions and Limitations upon Payment of Dividends
Certain of our loan agreements contain covenants that require, among other items, maintenance of certain financial ratios and also limit our ability to: enter
into secured and unsecured borrowing arrangements; issue dividends to shareholders; acquire and dispose of businesses; invest in capital equipment; transfer
assets among domestic and international entities; participate in certain higher yielding long-term investment vehicles; and issue additional shares of our stock.
The two primary financial covenants are leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio. We were in compliance with all covenants related to our existing debt
obligations at June 29, 2014 and December 31, 2013. We believe it is reasonably likely that we will continue to meet such covenants in the near future.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit
No.  Description and Location

10.1*

 

Credit Agreement, dated July 31, 2014, among CIRCOR International, Inc., as borrower, certain subsidiaries of CIRCOR International,
Inc., as guarantors, the lenders from time to time party thereto and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent, swing line lender and a letter of
credit issuer.

10.2§

 

CIRCOR International, Inc. 2014 Stock Option and Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to CIRCOR
International, Inc.'s Definitive Proxy Statement, File No. 001-14962, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 21,
2014.

31.1*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32**

 
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101

 

The following financial statements from CIRCOR International, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2014,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1, 2014, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language),
as follows:

 (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 29, 2014 (unaudited) and December 31, 2013
 (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (unaudited)
 (iii) Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income for the three and six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (unaudited)
 (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 29, 2014 and June 30, 2013 (unaudited)
 (v) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
* Filed with this report.
** Furnished with this report.
§ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

  

 CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.
  

August 1, 2014 /s/ Scott A. Buckhout
 Scott A. Buckhout

 President and Chief Executive Officer

 Principal Executive Officer

  

August 1, 2014 /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
 Rajeev Bhalla

 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

 Principal Financial Officer

  

August 1, 2014 /s/ John F. Kober III
 John F. Kober III

 Vice President, Corporate Controller and Treasurer

 Principal Accounting Officer
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CREDIT AGREEMENT

dated as of
July 31, 2014

among

CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
as Borrower,

THE OTHER CREDIT PARTIES PARTY HERETO,

THE LENDERS PARTY HERETO,
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THIS CREDIT AGREEMENT is entered into as of July 31, 2014, among the following:

(i)    CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Delaware corporation (herein, together with its successors and assigns, the “Borrower”);

(ii)    each Domestic Subsidiary of the Borrower signatory hereto (herein, together with any other Domestic Subsidiary of the Borrower
that becomes a party hereto by joinder supplement or otherwise after the date hereof and together with their respective successors and assigns,
collectively, the “Subsidiary Guarantors” and, individually, “Subsidiary Guarantor”);

(iii)    the lenders from time to time party hereto (herein, together with their respective successors and assigns, collectively, the
“Lenders” and, individually, “Lender”);

(iv)    SUNTRUST BANK, as the administrative agent (herein, together with its successors and assigns, the “Administrative Agent”),
as the Swing Line Lender (as hereinafter defined) and an LC Issuer (as hereafter defined);

(v)    SUNTRUST ROBINSON HUMPHREY, INC. and KEYBANC CAPITAL MARKETS INC., as joint-lead arrangers and joint-
bookrunners;

(vi)    KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as syndication agent; and

(vii)    SANTANDER BANK, N.A., BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY and HSBC BANK USA, N.A., as co-
documentation agents.

RECITALS:

(1)    The Borrower has requested that the Lenders, the Swing Line Lender and each LC Issuer extend credit to the Borrower to
refinance certain of the Borrower’s existing indebtedness and to provide working capital and funds for other general corporate purposes.

(2)    Subject to and upon the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Lenders, the Swing Line Lender and each LC Issuer are willing
to extend credit and make available to the Borrower the credit facility provided for herein for the foregoing purposes.

AGREEMENT:

In consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I.  

DEFINITIONS AND TERMS

Section 1.01    Certain Defined Terms. As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings herein specified unless the context
otherwise requires:

“Acquisition” means any transaction or series of related transactions for the purpose of or resulting, directly or indirectly, in (i) the
acquisition of all or substantially all of the assets of any Person, or any business or division of any Person, (ii) the acquisition or ownership of
in excess of 50% of the Equity Interest of any
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Person, or (iii) the acquisition of another Person by a merger, consolidation, amalgamation or any other combination with such Person.

“Adjusted Eurodollar Rate” means, for any Interest Period with respect to a Eurodollar Loan, (i) the rate per annum equal to the
London interbank offered rate for deposits in Dollars appearing on Reuters screen page LIBOR 01 (or on any successor or substitute page of
such service or any successor to such service, or such other commercially available source providing such quotations as may be designated by
the Administrative Agent from time to time) at approximately11:00 A.M. (London time) two (2) Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Period, with a maturity comparable to such Interest Period, divided by (ii) a percentage equal to 100% minus the Eurodollar Reserve
Percentage; provided, that if the rate referred to in clause (i) above is not available at any such time for any reason, then the rate referred to in
clause (i) shall instead be the interest rate per annum, as determined by the Administrative Agent, to be the arithmetic average of the rates per
annum at which deposits in Dollars in an amount equal to the amount of such Eurodollar Loan are offered by major banks in the London
interbank market to the Administrative Agent at approximately 11:00 A.M. (London time), two (2) Business Days prior to the first day of such
Interest Period.

“Adjusted Foreign Currency Rate” means with respect to each Interest Period for any Foreign Currency Loan, (i) the rate per annum
equal to the offered rate appearing on the applicable electronic page of Reuters (or on the appropriate page of any successor to or substitute for
such service, or, if such rate is not available, on the appropriate page of any generally recognized financial information service, as selected by
the Administrative Agent from time to time) that displays an average British Bankers Acceptance Interest Settlement Rate at approximately
11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period for deposits in the applicable Designated
Foreign Currency with a maturity comparable to such Interest Period, divided (and rounded to the nearest 1/16th of 1%) by (ii) a percentage
equal to 100% minus the then stated maximum rate of all reserve requirements (including, without limitation, any marginal, emergency,
supplemental, special or other reserves and without benefit of credits for proration, exceptions or offsets that may be available from time to
time) applicable to any member bank of the Federal Reserve System in respect of Eurocurrency liabilities as defined in Regulation D (or any
successor category of liabilities under Regulation D); provided, however, that if the rate referred to in clause (i) above is not available at any
such time for any reason, then the rate referred to in clause (i) shall instead be the interest rate per annum, as determined by the Administrative
Agent in its reasonable discretion, to be the average (rounded to the nearest 1/16th of 1%) of the rates per annum at which deposits in an
amount equal to the amount of such Foreign Currency Loan in the applicable Designated Foreign Currency are offered to major banks in the
London interbank market at approximately 11:00 A.M. (London time), two Business Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period,
for contracts that would be entered into at the commencement of such Interest Period for the same duration as such Interest Period.

“Administrative Agent” has the meaning provided in the first paragraph of this Agreement and includes any successor to the
Administrative Agent appointed pursuant to Section 9.11.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or
indirect common control with such Person, or, in the case of any Lender that is an investment fund, the investment advisor thereof and any
investment fund having the same investment advisor. A Person shall be deemed to control a second Person if such first Person possesses,
directly or indirectly, the power (i) to vote 15% or more of the securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors or managers
of such second Person or (ii) to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such second Person, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. For the avoidance of doubt, any director or officer (or person functioning in a
substantially similar role) of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall be deemed an Affiliate of the Borrower and its
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Subsidiaries. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Administrative Agent nor any Lender shall in any event be considered an Affiliate of
the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

“Aggregate Credit Facility Exposure” means, at any time, the sum of (i) the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure at such time and
(ii) the aggregate principal amount of Swing Loans outstanding at such time.

“Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure” means, at any time, the sum of (i) the Dollar Equivalent of the principal amounts of all
Revolving Loans made by all Lenders and outstanding at such time and (ii) the Dollar Equivalent of the aggregate amount of the LC
Outstandings at such time.

“Agreement” means this Credit Agreement, as the same may from time to time be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise
modified.

“Anti-Terrorism Law” means the USA Patriot Act or any other law pertaining to the prevention of future acts of terrorism, in each case
as such laws may be amended from time to time.

“Applicable Lending Office” means, with respect to each Lender, the office designated by such Lender to the Administrative Agent as
such Lender’s lending office for all purposes of this Agreement. A lender may have a different Applicable Lending Office for Base Rate Loans,
Eurodollar Loans and Foreign Currency Loans.

“Applicable Margin” means:

(i)    On the Closing Date and thereafter, until changed in accordance with the following provisions, the Applicable Margin shall be (A)
0.00% for Base Rate Loans, (B) 1.00% for Fixed Rate Loans and (C) 0.10% for the Unused Fee;

(ii)    Commencing with the fiscal quarter of the Borrower ended on June 30, 2014, and continuing with each fiscal quarter thereafter,
the Administrative Agent shall determine the Applicable Margin in accordance with the following matrix, based on the Leverage Ratio:

Leverage Ratio Applicable Margin for
Fixed Rate Loans

Applicable Margin for
Base Rate Loans

Applicable Margin for
Unused Fees

Greater than or equal to 3.00 to 1.00 1.875% 0.875% 0.275%
Greater than or equal to 2.25 to 1.00, but
less than 3.00 to 1.00

1.75% 0.75% 0.25%

Greater than or equal to 1.75 to 1.00, but
less than 2.25 to 1.00

1.625% 0.625% 0.20%

Greater than or equal to 1.25 to 1.00, but
less than 1.75 to 1.00

1.375% 0.375% 0.15%

Greater than or equal to 0.75 to 1.00, but
less than 1.25 to 1.00

1.25% 0.25% 0.125%

Less than 0.75 to 1.00 1.00% 0.00% 0.10%
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(iii)    Changes in the Applicable Margin based upon changes in the Leverage Ratio shall become effective on the third Business Day
following the receipt by the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 6.01(a) or Section 6.01(b) of the financial statements of the Borrower for
the Testing Period most recently ended, accompanied by a Compliance Certificate in accordance with Section 6.01(c), demonstrating the
computation of the Leverage Ratio. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, if at any time, the Borrower has failed to deliver timely its
consolidated financial statements referred to in Section 6.01(a) or Section 6.01(b), accompanied by a Compliance Certificate in accordance
with Section 6.01(c), the Applicable Margin at such time shall be the highest number of basis points indicated therefor in the above matrix
unless waived by the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders, regardless of the Leverage Ratio at such time (provided that the
Applicable Margin shall be determined based on the Leverage Ratio at and after such financial statements and Compliance Certificate are
delivered to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders). The above matrix does not modify or waive, in any respect, the rights of the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders to charge any default rate of interest or any of the other rights and remedies of the Administrative Agent
and the Lenders hereunder.

“Approved Bank” has the meaning provided in subpart (ii) of the definition of “Cash Equivalents.”

“Approved Fund” means a fund that is engaged in making, purchasing, holding or otherwise investing in bank loans and similar
extensions of credit and that is administered or managed by a Lender or an Affiliate of a Lender.

“Asset Sale” means the sale, lease, transfer or other disposition (including by means of Sale and Lease-Back Transactions, and by
means of mergers, consolidations, amalgamations and liquidations of a corporation, partnership or limited liability company of the interests
therein of the Borrower or any Subsidiary) by the Borrower or any Subsidiary to any Person of any of the Borrower’s or such Subsidiary’s
respective assets (including, for the avoidance of doubt, Equity Interests), provided that the term Asset Sale specifically excludes any sales,
transfers or other dispositions of inventory, or obsolete, worn-out or excess furniture, fixtures, equipment or other property, real or personal,
tangible or intangible, in each case in the ordinary course of business.

“Assignment Agreement” means an Assignment and Assumption Agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit E.

“Assuming Lender” has the meaning provided in Section 2.16(c).

“Augmenting Lender” has the meaning provided in Section 2.02(b).

“Authorized Officer” means with respect to the Borrower or any Subsidiary, any of the following officers: the Chairman, the President,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Assistant Treasurer or the Corporate Controller or, in the case of any
of the foregoing, such other Person as is authorized in writing to act on behalf of the Borrower or such Subsidiary and is reasonably acceptable
to the Administrative Agent. Unless otherwise qualified, all references herein to an Authorized Officer shall refer to an Authorized Officer of
the Borrower.

“Bankruptcy Code” means Title 11 of the United States Code entitled “Bankruptcy,” as now or hereafter in effect, or any successor
thereto, as hereafter amended.

“Base Rate” means the highest of (i) the per annum rate which the Administrative Agent publicly announces from time to time as its
prime lending rate, as in effect from time to time, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate, as in effect from time to time, plus one-half of one percent
(0.50%) per annum and (iii) the Adjusted

-4-



Eurodollar Rate determined on a daily basis for an Interest Period of one (1) month, plus one percent (1.00%) per annum. The Administrative
Agent’s prime lending rate is a reference rate and does not necessarily represent the lowest or best rate actually charged to any customer. The
Administrative Agent may make commercial loans or other loans at rates of interest at, above or below the Administrative Agent’s prime
lending rate. Each change in the any of the rates described above in this definition shall be effective from and including the date such change is
announced as being effective.

“Base Rate Loan” means any Loan bearing interest at a rate based upon the Base Rate in effect from time to time.

“Benefited Creditors” means, with respect to the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations pursuant to Article X, each of the Administrative
Agent, the Lenders, each LC Issuer and the Swing Line Lender and each Designated Hedge Creditor, and the respective successors and assigns
of each of the foregoing.

“Borrower” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“Borrower Guaranteed Obligations” has the meaning provided in Section 2.15(a).

“Borrowing” means a Revolving Borrowing, a Competitive Bid Borrowing or the incurrence of a Swing Loan.

“Business Day” means (i) any day other than Saturday, Sunday or any other day on which commercial banks in Atlanta, Georgia are
authorized or required by law to close and (ii) with respect to any matters relating to (A) Eurodollar Loans, any day on which dealings in U.S.
Dollars are carried on in the London interbank market, and (B) Foreign Currency Loans, any day on which commercial banks are open for
international business (including the clearing of currency transfers in the relevant Designated Foreign Currency) in the principal financial center
of the home country of the applicable Designated Foreign Currency.

“Capital Distribution” means a payment made, liability incurred or other consideration given for the purchase, acquisition, repurchase,
redemption or retirement of any Equity Interest of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or as a dividend, return of capital or other distribution
in respect of any of the Borrower’s or such Subsidiary’s Equity Interest.

“Capital Lease” as applied to any Person means any lease of any property (whether real, personal or mixed) by that Person as lessee
that, in conformity with GAAP, should be accounted for as a capital lease on the balance sheet of that Person.

“Capitalized Lease Obligations” means all obligations under Capital Leases of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, without
duplication, in each case taken at the amount thereof accounted for as liabilities identified as “capital lease obligations” (or any similar words)
on a consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries prepared in accordance with GAAP.

“Cash Collateralize” means, in respect of any obligations, to provide and pledge (as a first priority perfected security interest) cash
collateral for such obligations in Dollars (in amounts, unless otherwise specified herein, equal to 100% of such obligations), with a depository
institution, and pursuant to documentation in form and substance, reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent (and “Cash
Collateralization” has a corresponding meaning).

“Cash Dividend” means a Capital Distribution of the Borrower payable in cash to the shareholders of the Borrower with respect to any
class or series of Equity Interest of the Borrower.
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“Cash Equivalents” means any of the following:

(i)    securities issued or directly and fully guaranteed or insured by the United States of America or any agency or
instrumentality thereof (provided that the full faith and credit of the United States of America is pledged in support thereof) having
maturities of not more than 90 days from the date of acquisition;

(ii)    U.S. dollar denominated time deposits, certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances of (x) any Lender, (y) any
domestic commercial bank of recognized standing having capital and surplus in excess of $500,000,000 or (z) any bank (or the parent
company of such bank) whose short-term commercial paper rating from S&P is at least A-1, A-2 or the equivalent thereof or from
Moody’s is at least P-1, P-2 or the equivalent thereof (any such bank, an “Approved Bank”), in each case with maturities of not more
than 90 days from the date of acquisition;

(iii)    commercial paper issued by any Lender or Approved Bank or by the parent company of any Lender or Approved Bank
and commercial paper issued by, or guaranteed by, any industrial or financial company with a short-term commercial paper rating of at
least A-1 or the equivalent thereof by S&P or at least P-1 or the equivalent thereof by Moody’s, or guaranteed by any industrial
company with a long-term unsecured debt rating of at least A or A2, or the equivalent of each thereof, from S&P or Moody’s, as the
case may be, and in each case maturing within 90 days after the date of acquisition;

(iv)    fully collateralized repurchase agreements entered into with any Lender or Approved Bank having a term of not more
than 30 days and covering securities described in clause (i) above;

(v)    investments in money market funds substantially all the assets of which are comprised of securities of the types described
in clauses (i) through (iv) above;

(vi)    investments in money market funds access to which is provided as part of “sweep” accounts maintained with a Lender or
an Approved Bank;

(vii)    investments in industrial development revenue bonds that (A) “re-set” interest rates not less frequently than quarterly,
(B) are entitled to the benefit of a remarketing arrangement with an established broker dealer, and (C) are supported by a direct pay
letter of credit covering principal and accrued interest that is issued by an Approved Bank;

(viii)    investments in pooled funds or investment accounts consisting of investments of the nature described in the foregoing
clause (vii); and

(ix)    solely with respect to any Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower, the approximate equivalent of clauses (i) through (viii)
above in the jurisdiction in which such Foreign Subsidiary is organized or does business.

“CERCLA” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as the same may be
amended from time to time, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.

“Change of Control” means (i) the acquisition of, or, if earlier, the shareholder or director approval of the acquisition of, ownership or
voting control, directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record, on or after the Closing Date, by any Person or group (within the meaning of Rule
13d-3 of the SEC under the 1934 Act,
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as then in effect) of shares representing more than 40% of the aggregate ordinary Voting Power represented by the issued and outstanding
capital stock of the Borrower; (ii) the occupation of a majority of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Borrower by
Persons who were neither (A) nominated by the Board of Directors of the Borrower nor (B) appointed by directors so nominated; or (iii) the
occurrence of a “change in control”, or other similar provision, under or with respect to any Material Indebtedness Agreement.

“Change in Law” shall mean (i) the adoption of any applicable law, rule, regulation or guideline after the date of this Agreement, (ii)
any change in any applicable law, rule, regulation or guideline, or any change in the interpretation, implementation, administration or
application thereof, by any Governmental Authority after the date of this Agreement, or (iii) compliance by any Lender (or its Applicable
Lending Office) or any LC Issuer (or the Parent Company of such Lender or LC Issuer) with any request, guideline or directive (whether or not
having the force of law) of any Governmental Authority made or issued after the date of this Agreement; provided that for purposes of this
Agreement, (x) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and all requests, rules, guidelines or directives in connection
therewith and (y) all requests, rules, guidelines or directives promulgated by the Bank for International Settlements, the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (or any successor or similar authority) or the United States or foreign regulatory authorities, in each case pursuant to Basel
III, shall in each case be deemed to be a “Change in Law”, regardless of the date enacted, adopted or issued.

“Charges” has the meaning provided in Section 11.23.

“CIP Regulations” has the meaning provided in Section 9.07.

“Circor German Holdings” means Circor German Holdings L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company.

“Claims” has the meaning set forth in the definition of “Environmental Claims.”

“Closing Date” means the date on which all of the conditions set forth in Section 4.01 have been satisfied or waived in accordance with
Section 11.12.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and the rulings
issued thereunder. Section references to the Code are to the Code as in effect at the Closing Date and any subsequent provisions of the Code,
amendatory thereof, supplemental thereto or substituted therefor.

“Commercial Letter of Credit” means any letter of credit or similar instrument issued for the purpose of providing the primary payment
mechanism in connection with the purchase of materials, goods or services in the ordinary course of business.

“Commitment” means (i) with respect to each Lender, its Revolving Commitment, and (ii) with respect to the Swing Line Lender, its
Swing Line Commitment.

“Commodities Hedge Agreement” means a commodities contract purchased by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in the ordinary
course of business, and not for speculative purposes, with respect to raw materials necessary to the manufacturing or production of goods in
connection with the business of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries.
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“Commodity Exchange Act” shall mean the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.), as amended and in effect from time to
time, and any successor statute.

“Competitive Bid Borrowing” means the borrowing of Competitive Bid Loans from each of the Lenders whose offer to make one or
more Competitive Bid Loans as part of such borrowing has been accepted under the competitive bidding procedure described in Section 2.03.

“Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loan” has the meaning provided in Section 2.03(b).

“Competitive Bid Loan” means, with respect to each Lender, any loan made by such Lender pursuant to Section 2.03.

“Competitive Bid Note” means a promissory note substantially in the form of Exhibit A-2.

“Compliance Certificate” has the meaning provided in Section 6.01(c).

“Confidential Information” has the meaning provided in Section 11.15(b).

“Consenting Lender” has the meaning provided in Section 2.16(b).

“Consideration” means, in connection with an Acquisition, the aggregate consideration paid, including borrowed funds, cash, the
issuance of securities or notes, the assumption or incurring of liabilities (direct or contingent), the payment of consulting fees (excluding any
fees payable to any investment banker in connection with such Acquisition) or fees for a covenant not to compete and any other consideration
paid for the purchase.

“Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization Expense” means, for any period, all depreciation and amortization expenses of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries, including, without limitation, impairment charges incurred in accordance with FAS 142, all as determined for the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP.

“Consolidated EBITDA” means, for any period, the sum, for the Borrower and its Subsidiaries (determined on a consolidated basis
without duplication in accordance with GAAP), of the following:

(a)    Consolidated Net Income (calculated before deducting Consolidated Income Tax Expense, Consolidated Interest Expense,
Specified Restructuring Charges, extraordinary or unusual items, non-cash charges related to expensing employee stock options and other
share-based payments as required by FAS 123(R), and income or loss attributable to the equity in Affiliates) for such period, plus

(b)    Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization Expense (to the extent deducted in determining Consolidated Net Income) for such
period;

provided, however, that Consolidated EBITDA for any Testing Period shall (y) include the EBITDA for any Person or business unit that has
been acquired by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries for any portion of such Testing Period prior to the date of acquisition and (z) exclude
the EBITDA for any Person or business unit that has been disposed of by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, for the portion of such
Testing Period prior to the date of disposition.

“Consolidated Income Tax Expense” means, for any period, all provisions for taxes based on the net income of the Borrower or any of
its Subsidiaries (including, without limitation, any additions to such
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taxes, and any penalties and interest with respect thereto), all as determined for the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis in
accordance with GAAP.

“Consolidated Interest Expense” means, for any period, the sum of (i) total interest expense (including, without limitation, that which is
capitalized and that which is attributable to Capital Leases or Synthetic Leases) of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis
with respect to all outstanding Indebtedness of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries plus (ii) the net amount payable (or minus the net amount
receivable) under Interest Rate Protection Agreements to which Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries are a party during such period (irrespective
of whether actually paid or received during such period).

“Consolidated Net Income” means for any period, the net income (or loss) of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis
for such period taken as a single accounting period determined in conformity with GAAP.

“Consolidated Net Worth” means at any time, all amounts that, in conformity with GAAP, would be included under the caption “total
stockholders’ equity” (or any like caption) on a consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower at such time.

“Consolidated Total Debt” means, on any date, the sum (without duplication) of (i) all Indebtedness of the Borrower and of its
Subsidiaries, all as determined on a consolidated basis, minus (ii) the excess (if any) of (A) the aggregate amount of cash and Cash Equivalents
of the Borrower on such date (as set forth in the Borrower’s public filings made pursuant to the 1934 Act) over (B) $5,000,000.

“Continue,” “Continuation” and “Continued” each refers to a continuation of a Fixed Rate Loan for an additional Interest Period as
provided in Section 2.10.

“Convert,” “Conversion” and “Converted” each refers to a conversion of Loans of one Type into Loans of another Type.

“Credit Event” means the making of any Borrowing, any Conversion or Continuation or any LC Issuance.

“Credit Facility” means the credit facility established under this Agreement pursuant to which (i) the Lenders shall make Revolving
Loans to the Borrower, and shall participate in LC Issuances, pursuant to the Revolving Commitment of each such Lender, (ii) the Swing Line
Lender shall make Swing Loans to the Borrower under the Swing Line Facility pursuant to the Swing Line Commitment, and (iii) each LC
Issuer shall issue Letters of Credit for the account of the LC Obligors in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

“Credit Facility Exposure” means, for any Lender at any time, the Dollar Equivalent of the sum of (i) such Lender’s Revolving Facility
Exposure at such time, and (ii) in the case of the Swing Line Lender, the principal amount of Swing Loans outstanding at such time.

“Credit Party” means the Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor.

“Creditors” means the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer, the Lenders, Affiliates of the Lenders, the Designated Hedge Creditors,
and the respective successors and assigns of each of the foregoing.

“Default” means any event, act or condition that with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default.
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“Default Period” means, with respect to any Defaulting Lender, (i) in the case of any Defaulted Credit, the period commencing on the
date the applicable Defaulted Credit was required to be extended to the Borrower under this Agreement (after giving effect to any applicable
grace period) and ending on the earlier of the following: (A) the date on which such Defaulted Credit with respect to such Defaulting Lender
has been funded or reduced to zero (whether by the funding of such Defaulted Credit by such Defaulting Lender or by the non-pro-rata
application of any prepayment pursuant to Section 11.26(b)) and (B) the date on which the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the
Required Lenders (and not including such Defaulting Lender in any such determination, in accordance with Section 11.26(a)) waive the
application of Section 11.26 with respect to such Defaulted Credits of such Defaulting Lender in writing; (ii) in the case of any Defaulted
Payment, the period commencing on the date the applicable Defaulted Payment was required to have been paid to the Administrative Agent, an
LC Issuer or other Lender under this Agreement (after giving effect to any applicable grace period) and ending on the earlier of the following:
(A) the date on which such Defaulted Payment has been paid to the Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer or other Lender, as applicable, together
with (to the extent that such Person has not otherwise been compensated by the Borrower for such Defaulted Payment) interest thereon for each
day from and including the date such amount is paid but excluding the date of payment, at the Federal Funds Effective Rate and (B) the date on
which the Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer and such other Lender to which such Defaulted Payment was due waive the application of
Section 11.26 with respect to such Defaulted Payments of such Defaulting Lender in writing; and (iii) in the case of any Distress Event
determined by the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders to exist, the period commencing on the date that the applicable Distress Event
was so determined to exist and ending on the earlier of the following: (A) the date on which such Distress Event is determined by the
Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders to no longer exist and (B) such date as the Borrower and the Administrative Agent agree, in their
sole discretion, to waive the application of Section 11.26 with respect to such Distress Event of such Defaulting Lender.

“Default Rate” means, for any day, (i) with respect to any Loan, a rate per annum equal to 2% per annum above the interest rate that is
or would be applicable from time to time to such Loan pursuant to Section 2.09(a), and (ii) with respect to any other amount, a rate per annum
equal to 2% per annum above the rate that would be applicable to Revolving Loans that are Base Rate Loans pursuant to Section 2.09(a)(i).

“Defaulted Credit” has the meaning specified in the definition of “Defaulting Lender”.

“Defaulted Payment” has the meaning specified in the definition of “Defaulting Lender”.

“Defaulting Lender” means any Lender (i) that has failed to fund any portion of the Revolving Loans, participations in any Letter of
Credit or participations in Swing Loans required to be funded by it hereunder (each such Loan, a “Defaulted Credit”) within three Business
Days of the date required to be funded by it hereunder, unless the subject of a good faith dispute, (ii) that has otherwise failed to pay over to the
Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer or any other Lender any other amount required to be paid by it hereunder (each such payment, a “Defaulted
Payment”) within three Business Days of the date when due, unless the subject of a good faith dispute, (iii) that has given written notice to the
Administrative Agent, and LC Issuer or any Lender or has otherwise publicly announced that such Lender will or expects to become a
Defaulting Lender under clause (i) or clause (ii) of this definition or (iv) as to which a Distress Event has occurred, in each case, for so long as
the applicable Default Period is in effect.

“Designated Foreign Currency” means Euros, Canadian Dollars, British pounds, Australian dollars or any other currency (other than
Dollars) approved in writing by the Lenders and that is freely traded and exchangeable into Dollars.
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“Designated Hedge Agreement” means any Hedge Agreement (other than a Commodities Hedge Agreement) to which the Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries is a party and as to which a Lender or any of its Affiliates is a counterparty that, pursuant to a written instrument signed
by the Administrative Agent, has been designated as a Designated Hedge Agreement so that the Borrower’s or such Subsidiary’s counterparty’s
credit exposure thereunder will be entitled to share in the benefits of the Guaranty (unless constituting an Excluded Swap Obligation) to the
extent the Guaranty provides guarantees for creditors of the Borrower or any Subsidiary under Designated Hedge Agreements.

“Designated Hedge Creditor” means each Lender or Affiliate of a Lender that participates as a counterparty to any Credit Party
pursuant to any Designated Hedge Agreement with such Lender or Affiliate of such Lender.

“Disclosed Matters” means the disclosures made by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries regarding environmental and asbestos litigation
related matters (i) in any of the Borrower’s publicly available filings made with the SEC prior to the Closing Date or (ii) in writing to the
Lenders prior to the Closing Date.

“Distress Event” means, with respect to any Person (each, a “Distressed Person”), (a) a voluntary or involuntary case (or comparable
proceeding) with respect to such Distressed Person has been commenced with respect to such Distressed Person under the Bankruptcy Code,
(b) a custodian, conservator, receiver or similar official has been appointed for such Distressed Person or for any substantial part of such
Distressed Person’s assets or (c) such Distressed Person has made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or has otherwise been
adjudicated as, or determined by any Governmental Authority having regulatory authority over such Distressed Person or its assets to be,
insolvent or bankrupt.

“Distressed Person” has the meaning specified in the definition of “Distress Event”.

“Dollars,” “U.S. Dollars” and the sign “$” each means lawful money of the United States.

“Dollar Equivalent” means, (i) with respect to any amount denominated in Dollars, such amount, (ii) with respect to a Foreign
Currency Loan to be made, the Dollar equivalent of the amount of such Foreign Currency Loan, determined by the Administrative Agent on the
basis of its spot rate at approximately 11:00 A.M. London time on the date two Business Days before the date such Foreign Currency Loan is to
be made, for the purchase of the relevant Designated Foreign Currency with Dollars for delivery on the date such Foreign Currency Loan is to
be made, (iii) with respect to any Letter of Credit to be issued in any Designated Foreign Currency, the Dollar equivalent of the Stated Amount
of such Letter of Credit, determined by the applicable LC Issuer on the basis of its spot rate at approximately 11:00 A.M. London time on the
date two Business Days before the issuance of such Letter of Credit, for the purchase of the relevant Designated Foreign Currency with Dollars
for delivery on such date of issuance, and (iv) with respect to any other amount not denominated in Dollars, and with respect to Foreign
Currency Loans and Letters of Credit issued in any Designated Foreign Currency at any other time, the Dollar equivalent of such amount,
Foreign Currency Loan or Letter of Credit, as the case may be, determined by the Administrative Agent on the basis of its spot rate at
approximately 11:00 A.M. London time on the date for which the Dollar equivalent amount of such amount, Foreign Currency Loan or Letter
of Credit, as the case may be, is being determined, for the purchase of the relevant Designated Foreign Currency with Dollars for delivery on
such date.

“Domestic Credit Party” means the Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor.

“Domestic Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary organized under the laws of the United States of America, any State thereof, or the
District of Columbia.
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“EBITDA” means, with respect to any Person for any period, the net income for such Person for such period plus the sum of the
amounts for such period included in determining such net income in respect of (i) interest expense, (ii) income tax expense, and (iii)
depreciation and amortization expense, in each case as determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Eligible Assignee” means (i) a Lender, (ii) an Affiliate of a Lender, (iii) an Approved Fund, and (iv) any other Person (other than a
natural Person) approved by (A) the Administrative Agent, (B) each LC Issuer, and (C) unless an Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, the Borrower (each such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed); provided, however, that
notwithstanding the foregoing, “Eligible Assignee” shall not include the Borrower or any of the Borrower’s Affiliates or Subsidiaries.

“Environmental Claims” means any and all administrative, regulatory or judicial actions, suits, demands, demand letters, claims, liens,
orders, written notices of non-compliance or violation, or administrative or judicial proceedings arising in any way under any Environmental
Law or any permit issued under any such law (hereafter “Claims”), including, without limitation, (i) any and all Claims by any Governmental
Authority for enforcement, cleanup, removal, response, remedial or other actions or damages pursuant to any applicable Environmental Law,
and (ii) any and all Claims by any third party seeking damages, contribution, indemnification, cost recovery, compensation or injunctive relief
resulting from the storage, treatment or Release of any Hazardous Materials or arising from alleged injury or threat of injury to health, safety or
the environment.

“Environmental Law” means any applicable Federal, state, foreign or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, code, binding and
enforceable guideline, binding and enforceable written policy, and rule of common law now or hereafter in effect and in each case as amended,
and any binding and enforceable judicial or administrative interpretation thereof, including any judicial or administrative order, consent, decree
or judgment issued to or rendered against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries relating to the environment, employee health and safety or
Hazardous Materials, including, without limitation, CERCLA; RCRA; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.; the
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.; the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300f et seq.; the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, 33 U.S.C. § 2701
et seq.; the Emergency Planning and the Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 11001 et seq., the Hazardous Material
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 5101 et seq. and the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq. (to the extent it regulates
occupational exposure to Hazardous Materials); and any state and local or foreign counterparts or equivalents, in each case as amended from
time to time.

“Equity Interest” means with respect to any Person, any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents, including
membership interests (however designated, whether voting or non-voting) of equity of such Person, including, if such Person is a partnership,
partnership interests (whether general or limited) or any other interest or participation that confers on a Person the right to receive a share of the
profits and losses of, or distributions of assets of, such partnership, but in no event will Equity Interest include any debt securities convertible or
exchangeable into equity unless and until actually converted or exchanged into equity.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations
promulgated and rulings issued thereunder. Section references to ERISA are to ERISA, as in effect at the Closing Date and any subsequent
provisions of ERISA, amendatory thereof, supplemental thereto or substituted therefor.
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“ERISA Affiliate” means each Person (as defined in Section 3(9) of ERISA), which together with the Borrower or a Subsidiary of the
Borrower, would be deemed to be a “single employer” (i) within the meaning of Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code or Section 4001(a)
(14) or 4001(b)(i) of ERISA or (ii) as a result of the Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower being or having been a general partner of such
Person.

“Eurodollar Loan” means each Loan bearing interest at a rate based upon the Adjusted Eurodollar Rate.

“Eurodollar Reserve Percentage” means the aggregate of the maximum reserve percentages (including, without limitation, any
emergency, supplemental, special or other marginal reserves) expressed as a decimal (rounded upwards to the next 1/100th of 1%) in effect on
any day to which the Administrative Agent is subject with respect to the Adjusted Eurodollar Rate pursuant to regulations issued by the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any Governmental Authority succeeding to any of its principal functions) with respect to
eurocurrency funding (currently referred to as “eurocurrency liabilities” under Regulation D). Eurodollar Loans shall be deemed to constitute
eurocurrency funding and to be subject to such reserve requirements without benefit of or credit for proration, exemptions or offsets that may
be available from time to time to any Lender under Regulation D. The Eurodollar Reserve Percentage shall be adjusted automatically on and as
of the effective date of any change in any reserve percentage.

“Event of Default” has the meaning provided in Section 8.01.

“Event of Loss” means, with respect to any property, (i) the actual or constructive total loss of such property or the use thereof,
resulting from destruction, damage beyond repair, or the rendition of such property permanently unfit for normal use from any casualty or
similar occurrence whatsoever, (ii) the destruction or damage of a portion of such property from any casualty or similar occurrence whatsoever
under circumstances in which such damage cannot reasonably be expected to be repaired, or such property cannot reasonably be expected to be
restored to its condition immediately prior to such destruction or damage, within 90 days after the occurrence of such destruction or damage,
(iii) the condemnation, confiscation or seizure of, or requisition of title to or use of, any property, or (iv) in the case of any property located
upon a leasehold, the termination or expiration of such leasehold.

“Excluded Swap Obligation” shall mean, with respect to any Credit Party, any Swap Obligation if, and to the extent that, all or a
portion of the Guaranty of such Credit Party of, or the grant by such Credit Party of a security interest to secure, such Swap Obligation (or any
Guaranty thereof) is or becomes illegal under the Commodity Exchange Act or any rule, regulation or order of the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (or the application or official interpretation of any thereof) by virtue of such Credit Party’s failure for any reason to constitute an
“eligible contract participant” as defined in the Commodity Exchange Act at the time the Guaranty of such Credit Party becomes effective with
respect to such related Swap Obligation. If a Swap Obligation arises under a master agreement governing more than one swap, such exclusion
shall apply only to the portion of such Swap Obligation that is attributable to swaps for which such Guaranty or security interest is or becomes
illegal.

“Existing Credit Agreement” means the Credit Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2011 (as amended), by and among the Borrower, the
lenders party thereto and SunTrust Bank, as agent for such lenders.

“Extension Date” has the meaning provided in Section 2.16(b).

“Extension Request Date” has the meaning provided in Section 2.16(a).
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“Federal Funds Effective Rate” means, for any period, a fluctuating interest rate equal for each day during such period to the weighted
average of the rates on overnight Federal Funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal Funds brokers,
as published for such day (or, if such day is not a Business Day, for the next preceding Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York, or, if such rate is not so published for any day that is a Business Day, the average of the quotations for such day on such transactions
received by the Administrative Agent from three Federal Funds brokers of recognized standing selected by the Administrative Agent.

“Fee Letters” means the letters, (i) dated May 27, 2014, from SunTrust and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc. to the Borrower and (ii)
dated May 30, 2014, from KeyBank to the Borrower, each of which details certain fees payable by the Borrower in connection with this
Agreement.

“Fees” means all amounts payable pursuant to, or referred to in, Section 2.11.

“Financial Projections” has the meaning provided in Section 5.07(b).

“Fixed Rate Loan” means any Eurodollar Loan or Foreign Currency Loan.

“Foreign Currency Loan” means each Revolving Loan denominated in a Designated Foreign Currency and bearing interest at a rate
based upon the Adjusted Foreign Currency Rate.

“Foreign Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that is not a Domestic Subsidiary.

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America as in effect from time to time.

“Governmental Authority” means any nation or government, any state or other political subdivision thereof, any agency, authority,
instrumentality, regulatory body, court, administrative tribunal, central bank or other entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing,
regulatory or administrative powers or functions of or pertaining to government.

“Guarantor” means any of the Subsidiary Guarantors and any other person that executes and delivers a Guaranty to the Administrative
Agent

“Guaranty” means any of the following: (i) the guaranty by the Borrower in Section 2.15, (ii) the guaranty by the Subsidiary
Guarantors in Article X and (iii) a guaranty, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, executed by one of
more Persons in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Creditors under which such Persons guarantee payment and
performance of the Obligations.

“Guaranty Obligations” means as to any Person (without duplication) any obligation of such Person guaranteeing any Indebtedness
(“primary Indebtedness”) of any other Person (the “primary obligor”) in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, including, without
limitation, any obligation of such Person, whether or not contingent, (i) to purchase any such primary Indebtedness or any property constituting
direct or indirect security therefor, (ii) to advance or supply funds for the purchase or payment of any such primary Indebtedness or to maintain
working capital or equity capital of the primary obligor or otherwise to maintain the net worth or solvency of the primary obligor, (iii) to
purchase property, securities or services primarily for the purpose of assuring the owner of any such primary Indebtedness of the ability of the
primary obligor to make payment of such primary Indebtedness, or (iv) otherwise to assure or hold harmless the owner of such primary
Indebtedness against loss in respect thereof, provided, however, that the definition of Guaranty Obligation
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shall not include endorsements of instruments for deposit or collection in the ordinary course of business. The amount of any Guaranty
Obligation shall be deemed to be an amount equal to the stated or determinable amount of the primary Indebtedness in respect of which such
Guaranty Obligation is made or, if not stated or determinable, the maximum reasonably anticipated liability in respect thereof (assuming such
Person is required to perform thereunder).

“Hazardous Materials” means (i) any petrochemical or petroleum products, radioactive materials, asbestos in any form that is or could
become friable, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, transformers or other equipment that contain dielectric fluid containing regulated levels of
polychlorinated biphenyls, and radon gas; and (ii) any chemicals, materials or substances defined as or included in the definition of “hazardous
substances,” “hazardous wastes,” “hazardous materials,” “restricted hazardous materials,” “extremely hazardous wastes,” “restrictive hazardous
wastes,” “toxic substances,” “toxic pollutants,” “contaminants” or “pollutants,” or words of similar meaning and regulatory effect, under any
applicable Environmental Law.

“Hedge Agreement” means (i) any Interest Rate Protection Agreement, (ii) any currency swap or option agreement, foreign exchange
contract, forward currency purchase agreement or similar currency management agreement or arrangement or (iii) any Commodities Hedge
Agreement.

“Immaterial Subsidiary” means, as of any Immaterial Subsidiary Testing Date, any Subsidiary of the Borrower that the Borrower has
designated as an “Immaterial Subsidiary” in accordance with Section 4.01(ix) or Section 6.01(k) of this Agreement; provided that the following
are true on such Immaterial Subsidiary Testing Date: (i) the aggregate Tangible Assets of all such Subsidiaries on such day does not exceed
10% of the Total Tangible Assets on such day, and (ii) that portion of Consolidated EBITDA attributable solely to such Subsidiaries for the
period of four consecutive fiscal quarters most recently ended prior to such day does not exceed 10% of Consolidated EBITDA for the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries for such period; and further provided that the Borrower may from time to time, by written notice to the
Administrative Agent, cause any Subsidiary that it has designated as an “Immaterial Subsidiary” hereunder to be no longer treated as or deemed
an “Immaterial Subsidiary” for purposes of this Agreement.

“Immaterial Subsidiary Testing Date” has the meaning provided in Section 6.01(k).

“Impacted Lender” means any Lender as to which the Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer or the Swing Line Lender has a reasonable
belief in good faith that such Lender has defaulted in fulfilling its obligations (as a lender, letter of credit issuer or issuer of bank guarantees and
including, but not limited to, funding or paying when due loan requests, swingline participations, letter of credit participations, pro rata sharing
obligations and expense and indemnification obligations) under one or more other syndicated credit facilities, unless such potential default by
such Lender is the subject of a good faith dispute.

“Increasing Lender” has the meaning provided in Section 2.02(b).

“Indebtedness” of any Person means, without duplication, (i) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money; (ii) all bonds, notes,
debentures and similar debt securities of such Person; (iii) the deferred purchase price of capital assets or services that in accordance with
GAAP would be shown on the liability side of the balance sheet of such Person; (iv) all obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person in
respect of letters of credit issued for the account of such Person and, without duplication, all drafts drawn thereunder (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding specifically any obligations relating to letters of credit supporting obligations constituting Indebtedness hereunder); (v) all
obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such Person in respect of bankers’ acceptances; (vi) all indebtedness of a second Person secured by any
Lien on any property owned by such first Person, whether or not such indebtedness has been assumed; (vii) all
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Capitalized Lease Obligations of such Person; (viii) the present value, determined on the basis of the implicit interest rate, of all basic rental
obligations under all Synthetic Leases of such Person; (ix) all obligations of such Person with respect to asset securitization financing; (x) all
net obligations of such Person under Hedge Agreements; (xi) the full outstanding balance of trade receivables, notes or other instruments sold
with full recourse (and the portion thereof subject to potential recourse, if sold with limited recourse), other than in any such case any thereof
sold solely for purposes of collection of delinquent accounts; and (xii) all Guaranty Obligations of such Person; provided, however, that
(y) neither trade payables, deferred revenue, taxes nor other similar accrued expenses, in each case arising in the ordinary course of business,
shall constitute Indebtedness; and (z) the Indebtedness of any Person shall in any event include (without duplication) the Indebtedness of any
other entity (including any general partnership in which such Person is a general partner) to the extent such Person is liable thereon as a result
of such Person’s ownership interest in or other relationship with such entity, except to the extent the terms of such Indebtedness provide
expressly that such Person is not liable thereon.

“Indemnitees” has the meaning provided in Section 11.02.

“Insolvency Event” means, with respect to any Person, (i) the commencement of a voluntary case by such Person under the Bankruptcy
Code or the seeking of relief by such Person under any bankruptcy or insolvency or analogous law in any jurisdiction outside of the United
States; (ii) the commencement of an involuntary case against such Person under the Bankruptcy Code and the petition is not controverted
within 10 days, or is not dismissed within 60 days, after commencement of the case; (iii) a custodian (as defined in the Bankruptcy Code) is
appointed for, or takes charge of, all or substantially all of the property of such Person; (iv) such Person commences (including by way of
applying for or consenting to the appointment of, or the taking of possession by, a rehabilitator, receiver, custodian, trustee, conservator or
liquidator (collectively, a “conservator”) of such Person or all or any substantial portion of its property) any other proceeding under any
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment of debt, relief of debtors, dissolution, insolvency, liquidation, rehabilitation, conservatorship or similar
law of any jurisdiction whether now or hereafter in effect relating to such Person; (v) any such proceeding of the type set forth in clause (iv)
above is commenced against such Person to the extent such proceeding is consented to by such Person or remains undismissed for a period of
60 days; (vi) such Person is adjudicated insolvent or bankrupt; (vii) any order of relief or other order approving any such case or proceeding is
entered; (viii) such Person suffers any appointment of any conservator or the like for it or any substantial part of its property that continues
undischarged or unstayed for a period of 60 days; (ix) such Person makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or generally does not
pay its debts as such debts become due; or (x) any corporate (or similar organizational) action is taken by such Person for the purpose of
effecting any of the foregoing.

“Intangible Assets” means, with respect to any Subsidiary of the Borrower as of any date, intangible assets on the balance sheet of such
Subsidiary as of such date prepared in accordance with GAAP, including patents and goodwill.

“Interest Coverage Ratio” means, for any Testing Period, the ratio of (i) Consolidated EBITDA to (ii) Consolidated Interest Expense.

“Interest Period” means, with respect to each Fixed Rate Loan, a period of one, two, three or six months (or nine or twelve months if
offered by all Lenders) as selected by the Borrower; provided, however, that (i) the initial Interest Period for any Borrowing of such Fixed Rate
Loan shall commence on the date of such Borrowing (the date of a Borrowing resulting from a Conversion or Continuation shall be the date of
such Conversion or Continuation) and each Interest Period occurring thereafter in respect of such Borrowing shall commence on the day on
which the next preceding Interest Period expires; (ii) if any Interest Period
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begins on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month at the end of such Interest Period, such Interest
Period shall end on the last Business Day of such calendar month; (iii) if any Interest Period would otherwise expire on a day that is not a
Business Day, such Interest Period shall expire on the next succeeding Business Day; provided, however, that if any Interest Period would
otherwise expire on a day that is not a Business Day but is a day of the month after which no further Business Day occurs in such month, such
Interest Period shall expire on the next preceding Business Day; (iv) no Interest Period for any Fixed Rate Loan may be selected that would end
after the Revolving Facility Termination Date; and (v) if, upon the expiration of any Interest Period, the Borrower has failed to (or may not)
elect a new Interest Period to be applicable to the respective Borrowing of Fixed Rate Loans as provided above, the Borrower shall be deemed
to have elected to Convert such Borrowing to Base Rate Loans effective as of the expiration date of such current Interest Period or, in the case
of any Foreign Currency Loan, the Borrower shall be required to repay the same in full.

“Interest Rate Protection Agreement” means any interest rate swap agreement, any interest rate cap agreement, any interest rate collar
agreement or other similar interest rate management agreement or arrangement, in each case providing for the transfer or mitigation of interest
risks either generally or under specific contingencies.

“Investment” means (i) any direct or indirect purchase or other acquisition by a Person of any Equity Interest of any other Person;
(ii) any loan, advance (other than deposits with financial institutions available for withdrawal on demand) or extension of credit to, guarantee or
assumption of debt or purchase or other acquisition of any other Indebtedness of, any Person by any other Person; or (iii) the purchase,
acquisition or investment of or in any stocks, bonds, mutual funds, notes, debentures or other securities, or any deposit account, certificate of
deposit or other investment of any kind.

“Judgment Amount” has the meaning provided in Section 11.24.

“KeyBank” means KeyBank National Association.

“LC Commitment Amount” means $80,000,000 or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in Designated Foreign Currency.

“LC Documents” means, with respect to any Letter of Credit, any documents executed in connection with such Letter of Credit,
excluding the Letter of Credit itself.

“LC Fee” means any of the fees payable pursuant to Section 2.11(c) or Section 2.11(d) in respect of Letters of Credit.

“LC Issuance” means the issuance of any Letter of Credit by any LC Issuer for the account of an LC Obligor in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, and shall include any amendment thereto that increases the Stated Amount thereof or extends the expiry date of such
Letter of Credit.

“LC Issuer” means SunTrust or any of its Affiliates, or such other Lender that is requested by the Borrower and agrees to be an LC
Issuer hereunder and is approved by the Administrative Agent.

“LC Obligor” means, with respect to each LC Issuance, the Borrower or the Subsidiary Guarantor for whose account such Letter of
Credit is issued.
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“LC Outstandings” means, at any time, the sum, without duplication, of (i) the Dollar Equivalent of the aggregate Stated Amount of all
outstanding Letters of Credit and (ii) the Dollar Equivalent of the aggregate amount of all Unreimbursed Drawings with respect to Letters of
Credit.

“LC Participant” has the meaning provided in Section 2.05(g)(i).

“LC Participation” has the meaning provided in Section 2.05(g)(i).

“LC Request” has the meaning provided in Section 2.05(b).

“Leaseholds” of any Person means all the right, title and interest of such Person as lessee or licensee in, to and under leases or licenses
of land, improvements and/or fixtures.

“Lender” and “Lenders” have the meaning provided in the first paragraph of this Agreement and includes any other Person that
becomes a party hereto pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, other than any such Person that ceases to be a party hereto pursuant to an
Assignment Agreement. Unless the context otherwise requires, the term “Lenders” includes the Swing Line Lender.

“Lender Register” has the meaning provided in Section 2.08(b).

“Letter of Credit” means any Standby Letter of Credit or Commercial Letter of Credit, in each case issued by any LC Issuer under this
Agreement pursuant to Section 2.05 for the account of any LC Obligor.

“Leverage Ratio” means, for any Testing Period, the ratio of (i) Consolidated Total Debt to (ii) Consolidated EBITDA.

“Lien” means any mortgage, pledge, security interest, hypothecation, encumbrance, lien or charge of any kind (including any
agreement to give any of the foregoing, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement or any lease in the nature thereof).

“Loan” means any Revolving Loan, Competitive Bid Loan or Swing Loan.

“Loan Documents” means this Agreement, the Notes, each Guaranty, each Pledge Agreement (if any), the Fee Letters, each Letter of
Credit and each other LC Document.

“Loss” has the meaning provided in Section 11.24.

“Margin Stock” has the meaning provided in Regulation U.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any or all of the following: (i) any material adverse effect on the business, operations, property or
financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole; (ii) any material adverse effect on the ability of the Borrower or the
Credit Parties, taken as a whole, to perform its or their obligations under any of the Loan Documents; (iii) any material adverse effect on the
ability of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to pay their liabilities and obligations as they mature or become due; or (iv) any
material adverse effect on the validity, effectiveness or enforceability, as against any Credit Party, of any of the Loan Documents to which it is a
party; provided, however, that, none of the Disclosed Matters shall be deemed to have had or constitute a Material Adverse Effect for purposes
of the representations and warranties set forth in Section 5.05 and Section 5.13 hereof, or would constitute an Event of Default under Section
8.01(j) hereof, except to the extent that there is a change in the status of such Disclosed Matters after the Closing Date which has had a Material
Adverse Effect.
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“Material Agreements” means those agreements listed on Schedule 2.

“Material Indebtedness” means, as to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, any particular Indebtedness of the Borrower or such
Subsidiary (including any Guaranty Obligations) in excess of the aggregate principal amount of $30,000,000 (or the Dollar Equivalent thereof).

“Material Indebtedness Agreement” means any agreement governing or evidencing any Material Indebtedness.

“Maximum Rate” has the meaning provided in Section 11.23.

“Minimum Borrowing Amount” means (i) with respect to any Base Rate Loan, $1,000,000 (or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in any
Designated Foreign Currency), with minimum increments thereafter of $100,000 (or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in any Designated Foreign
Currency), (ii) with respect to any Eurodollar Loan or Foreign Currency Loan, $5,000,000 (or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in any Designated
Foreign Currency), with minimum increments thereafter of $1,000,000 (or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in any Designated Foreign Currency),
and (iii) with respect to Swing Loans, $500,000, with minimum increments thereafter of $100,000.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and its successors.

“Multi-Employer Plan” means a multi-employer plan, as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA to which the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is making or accruing an obligation to make contributions or has within any of the
preceding five plan years made or accrued an obligation to make contributions.

“Multiple Employer Plan” means an employee benefit plan, other than a Multi-Employer Plan, to which the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate, and one or more employers other than the Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower or an
ERISA Affiliate, is making or accruing an obligation to make contributions or, in the event that any such plan has been terminated, to which the
Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower or an ERISA Affiliate made or accrued an obligation to make contributions during any of the five
plan years preceding the date of termination of such plan.

“1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Non-Consenting Lender” has the meaning provided in Section 2.16(b).

“Non-Defaulting Lender” means, at any time, a Lender that is not a Defaulting Lender.

“Non-Increasing Lender” has the meaning in Section 2.02(b).

“Note” means a Revolving Facility Note, Competitive Bid Note or a Swing Line Note, as applicable.

“Notice of Borrowing” has the meaning provided in Section 2.06(b).

“Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing” has the meaning provided in Section 2.03(b).

“Notice of Continuation or Conversion” has the meaning provided in Section 2.10(b).

“Notice of Swing Loan Refunding” has the meaning provided in Section 2.04(b).
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“Notice Office” means the office of the Administrative Agent at 303 Peachtree Street, N.E., 25th Floor, Atlanta, Georgia, 30308,
Attention: Tony Curry, Agency Services (facsimile: (404) 495-2170), Email: agency.services@suntrust.com; with a copy to 3333 Peachtree
Road, 8th Floor, Atlanta, Georgia, 30326, Attention: Johnetta Bush, Portfolio Manager (facsimile: (404) 439-7411), or such other office as the
Administrative Agent may designate in writing to the Borrower from time to time.

“Obligations” means (i) all amounts, indemnities and reimbursement obligations, direct or indirect, contingent or absolute, of every
type or description, and at any time existing, owing by the Borrower or any other Credit Party to the Administrative Agent, any Lender, the
Swing Line Lender or any LC Issuer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other Loan Document (including, but not limited to,
interest and fees that accrue after the commencement by or against any Credit Party of any insolvency proceeding, regardless of whether
allowed or allowable in such proceeding or subject to an automatic stay under Section 362(a) of the Bankruptcy Code) and (ii) all obligations
owing under any Designated Hedge Agreement; provided, however, that with respect to any Guarantor, the Obligations shall not include any
Excluded Swap Obligations.

“OFAC” shall mean the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control.

“Operating Lease” as applied to any Person means any lease of any property (whether real, personal or mixed) by that Person as lessee
that, in conformity with GAAP, is not accounted for as a Capital Lease on the balance sheet of that Person.

“Organizational Documents” means, with respect to any Person (other than an individual), such Person’s articles (certificate) of
incorporation, or equivalent formation documents, and bylaws (regulations), or equivalent governing documents, and, in the case of any
partnership, includes any partnership agreement, and, in the case of any limited liability company, includes any operating agreement, and, in
each case, and any amendments to any of the foregoing.

“Original Due Date” has the meaning provided in Section 11.24.

“Parent Company” means, with respect to a Lender, the bank holding company (as defined in Federal Reserve Board Regulation Y), if
any, of such Lender, and/or any Person owning, beneficially or of record, directly or indirectly, a majority of the shares of such Lender.

“Payment Office” means the office of the Administrative Agent at 303 Peachtree Street, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia, 30308, or such other
office(s), as the Administrative Agent may designate to the Borrower in writing from time to time.

“PBGC” means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation established pursuant to Section 4002 of ERISA, or any successor thereto.

“Permitted Acquisition” means any Acquisition as to which all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(i)    such Acquisition involves a line or lines of business that is or are, in the good faith discretion of the Borrower’s
management, complementary to the lines of business in which the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, considered as an entirety, are engaged
on the Closing Date;

(ii)    no Default or Event of Default shall exist prior to or immediately after giving effect to such Acquisition;
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(iii)    the Borrower would, after giving effect to such Acquisition, on a pro forma basis (as determined in accordance with
subpart (v) below), be in compliance with each of the financial covenants contained in Section 7.07;

(iv)    the sum of (A) the Borrower’s unrestricted cash and Cash Equivalents and (B) the amount of the Unused Commitment
shall be equal to or greater than $5,000,000, both immediately before and after giving effect to such Acquisition; and

(v)    at least five Business Days prior to the consummation of any such Acquisition in which both (i) the Consideration
exceeds $75,000,000 and (ii) the Leverage Ratio equals or exceeds 2.00 to 1.00 (determined on a pro forma basis as described in clause
(A) immediately below), the Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent (A) a certificate of an Authorized Officer
demonstrating, in reasonable detail, the computation of the financial covenants referred to in Section 7.07 on a pro forma basis, such
pro forma ratios being determined as if (y) such Acquisition had been completed at the beginning of the most recent Testing Period for
which financial information for the Borrower and the business or Person to be acquired, is available, and (z) any such Indebtedness, or
other Indebtedness incurred to finance such Acquisition, had been outstanding for such entire Testing Period, and (B) historical
financial statements relating to the business or Person to be acquired and such other information as the Administrative Agent may
reasonably request.

“Permitted Foreign Subsidiary Investments” means Investments by a Credit Party to or in a Foreign Subsidiary made on or after the
Closing Date in the ordinary course of business, so long as the aggregate amount of all such Investments by all Credit Parties does not, at any
time, exceed $125,000,000, it being understood and agreed that such limitation shall not limit, and shall exclude, any Acquisition of a Foreign
Subsidiary to the extent such Acquisition meets the criteria set forth in the definition of “Permitted Acquisition”.

“Permitted Lien” means any Lien permitted by Section 7.03.

“Person” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, firm, corporation, limited liability company, association, trust or other
enterprise or any government or political subdivision or any agency, department or instrumentality thereof.

“Plan” means any Multi-Employer Plan or Single-Employer Plan.

“Pledge Agreement” means each pledge agreement, share charge or similar agreement, in each case, in form and substance satisfactory
to the Administrative Agent, executed and delivered by the Borrower and/or any Subsidiary Guarantor to the Administrative Agent, for the
benefit of the Lenders pursuant to Section 6.08(b).

“Potential Defaulting Lender” means, at any time, a Lender (i) as to which the Administrative Agent has notified the Borrower that
Distress Event has occurred and is continuing in respect of any financial institution affiliate of such Lender, or (ii) whose Parent Company or a
financial institution affiliate thereof has notified the Administrative Agent, or has stated publicly, that such Person will not comply with its
funding obligations under any other loan agreement or credit agreement or other similar/other financing agreement unless such failure is based
on such Person’s reasonable and good faith determination that the conditions precedent to funding such obligation have not been satisfied. The
Administrative Agent will promptly send to all parties hereto a copy of any notice to the Borrower provided for in this definition.

“primary Indebtedness” has the meaning provided in the definition of “Guaranty Obligations.”
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“primary obligor” has the meaning provided in the definition of “Guaranty Obligations.”

“Purchase Date” has the meaning provided in Section 2.04(c).

“Qualified ECP Guarantor” shall mean, in respect of any Swap Obligation, each Credit Party that has total assets exceeding
$10,000,000 at the time the relevant Guaranty becomes effective with respect to such Swap Obligation or such other person as constitutes an
“eligible contract participant” under the Commodity Exchange Act or any regulations promulgated thereunder and can cause another Person to
qualify as an “eligible contract participant” at such time by entering into a keepwell under Section 1a(18)(A)(v)(II) of the Commodity
Exchange Act.

“Quoted Rate” means, with respect to any Swing Loan, the Base Rate.

“RCRA” means the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as the same may be amended from time to time, 42 U.S.C. § 6901 et.
seq.

“Real Property” of any Person means all of the right, title and interest of such Person in and to land, improvements and fixtures,
including Leaseholds.

“Regulation D” means Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System as from time to time in effect and any
successor to all or a portion thereof establishing reserve requirements.

“Regulation U” means Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System as from time to time in effect and any
successor to all or a portion thereof establishing margin requirements.

“Related Parties” means, with respect to any Person, such Person’s Affiliates and the directors, officers, employees, agents and advisors
of such Person and of such Person’s Affiliates.

“Release” or “Released” has the meaning stated in Section 101(22) of CERCLA.

“Reportable Event” means an event described in Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations thereunder with respect to a Plan, other than
those events as to which the notice requirement is waived under subsection .22, .23, .25, .27, .28, .29, .30, .31, .32, .34, .35, .62, .63, .64, .65 or
.67 of PBGC Regulation Section 4043.

“Required Lenders” means, (i) at any time prior to the date on which the Commitments have been terminated, Lenders whose Credit
Facility Exposure and Unused Revolving Commitments constitute more than 50% of the sum of the Aggregate Credit Facility Exposure and the
Unused Total Revolving Commitment, and (ii) at any time on or after the date on which the Commitments have been terminated, the Lenders
that hold more than 50% of the sum of (A) the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure, (B) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans,
and (C) the outstanding principal amount of Competitive Bid Loans; provided that, as set forth in Section 11.26, the Commitment of, and the
portion of the sum of the Aggregate Credit Facility Exposure and the Unused Total Revolving Commitment held or deemed held by, any
Defaulting Lender shall be excluded for purposes of making a determination of Required Lenders.

“Restricted Payment” means (i) any Capital Distribution; or (ii) any amount paid by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in
repayment, redemption, retirement, repurchase, direct or indirect, of any Subordinated Indebtedness.
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“Revolving Borrowing” means the incurrence of Revolving Loans consisting of one Type of Revolving Loan by the Borrower from all
of the Lenders having Revolving Commitments in respect thereof on a pro rata basis on a given date (or resulting from Conversions or
Continuations on a given date) in the same currency, having in the case of any Fixed Rate Loans the same Interest Period.

“Revolving Commitment” means, with respect to each Lender, the obligation of such Lender to make Revolving Loans and to
participate in Letters of Credit in the amount set forth opposite such Lender’s name in Schedule 1 as its “Revolving Commitment” or in the
case of any Lender that becomes a party hereto pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, the amount set forth in such Assignment Agreement, as
such commitment may be reduced from time to time pursuant to Section 2.12(c) or increased from time to time pursuant to Section 2.02(b) or
adjusted from time to time as a result of assignments to or from such Lender pursuant to Section 11.06.

“Revolving Facility Availability Period” means the period from the Closing Date until the Revolving Facility Termination Date.

“Revolving Facility Exposure” means, for any Lender at any time, the Dollar Equivalent of the sum of (i) the principal amount of
Revolving Loans made by such Lender and outstanding at such time, (ii) such Lender’s share of the LC Outstandings at such time and (iii) for
purposes of Sections 2.02(a), 2.05(a), 2.13(b)(ii) and 11.26(h), the Swing Line Exposure of such Lender.

“Revolving Facility Note” means a promissory note substantially in the form of Exhibit A-1.

“Revolving Facility Percentage” means, at any time for any Lender, the percentage obtained by dividing such Lender’s Revolving
Commitment by the Total Revolving Commitment, provided, however, that if the Total Revolving Commitment has been terminated, the
Revolving Facility Percentage for each Lender shall be determined by dividing such Lender’s Revolving Commitment immediately prior to
such termination by the Total Revolving Commitment immediately prior to such termination. The Revolving Facility Percentage of each
Lender as of the Closing Date is set forth on Schedule 1.

“Revolving Facility Termination Date” means the earlier of (i) July 30, 2019, or (ii) the date that the Commitments have been
terminated pursuant to Section 8.02.

“Revolving Loan” means, with respect to each Lender, any loan made by such Lender pursuant to Section 2.02.

“Sale and Lease-Back Transaction” means any arrangement with any Person providing for the leasing by the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of the Borrower of any property (except for temporary leases for a term, including any renewal thereof, of not more than one year
and except for leases between the Borrower and a Subsidiary or between Subsidiaries), which property has been or is to be sold or transferred
by the Borrower or such Subsidiary to such Person.

“Sanctioned Country” shall mean a country subject of a sanctions program identified on the list maintained by OFAC and available at
http://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/Pages/default.aspx, or as otherwise published from time to time.

“Sanctioned Person” shall mean (i) a Person named on the list of “Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons” maintained by
OFAC available at http://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-List/Pages/default.aspx, or as otherwise published from time to
time, (ii) a Person named on the lists maintained by the United Nations Security Council available at http://www.un.org/sc/committees/
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list_compend.shtml, or as otherwise published from time to time, (iii) a Person named on the lists maintained by the European Union
available at http://eeas.europa.eu/cfsp/sanctions/consol-list_en.htm, or as otherwise published from time to time, (iv) a Person named on the
lists maintained by Her Majesty’s Treasury available at http://www.hm-treasury.gov.uk/fin_sanctions_index.htm, or as otherwise published
from time to time or (v) (A) an agency of the government of a Sanctioned Country, (B) an organization controlled by a Sanctioned Country, or
(C) a person resident in a Sanctioned Country, to the extent subject of a sanctions program administered by OFAC.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC, a subsidiary of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and any successor
thereto.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“SEC Regulation D” means Regulation D as promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, as the same may be in effect
from time to time.

“Single-Employer Plan” means a single employer plan, as defined in Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA, to which the Borrower, any
Subsidiary of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is making or accruing an obligation to make contributions or, if any such plan has been
terminated, to which the Borrower, any Subsidiary of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate made or accrued an obligation to make
contributions during any of the five plan years preceding the date of termination of such plan.

“Special Subsidiary” means any of (i) Circor German Holdings and (ii) any Subsidiary of the Borrower substantially all of the assets of
which are equity interests in one or more Foreign Subsidiaries of the Borrower.

“Specified Restructuring Charges” means, for any period, non-recurring restructuring or special charges taken (in accordance with
GAAP) in connection with plant closings and/or the consolidation of operations that consist of (i) charges for severance payments, (ii) charges
for moving and relocation expenses, and (iii) non-cash charges for the write-downs of the book value of assets.

“Standard Permitted Lien” means any of the following: (i) Liens for taxes not yet delinquent or Liens for taxes, assessments or
governmental charges being contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings for which adequate reserves in accordance with GAAP
have been established; (ii) Liens in respect of property or assets imposed by law that were incurred in the ordinary course of business, such as
carriers’, suppliers’, warehousemen’s, materialmen’s and mechanics’ Liens and other similar Liens arising in the ordinary course of business,
that do not in the aggregate materially detract from the value of such property or assets or materially impair the use thereof in the operation of
the business of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and do not secure any Indebtedness; (iii) Liens created by this Agreement or the other
Loan Documents; (iv) Liens arising from judgments, decrees or attachments in circumstances not constituting an Event of Default under
Section 8.01(g); (v) Liens (other than any Lien imposed by ERISA) incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business in connection
with workers compensation, unemployment insurance and other types of social security, and mechanic’s Liens, carrier’s Liens, and other Liens
to secure the performance of tenders, statutory obligations, contract bids, government contracts, surety, appeal, customs, performance and
return-of-money bonds and other similar obligations, incurred in the ordinary course of business (exclusive of obligations in respect of the
payment for borrowed money), whether pursuant to statutory requirements, common law or consensual arrangements; (vi) easements, rights-of-
way, zoning or other restrictions, charges, encumbrances, defects in title, prior rights of other persons, and obligations contained in similar
instruments, in each case that do not secure Indebtedness and do not involve, either individually or in the aggregate, (A)
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a substantial disruption of the business activities of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries considered as an entirety, or (B) a Material Adverse
Effect; (vii) Liens arising from the rights of lessors under leases (including financing statements regarding property subject to lease) not in
violation of the requirements of this Agreement, provided that such Liens are only in respect of the property subject to, and secure only, the
respective lease (and any other lease with the same or an affiliated lessor); and (viii) rights of consignors of goods, whether or not perfected by
the filing of a financing statement under the UCC.

“Standby Letter of Credit” means any standby letter of credit issued for the purpose of supporting workers compensation, liability
insurance, releases of contract retention obligations, contract performance guarantee requirements and other bonding obligations or for other
lawful purposes.

“Stated Amount” of each Letter of Credit means the maximum amount available to be drawn thereunder (regardless of whether any
conditions or other requirements for drawing could then be met).

“Subordinated Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness that has been subordinated to the prior payment in full of all of the Obligations
pursuant to a written agreement or written terms reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders.

“Subordinated Obligations” has the meaning provided in Section 10.02.

“Subsidiary” of any Person means (i) any corporation more than 50% of whose stock of any class or classes having by the terms
thereof ordinary Voting Power to elect a majority of the directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether or not at the time stock of any
class or classes of such corporation shall have or might have Voting Power by reason of the happening of any contingency) is at the time owned
by such Person directly or indirectly through Subsidiaries, and (ii) any partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture or other
entity in which such Person directly or indirectly through Subsidiaries, owns more than 50% of the Equity Interests of such Person at the time
or in which such Person, one or more other Subsidiaries of such Person or such Person and one or more Subsidiaries of such Person, directly or
indirectly, has the power to direct the policies, management and affairs thereof. Unless otherwise expressly provided, all references herein to
“Subsidiary” means a Subsidiary of the Borrower.

“Subsidiary Guarantor” has the meaning provided in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

“SunTrust” means SunTrust Bank.

“Swap Obligation” shall mean, with respect to any Guarantor, any obligation to pay or perform under any agreement, contract or
transaction that constitutes a “swap” within the meaning of section 1a(47) of the Commodity Exchange Act.

“Swing Line Commitment” means $10,000,000.

“Swing Line Exposure” means, with respect to each Lender, the principal amount of the Swing Loans in which such Lender is legally
obligated either to make a Revolving Loan or to purchase a participation in accordance with Section 2.04(c), which shall equal such Lender’s
Revolving Facility Percentage of all outstanding Swing Loans.

“Swing Line Facility” means the credit facility established under Section 2.04 pursuant to the Swing Line Commitment of the Swing
Line Lender.

“Swing Line Lender” means SunTrust.
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“Swing Line Note” means a promissory note substantially in the form of Exhibit A‑3.

“Swing Loan” means any loan made by the Swing Line Lender under the Swing Line Facility pursuant to Section 2.04.

“Swing Loan Maturity Date” means, with respect to any Swing Loan, the earlier of (i) the last day of the period for such Swing Loan as
established by the Swing Line Lender and agreed to by the Borrower, which shall be less than 15 days, and (ii) the Revolving Facility
Termination Date.

“Swing Loan Participation” has the meaning provided in Section 2.04(c).

“Swing Loan Participation Amount” has the meaning provided in Section 2.04(c).

“Synthetic Lease” means any lease (i) that is accounted for by the lessee as an Operating Lease, and (ii) under which the lessee is
intended to be the “owner” of the leased property for federal income tax purposes.

“Tangible Assets” means, with respect to any Subsidiary of the Borrower as of any date, (i) the total assets of such Subsidiary that
would be shown on the balance sheet of such Subsidiary as of such date prepared in accordance with GAAP minus (ii) the net amount of all
assets of such Subsidiary that would be classified as Intangible Assets as of such date.

“Taxes” has the meaning provided in Section 3.03(a).

“Testing Period” means a single period consisting of the four consecutive fiscal quarters of the Borrower then last ended (whether or
not such quarters are all within the same fiscal year), except that if a particular provision of this Agreement indicates that a Testing Period shall
be of a different specified duration, such Testing Period shall consist of the particular fiscal quarter or quarters then last ended that are so
indicated in such provision.

“Total Revolving Commitment” means the sum of the Revolving Commitments of the Lenders as the same may be decreased pursuant
to Section 2.12(c) or increased pursuant to Section 2.02(b). As of the Closing Date, the amount of the Total Revolving Commitment is
$400,000,000.

“Total Consolidated Assets” means, as of any date, the total assets appearing on the most recently prepared consolidated balance sheet
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the end of the most recent fiscal quarter of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for which such balance
sheet has been provided in accordance with Section 6.01(a) or (b) (as applicable), prepared in accordance with GAAP; provided, that, in the
case of Section 7.02(e)(iii) only, such balance sheet date shall be December 31, 2013.

“Total Tangible Assets” means, as of any date, (i) the Total Consolidated Assets as of such date minus (ii) the net amount of all assets
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries that would be classified as Intangible Assets as of such date.

“Trading with the Enemy Act” shall mean the Trading with the Enemy Act of the United States of America (50 U.S.C. App. §§ 1 et
seq.), as amended and in effect from time to time.

“Type” means any type of Loan determined with respect to the interest option and currency denomination applicable thereto, which in
each case shall be a Base Rate Loan, a Eurodollar Loan or a Foreign Currency Loan.
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“UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect from time to time. Unless otherwise specified, the UCC shall refer to the
UCC as in effect in the State of New York.

“United States” and “U.S.” each means United States of America.

“Unreimbursed Drawing” means, with respect to any Letter of Credit, the aggregate Dollar or Dollar Equivalent amount, as applicable,
of the draws made on such Letter of Credit that have not been reimbursed by the Borrower or the applicable LC Obligor or converted to a
Revolving Loan pursuant to Section 2.05(f)(i), and, in each case, all interest that accrues thereon pursuant to this Agreement.

“Unused Commitment” means, at any time, the excess of (i) the Total Revolving Commitment at such time over (ii) the Aggregate
Credit Facility Exposure at such time.

“Unused Fees” has the meaning provided in Section 2.11(a).

“Unused Revolving Commitment” means, for any Lender at any time, the excess of (i) such Lender’s Revolving Commitment at such
time over (ii) such Lender’s Revolving Facility Exposure at such time.

“Unused Total Revolving Commitment” means, at any time, the excess of (i) the Total Revolving Commitment at such time over (ii)
the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure at such time.

“USA Patriot Act” means the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism (USA PATRIOT Act) Act of 2001.

“Voting Power” means, with respect to any Person, the exclusive ability to control, through the ownership of shares of capital stock,
partnership interests, membership interests or otherwise, the election of members of the board of directors or other similar governing body of
such Person, and the holding of a designated percentage of Voting Power of a Person means the ownership of shares of capital stock,
partnership interests, membership interests or other interests of such Person sufficient to control exclusively the election of that percentage of
the members of the board of directors or similar governing body of such Person.

Section 1.02    Computation of Time Periods. In this Agreement in the computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later
specified date, the word “from” means “from and including,” the words “to” and “until” each means “to but excluding” and the word “through”
means “through and including.”

Section 1.03    Accounting Terms. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all terms of an accounting or financial nature shall
be construed in accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time.

Section 1.04    Terms Generally. The definitions of terms herein shall apply equally to the singular and plural forms of the terms
defined. Whenever the context may require, any pronoun shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms. The words
“include,” “includes” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without limitation.” The word “will” shall be construed to
have the same meaning and effect as the word “shall.” Unless the context requires otherwise, (a) any definition of or reference to any
agreement, instrument or other document herein shall be construed as referring to such agreement, instrument or other document as from time
to time amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified (subject to any restrictions on such amendments, supplements or modifications
set forth herein), (b) any reference herein to any Person shall be construed to include such Person’s successors and assigns, (c) the words
“herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder,” and words of similar import, shall be construed to refer to this Agreement in its entirety and not to any
particular provision hereof, (d) all references herein to Sections,

-27-



Schedules and Exhibits shall be construed to refer to Sections of, and Schedules and Exhibits to, this Agreement, (e) the words “asset” and
“property” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect and to refer to any and all Real Property, tangible and intangible assets and
properties, including cash, securities, accounts and contract rights, and interests in any of the foregoing, and (f) any reference to a statute, rule
or regulation is to that statute, rule or regulation as now enacted or as the same may from time to time be amended, re-enacted or expressly
replaced.

Section 1.05    Currency Equivalents. Except as otherwise specified herein, all references herein or in any other Loan Document to a
dollar amount shall mean such amount in U.S. Dollars or, if the context so requires, the Dollar Equivalent of such amount in any Designated
Foreign Currency. The Dollar Equivalent of any amount shall be determined in accordance with the definition of “Dollar Equivalent”; provided,
however, that notwithstanding the foregoing or anything elsewhere in this Agreement to the contrary, in calculating the Dollar Equivalent of
any amount for purposes of determining (i) the Borrower’s obligation to prepay Loans or cash collateralize Letters of Credit pursuant to Section
2.13(b), or (ii) the Borrower’s ability to request additional Loans or Letters of Credit pursuant to the Commitments, the Administrative Agent
may, in the case of either of the foregoing, in its discretion, calculate the Dollar Equivalent of such amount on any Business Day selected by the
Administrative Agent.

ARTICLE II.     

THE TERMS OF THE CREDIT FACILITY

Section 2.01    Establishment of the Credit Facility. On the Closing Date, and subject to and upon the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, the Administrative Agent, the Lenders, the Swing Line Lender and each LC Issuer agree to
establish the Credit Facility for the benefit of the Borrower; provided, however, that at no time will (i) the Aggregate Credit Facility Exposure
exceed the Total Revolving Commitment, or (ii) the Credit Facility Exposure of any Lender exceed the aggregate amount of such Lender’s
Commitment.

Section 2.02    Revolving Facility.

(a)    Generally. During the Revolving Facility Availability Period, each Lender severally agrees, on the terms and conditions set forth
in this Agreement, to make a Revolving Loan or Revolving Loans to the Borrower from time to time pursuant to such Lender’s Revolving
Commitment, which Revolving Loans (i) may, except as set forth herein, at the option of the Borrower, be incurred and maintained as, or
Converted into, Revolving Loans that are Base Rate Loans, Eurodollar Loans or Foreign Currency Loans, in each case denominated in Dollars
or a Designated Foreign Currency, provided that all Revolving Loans made as part of the same Revolving Borrowing shall consist of Revolving
Loans of the same Type; (ii) may be repaid or prepaid and reborrowed in accordance with the provisions hereof; and (iii) shall not be made if,
after giving effect to any such Revolving Loan, (A) the Revolving Facility Exposure of any Lender would exceed such Lender’s Revolving
Commitment, (B) the sum of (1) the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure, (2) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans, and (3) the
outstanding principal amount of Competitive Bid Loans, would exceed the Total Revolving Commitment, or (C) the Borrower would be
required to prepay Loans or cash collateralize Letters of Credit pursuant to Section 2.13(b).

(b)    Increase in Revolving Commitments. The Borrower may, by written notice to the Administrative Agent, request that the Total
Revolving Commitment be increased by an amount not to exceed $200,000,000 in the aggregate for all such increases from the Closing Date
until the Revolving Facility Termination Date, provided that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing at the time of such
request and on the date of any such increase. The Administrative Agent shall deliver a copy of such
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request to each Lender. The Borrower shall set forth in each such request the amount of the requested increase in the Total Revolving
Commitment (which amount shall be in minimum increments of $10,000,000 and a minimum amount of at least $10,000,000) and the date on
which such increase is requested to become effective (which shall be not less than 10 Business Days nor more than 60 days after the date of
such notice and that, in any event, must be at least 180 days prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date), and shall offer each Lender the
opportunity to increase its Revolving Commitment by its Revolving Facility Percentage of the proposed increased amount. Each Lender shall,
by notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent given not more than 10 days after the date of the Administrative Agent’s notice, either
agree to increase its Revolving Commitment by all or a portion of the offered amount (each such Lender so agreeing being an “Increasing
Lender”) or decline to increase its Revolving Commitment (and any such Lender that does not deliver such a notice within such period of 10
days shall be deemed to have declined to increase its Revolving Commitment and each Lender so declining or being deemed to have declined
being a “Non-Increasing Lender”). If, on the 10th day after the Administrative Agent shall have delivered notice as set forth above, the
Increasing Lenders shall have agreed pursuant to the preceding sentence to increase their Revolving Commitments by an aggregate amount less
than the increase in the Total Revolving Commitment requested by the Borrower, the Borrower may arrange for one or more banks or other
entities that are Eligible Assignees, in each case reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent, such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed (each such Person so agreeing being an “Augmenting Lender”), to commit to making Revolving Loans
pursuant to a Revolving Commitment hereunder in an amount no less than $10,000,000, and the Borrower and each Augmenting Lender shall
execute all such documentation as the Administrative Agent shall reasonably specify to evidence its Revolving Commitment and/or its status as
a Lender with a Revolving Commitment hereunder. Any increase in the Total Revolving Commitment may be made in an amount that is less
than the increase requested by the Borrower if the Borrower is unable to arrange for, or chooses not to arrange for, Augmenting Lenders. No
such increase in the Revolving Commitments shall be effective unless (I) (x) all conditions set forth in Section 4.02, both before and after
giving effect to such increase, shall have been satisfied and (y) the Borrower shall be in compliance with the financial covenants referred to in
Section 7.07 on a pro forma basis after giving effect to such increase (assuming, for purposes of this clause (y), that Revolving Loans in an
amount equal to the amount of such increase in the Revolving Commitments have been fully funded) and (II) the Borrower shall have provided
to the Administrative Agent a certificate of an Authorized Officer (and the Administrative Agent shall deliver a copy of such certificate to each
Lender) demonstrating, in reasonable detail, computation of the financial covenants required by the immediately preceding clause (y) and
certifying that the conditions set forth in the immediately preceding clause (x) have been satisfied.

Each of the parties hereto agrees that the Administrative Agent may take any and all actions as may be reasonably necessary to ensure
that after giving effect to any increase in the Total Revolving Commitment pursuant to this Section 2.02, the outstanding Revolving Loans (if
any) are held by the Lenders with Revolving Commitments in accordance with their new Revolving Facility Percentages. This may be
accomplished at the discretion of the Administrative Agent:  (w) by requiring the outstanding Loans to be prepaid with the proceeds of new
Borrowings; (x) by causing the Non-Increasing Lenders to assign portions of their outstanding Loans (but not their Revolving Commitments) to
Increasing Lenders and Augmenting Lenders; (y) by permitting the Borrowings outstanding at the time of any increase in the Total Revolving
Commitment pursuant to this Section 2.02(b) to remain outstanding until the last days of the respective Interest Periods therefor, even though
the Lenders would hold such Borrowings other than in accordance with their new Revolving Facility Percentages; or (z) by any combination of
the foregoing.  Any prepayment or assignment described in this paragraph (b) shall be subject to Section 3.02, but otherwise without premium
or penalty.
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Section 2.03    Competitive Bid Loans.

(a)    Generally. Each Lender severally agrees that the Borrower may make Competitive Bid Borrowings under this Section 2.03 from
time to time on any Business Day during the period from the Closing Date until the date occurring 30 days prior to the Revolving Facility
Termination Date in the manner set forth below; provided that Borrower shall not be permitted to request any Competitive Bid Borrowing (and
no Lender shall be required to make any Competitive Bid Loan) if after giving effect thereto the sum of (1) the Aggregate Revolving Facility
Exposure, (2) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans, and (3) the outstanding principal amount of Competitive Bid Loans, would
exceed the Total Revolving Commitment.

(b)    Requests for Competitive Bid Borrowings. The Borrower may request a Competitive Bid Borrowing under this Section 2.03 by
delivering to the Administrative Agent a written notice of such request substantially in the form of Exhibit B-2 (each such notice, a “Notice of
Competitive Bid Borrowing”), specifying therein the requested (a) date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (b) aggregate amount of
such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (c) interest rate basis and day count convention to be offered by the Lenders, (d) currency of such
proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (e) in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Fixed Rate Loans, the initial Interest
Period, or in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loans, the maturity date for repayment of each
Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loan to be made as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing (which maturity date may not be earlier than the date
occurring seven days after the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing or later than the earlier of (A) 180 days after the date of such
Competitive Bid Borrowing and (B) the Revolving Facility Termination Date), (f) interest payment date or dates relating thereto, (g) location of
the Borrower’s account to which funds are to be advanced and (h) other terms (if any) to be applicable to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, not
later than (i) 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) at least two Business Days prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing,
if the Borrower shall specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the rates of interest to be offered by the Lenders shall be fixed
rates per annum (the Competitive Bid Loans comprising any such Competitive Bid Borrowing being referred to herein as “Competitive Bid
Fixed Rate Loans”) and that the Competitive Bid Loans comprising such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be denominated in
Dollars, and (ii) 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) at least four Business Days prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid
Borrowing, if the Borrower shall specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the Competitive Bid Loans comprising such
Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be Eurodollar Loans or Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loans denominated in any Foreign Currency. Each
Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be irrevocable and binding on the Borrower. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each
Lender of each request for a Competitive Bid Borrowing received by it from the Borrower by sending such Lender a copy of the related Notice
of Competitive Bid Borrowing.

(c)    Offers to Make Competitive Bid Loans. Upon the Borrower’s request in accordance with subpart (b) above, each Lender may, if,
in its sole discretion, it elects to do so, irrevocably offer to make one or more Competitive Bid Loans to the Borrower at a rate or rates of
interest specified by such Lender in its sole discretion, by notifying the Administrative Agent, (i) before 11:00 A.M. (local time at its Notice
Office) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Competitive Bid
Fixed Rate Loans denominated in Dollars, and (ii) before 11:00 A.M. (local time at its Notice Office) three Business Days before the date of
such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Eurodollar Loans or Competitive Bid
Fixed Rate Loans denominated in any Foreign Currency, of the minimum amount and maximum amount of each Competitive Bid Loan which
such Lender would be willing to make as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing (which amounts or the Dollar Equivalent thereof may,
subject to the proviso to the first sentence
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of Section 2.03(a), exceed such Lender’s Commitment, if any), the rate or rates of interest therefor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Lender
shall make an offer to make any Competitive Bid Loan pursuant to this Section if the making of such Competitive Bid Loan would result in an
obligation by the Borrower to reimburse or otherwise compensate such Lender for any withholding or other tax pursuant to Section 3.03 or
otherwise reimburse, compensate or indemnify such Lender for any increased costs pursuant to Section 3.01 or otherwise. If any Lender shall
elect not to make such an offer, such Lender shall so notify the Administrative Agent before 10:00 A.M. (local time at its Notice Office) on the
date on which notice of such election is to be given to the Administrative Agent by the other Lenders, and such Lender shall not be obligated to,
and shall not, make any Competitive Bid Loan as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing; provided that the failure by any Lender to give such
notice shall not cause such Lender to be obligated to make any Competitive Bid Loan as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing.

(d)    Acceptance or Cancellation of Competitive Bid Loan.

(i)    The Borrower shall, (A) before 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid
Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loans denominated in Dollars, and
(B) before 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) three Business Days before the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing,
in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Eurodollar Loans or Competitive Bid Fixed Rate Loans denominated in any
Foreign Currency, either:

(1)    cancel such Competitive Bid Borrowing by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect, or

(2)    accept one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to subpart (c) above, in its sole
discretion, by giving notice to the Administrative Agent of the amount of each Competitive Bid Advance (which amount shall
be equal to or greater than the minimum amount, and equal to or less than the maximum amount, notified to the Borrower by
the Administrative Agent on behalf of such Lender for such Competitive Bid Loan pursuant to subpart (c) above) to be made
by each Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, and reject any remaining offers made by Lenders pursuant to
subpart (c) above by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect. The Borrower shall accept the offers made by any
Lender or Lenders to make Competitive Bid Loans in order of the lowest to the highest rates of interest offered by such
Lenders. If two or more Lenders have offered the same interest rate, the amount to be borrowed at such interest rate will be
allocated among such Lenders in proportion to the amount that each such Lender offered at such interest rate.

(ii)    If the Borrower proposing the Competitive Bid Borrowing notifies the Administrative Agent that such Competitive Bid
Borrowing is cancelled pursuant to subpart (d)(i)(1) above, the Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice thereof to the Lenders
and such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall not be made.

(iii)    If the Borrower accepts one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to (d)(i)(2) above, the
Administrative Agent shall promptly notify (A) each Lender that has made an offer to make a Competitive Bid Loan, of the date and
aggregate amount of such Competitive Bid Borrowing and whether or not any such offer or offers made by such Lender have been
accepted by the Borrower, (B) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Loan as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, of the
amount of each Competitive Bid Loan to be made by such Lender as part of
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such Competitive Bid Borrowing, and (C) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Loan as part of such Competitive Bid
Borrowing, upon receipt, that the Administrative Agent has received forms of documents appearing to fulfill the applicable conditions
set forth in Article IV.

(iv)    If the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent that it accepts one or more of the offers made by any Lender or
Lenders to make a Competitive Bid Loan, such notice of acceptance shall be irrevocable and binding on the Borrower. The Borrower
shall indemnify each Lender against any loss, cost or expense incurred by such Lender as a result of any failure to fulfill on or before
the date specified in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing for such Competitive Bid Borrowing the applicable conditions
set forth in Article IV, including, without limitation, any loss, cost or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of
deposits or other funds acquired by such Lender to fund the Competitive Bid Loan to be made by such Lender as part of such
Competitive Bid Borrowing when such Competitive Bid Loan, as a result of such failure, is not made on such date.

Section 2.04    Swing Line Facility.

(a)    Swing Loans. During the Revolving Facility Availability Period, the Swing Line Lender agrees, on the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement, to make a Swing Loan or Swing Loans to the Borrower from time to time, which Swing Loans (i) shall be payable on
the Swing Loan Maturity Date applicable to each such Swing Loan; (ii) shall be made only in U.S. Dollars; (iii) may be repaid or prepaid and
reborrowed in accordance with the provisions hereof; (iv) may only be made if after giving effect thereto (A) the aggregate principal amount of
Swing Loans outstanding does not exceed the Swing Line Commitment, (B) the sum of (1) the Revolving Facility Exposure of any Lender and
(2) the Swing Line Exposure of such Lender, does not exceed such Lender’s Revolving Commitment and (C) the sum of (1) the Aggregate
Revolving Facility Exposure, (2) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans, and (3) the outstanding principal amount of Competitive
Bid Loans, would exceed the Total Revolving Commitment; (v) shall not be made if, after giving effect thereto, the Borrower would be
required to prepay Loans or cash collateralize Letters of Credit pursuant to Section 2.13(b); and (vi) shall not be made if the proceeds thereof
would be used to repay, in whole or in part, any outstanding Swing Loan.

(b)    Swing Loan Refunding. The Swing Line Lender may at any time, in its sole and absolute discretion, direct that the Swing Loans
owing to it be refunded by delivering a notice to such effect to the Administrative Agent, specifying the aggregate principal amount thereof (a
“Notice of Swing Loan Refunding”). Promptly upon receipt of a Notice of Swing Loan Refunding, the Administrative Agent shall give notice
of the contents thereof to the Lenders with Revolving Commitments and, unless an Event of Default specified in Section 8.01(h) in respect of
the Borrower has occurred, the Borrower. Each such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding shall be deemed to constitute delivery by the Borrower
of a Notice of Borrowing requesting Revolving Loans consisting of Base Rate Loans in the amount of the Swing Loans to which it relates.
Each Lender with a Revolving Commitment (including the Swing Line Lender) hereby unconditionally agrees (notwithstanding that any of the
conditions specified in Section 4.02 or elsewhere in this Agreement shall not have been satisfied, but subject to the provisions of paragraph (d)
below) to make a Revolving Loan to the Borrower in the amount of such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the aggregate amount of
the Swing Loans to which such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding relates. Each such Lender shall make the amount of such Revolving Loan
available to the Administrative Agent in immediately available funds at the Payment Office not later than 1:00 P.M. (local time at the Payment
Office), if such notice is received by such Lender prior to 11:00 A.M. (local time at its Domestic Lending Office), or not later than 1:00 P.M.
(local time at the Payment Office) on the next Business Day, if such notice is received by such Lender after such time. The proceeds of such
Revolving Loans shall be made immediately available
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to the Swing Line Lender and applied by it to repay the principal amount of the Swing Loans to which such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding
relates.

(c)    Swing Loan Participation. If prior to the time a Revolving Loan would otherwise have been made as provided above as a
consequence of a Notice of Swing Loan Refunding, any of the events specified in Section 8.01(h) shall have occurred in respect of the
Borrower or one or more of the Lenders with Revolving Commitments shall determine that it is legally prohibited from making a Revolving
Loan under such circumstances, each Lender (other than the Swing Line Lender), or each Lender (other than such Swing Line Lender) so
prohibited, as the case may be, shall, on the date such Revolving Loan would have been made by it (the “Purchase Date”), purchase an
undivided participating interest (a “Swing Loan Participation”) in the outstanding Swing Loans to which such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding
relates, in an amount (the “Swing Loan Participation Amount”) equal to such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of such outstanding
Swing Loans. On the Purchase Date, each such Lender or each such Lender so prohibited, as the case may be, shall pay to the Swing Line
Lender, in immediately available funds, such Lender’s Swing Loan Participation Amount, and promptly upon receipt thereof the Swing Line
Lender shall, if requested by such other Lender, deliver to such Lender a participation certificate, dated the date of the Swing Line Lender’s
receipt of the funds from, and evidencing such Lender’s Swing Loan Participation in, such Swing Loans and its Swing Loan Participation
Amount in respect thereof. If any amount required to be paid by a Lender to the Swing Line Lender pursuant to the above provisions in respect
of any Swing Loan Participation is not paid on the date such payment is due, such Lender shall pay to the Swing Line Lender on demand
interest on the amount not so paid at the overnight Federal Funds Effective Rate from the due date until such amount is paid in full. Whenever,
at any time after the Swing Line Lender has received from any other Lender such Lender’s Swing Loan Participation Amount, the Swing Line
Lender receives any payment from or on behalf of the Borrower on account of the related Swing Loans, the Swing Line Lender will promptly
distribute to such Lender its ratable share of such amount based on its Revolving Facility Percentage of such amount on such date on account of
its Swing Loan Participation (appropriately adjusted, in the case of interest payments, to reflect the period of time during which such Lender’s
participating interest was outstanding and funded); provided, however, that if such payment received by the Swing Line Lender is required to be
returned, such Lender will return to the Swing Line Lender any portion thereof previously distributed to it by the Swing Line Lender.

(d)    Obligations Unconditional. Each Lender’s obligation to make Revolving Loans pursuant to Section 2.04(b) and/or to purchase
Swing Loan Participations in connection with a Notice of Swing Loan Refunding shall be subject to the conditions that (i) such Lender shall
have received a Notice of Swing Loan Refunding complying with the provisions hereof and (ii) at the time the Swing Loans that are the subject
of such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding were made, the Swing Line Lender making the same had no actual written notice from another
Lender that an Event of Default had occurred and was continuing, but otherwise shall be absolute and unconditional, shall be solely for the
benefit of the Swing Line Lender that gives such Notice of Swing Loan Refunding, and shall not be affected by any circumstance, including,
without limitation, (A) any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other right that such Lender may have against any other Lender, any
Credit Party, or any other Person, or any Credit Party may have against any Lender or other Person, as the case may be, for any reason
whatsoever; (B) the occurrence or continuance of a Default or Event of Default; (C) any event or circumstance involving a Material Adverse
Effect; (D) any breach of any Loan Document by any party thereto; or (E) any other circumstance, happening or event, whether or not similar
to any of the foregoing.
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Section 2.05    Letters of Credit.

(a)    LC Issuances. During the Revolving Facility Availability Period, the Borrower may request an LC Issuance at any time and from
time to time to issue, for the account of the Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor, and subject to and upon the terms and conditions herein set
forth, each LC Issuer agrees to issue from time to time Letters of Credit denominated and payable in Dollars or any Designated Foreign
Currency and in each case in such form as may be approved by such LC Issuer and the Administrative Agent; provided, however, that
notwithstanding the foregoing, no LC Issuance shall be made if, after giving effect thereto, (i) the LC Outstandings would exceed the LC
Commitment Amount, (ii) the Revolving Facility Exposure of any Lender would exceed such Lender’s Revolving Commitment, (iii) the sum
of (A) the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure, (B) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans, and (C) the outstanding principal
amount of Competitive Bid Loans, would exceed the Total Revolving Commitment, (iv) the Borrower would be required to prepay Loans or
cash collateralize Letters of Credit pursuant to Section 2.13(b) or (v) any Lender is at such time a Defaulting Lender or an Impacted Lender
hereunder, unless such LC Issuer has entered into arrangements satisfactory to such LC Issuer (in its sole discretion) with the Borrower or such
Defaulting Lender or Impacted Lender to eliminate such LC Issuer’s actual or potential risk with respect to such Lender’s LC Participation.
Subject to Section 2.05(c) below, each Letter of Credit shall have an expiry date (including any renewal periods) occurring not later than the
earlier of (y) one year from the date of issuance thereof, or (z) 30 Business Days prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date. Letters of
Credit listed on Schedule 2.05 issued under the Existing Credit Agreement shall automatically be deemed to constitute and continue as Letters
of Credit issued hereunder on the Closing Date.

(b)    LC Requests. Whenever the Borrower desires that a Letter of Credit be issued for its account or the account of any eligible LC
Obligor, the Borrower shall give the Administrative Agent and the applicable LC Issuer written or telephonic notice (in the case of telephonic
notice, promptly confirmed in writing if so requested by the Administrative Agent) which, if in the form of written notice, shall be substantially
in the form of Exhibit B-4 (each such request, a “LC Request”), or transmit by electronic communication (if arrangements for doing so have
been approved by the applicable LC Issuer), prior to 11:00 A.M. (local time at the Notice Office) at least three Business Days (or such shorter
period as may be reasonably acceptable to the relevant LC Issuer) prior to the proposed date of issuance (which shall be a Business Day), which
LC Request shall include such supporting documents that such LC Issuer customarily requires in connection therewith (including, in the case of
a Letter of Credit for an account party other than the Borrower, an application for, and if applicable a reimbursement agreement with respect to,
such Letter of Credit). In the event of any inconsistency between any of the terms or provisions of any LC Document and the terms and
provisions of this Agreement respecting Letters of Credit, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall control.

(c)    Auto-Renewal Letters of Credit. If an LC Obligor so requests in any applicable LC Request, each LC Issuer shall agree to issue a
Letter of Credit that has automatic renewal provisions; provided, however, that any Letter of Credit that has automatic renewal provisions must
permit such LC Issuer to prevent any such renewal at least once in each twelve-month period (commencing with the date of issuance of such
Letter of Credit) by giving prior notice to the beneficiary thereof not later than one day in each such twelve-month period to be agreed upon at
the time such Letter of Credit is issued. Once any such Letter of Credit that has automatic renewal provisions has been issued, the Lenders shall
be deemed to have authorized (but may not require) such LC Issuer to permit the renewal of such Letter of Credit at any time to an expiry date
not later than 30 Business Days prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date; provided, however, that such LC Issuer shall not permit any
such renewal if (i) such LC Issuer has determined that it would have no obligation at such time to issue such Letter of Credit in its renewed
form under the terms hereof, or (ii) it has received notice (which may be by telephone or in writing) on or before the day that is two Business
Days before the
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date that such LC Issuer is permitted to send a notice of non-renewal from the Administrative Agent, any Lender or the Borrower that one or
more of the applicable conditions specified in Section 4.02 is not then satisfied.

(d)    Applicability of ISP98. Unless otherwise expressly agreed by the applicable LC Issuer and the applicable LC Obligor, when a
Letter of Credit is issued, (i) the rules of the “International Standby Practices 1998” published by the Institute of International Banking Law &
Practice (or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the time of issuance) shall apply to each Standby Letter of Credit, and (ii) the rules
of the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits, as most recently published by the International Chamber of Commerce at the
time of issuance (including the International Chamber of Commerce’s decision published by the Commission on Banking Technique and
Practice on April 6, 1998 regarding the European single currency (euro)) shall apply to each Commercial Letter of Credit.

(e)    Notice of LC Issuance. Each LC Issuer shall, on the date of each LC Issuance by it, give the Administrative Agent, each
applicable Lender and the Borrower written notice of such LC Issuance, accompanied by a copy to the Administrative Agent of the Letter of
Credit or Letters of Credit issued by it. Each LC Issuer shall provide to the Administrative Agent a quarterly (or monthly if requested by any
applicable Lender) summary describing each Letter of Credit issued by such LC Issuer and then outstanding and an identification for the
relevant period of the daily aggregate LC Outstandings represented by Letters of Credit issued by such LC Issuer.

(f)    Reimbursement Obligations.

(i)    The Borrower hereby agrees to reimburse (or cause any LC Obligor for whose account a Letter of Credit was issued to
reimburse) each LC Issuer, by making payment directly to such LC Issuer in immediately available funds at the payment office of such
LC Issuer, for any Unreimbursed Drawing with respect to any Letter of Credit immediately after, and in any event on the date on
which, such LC Issuer notifies the Borrower (or any such other LC Obligor for whose account such Letter of Credit was issued) of such
payment or disbursement (which notice to the Borrower (or such other LC Obligor) shall be delivered reasonably promptly after any
such payment or disbursement), such payment to be made in Dollars or in the applicable Designated Foreign Currency in which such
Letter of Credit is denominated, with interest on the amount so paid or disbursed by such LC Issuer. The Borrower will be deemed to
have given a Notice of Borrowing for Revolving Loans that are Base Rate Loans in an aggregate Dollar Equivalent principal amount
sufficient to reimburse such Unreimbursed Drawing (and the Administrative Agent shall promptly give notice to the Lenders of such
deemed Notice of Borrowing), the Lenders shall, unless they are legally prohibited from doing so, make the Revolving Loans
contemplated by such deemed Notice of Borrowing (which Revolving Loans shall be considered made under Section 2.02), and the
proceeds of such Revolving Loans shall be disbursed directly to the applicable LC Issuer to the extent necessary to effect such
reimbursement and repayment of the Unreimbursed Drawing, with any excess proceeds to be made available to the Borrower in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement. To the extent such Unreimbursed Drawing is not reimbursed prior to 1:00
P.M. (local time at the payment office of the applicable LC Issuer) on the date of such payment or disbursement, interest on such
Unreimbursed Drawing shall accrue, from and including the date paid or disbursed to but not including the date such LC Issuer is
reimbursed therefor at a rate per annum that shall be the rate then applicable to Revolving Loans pursuant to Section 2.09(a)(i) that are
Base Rate Loans or, if not reimbursed on the date of such payment or disbursement because the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure
exceeds the Revolving Commitment, then at the Default Rate, any such interest also to be payable on demand.
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(ii)    Obligations Absolute. Each LC Obligor’s obligation under this Section to reimburse each LC Issuer with respect to
Unreimbursed Drawings (including, in each case, interest thereon) shall be absolute and unconditional under any and all circumstances
and irrespective of any setoff, counterclaim or defense to payment that such LC Obligor may have or have had against such LC Issuer,
the Administrative Agent or any Lender, including, without limitation, any defense based upon the failure of any drawing under a
Letter of Credit to conform to the terms of the Letter of Credit or any non-application or misapplication by the beneficiary of the
proceeds of such drawing; provided, however, that no LC Obligor shall be obligated to reimburse an LC Issuer for any wrongful
payment made by such LC Issuer under a Letter of Credit as a result of acts or omissions constituting willful misconduct or gross
negligence on the part of such LC Issuer.

(g)    LC Participations.

(i)    Immediately upon each LC Issuance, the LC Issuer of such Letter of Credit shall be deemed to have sold and transferred to
each Lender with a Revolving Commitment, and each such Lender (each an “LC Participant”) shall be deemed irrevocably and
unconditionally to have purchased and received from such LC Issuer, without recourse or warranty, an undivided interest and
participation (an “LC Participation”), to the extent of such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the Stated Amount of such Letter
of Credit in effect at such time of issuance, in such Letter of Credit, each substitute Letter of Credit, each drawing made thereunder, the
obligations of any LC Obligor under this Agreement with respect thereto (although LC Fees relating thereto shall be payable directly to
the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders as provided in Section 2.11 and the LC Participants shall have no right to
receive any portion of any fees of the nature contemplated by Section 2.11(c), (d) or (e)), the obligations of any LC Obligor under any
LC Documents pertaining thereto, and any security for, or guaranty pertaining to, any of the foregoing.

(ii)    In determining whether to pay under any Letter of Credit, an LC Issuer shall not have any obligation relative to the LC
Participants other than to determine that any documents required to be delivered under such Letter of Credit have been delivered and
that they appear to comply on their face with the requirements of such Letter of Credit. Any action taken or omitted to be taken by an
LC Issuer under or in connection with any Letter of Credit, if taken or omitted in the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct,
shall not create for such LC Issuer any resulting liability.

(iii)    If an LC Issuer makes any payment under any Letter of Credit and the applicable LC Obligor shall not have reimbursed
such amount in full to such LC Issuer pursuant to Section 2.05(f), such LC Issuer shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent, and
the Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each LC Participant of such failure, and each LC Participant shall promptly and
unconditionally pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such LC Issuer, the amount of such LC Participant’s Revolving
Facility Percentage of such payment in Dollars or in the applicable Designated Foreign Currency in which such Letter of Credit is
denominated and in same-day funds; provided, however, that no LC Participant shall be obligated to pay to the Administrative Agent
its Revolving Facility Percentage of such unreimbursed amount for any wrongful payment made by such LC Issuer under a Letter of
Credit as a result of acts or omissions constituting willful misconduct or gross negligence on the part of such LC Issuer. If the
Administrative Agent so notifies any LC Participant required to fund a payment under a Letter of Credit prior to 11:00 A.M. (local time
at its Notice Office) on any Business Day, such LC Participant shall make available to the Administrative Agent for the account of the
relevant LC Issuer such LC Participant’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the amount of such payment on such Business Day in same-
day funds. If and to the extent such
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LC Participant shall not have so made its Revolving Facility Percentage of the amount of such payment available to the Administrative
Agent for the account of the relevant LC Issuer, such LC Participant agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such
LC Issuer, forthwith on demand, such amount, together with interest thereon, for each day from such date until the date such amount is
paid to the Administrative Agent for the account of such LC Issuer at the Federal Funds Effective Rate. The failure of any LC
Participant to make available to the Administrative Agent for the account of the relevant LC Issuer its Revolving Facility Percentage of
any payment under any Letter of Credit shall not relieve any other LC Participant of its obligation hereunder to make available to the
Administrative Agent for the account of such LC Issuer its Revolving Facility Percentage of any payment under any Letter of Credit on
the date required, as specified above, but no LC Participant shall be responsible for the failure of any other LC Participant to make
available to the Administrative Agent for the account of such LC Issuer such other LC Participant’s Revolving Facility Percentage of
any such payment.

(iv)    Whenever an LC Issuer receives a payment of a reimbursement obligation as to which the Administrative Agent has
received for the account of such LC Issuer any payments from the LC Participants pursuant to subpart (iii) above, such LC Issuer shall
pay to the Administrative Agent and the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to each LC Participant that has paid its Revolving
Facility Percentage thereof, in same-day funds, an amount equal to such LC Participant’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the principal
amount thereof and interest thereon accruing after the purchase of the respective LC Participations, as and to the extent so received.

(v)    The obligations of the LC Participants to make payments to the Administrative Agent for the account of each LC Issuer
with respect to Letters of Credit shall be irrevocable and not subject to counterclaim, set-off or other defense or any other qualification
or exception whatsoever and shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement under all circumstances,
including, without limitation, any of the following circumstances:

(A)    any lack of validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents;

(B)    the existence of any claim, set-off defense or other right that any LC Obligor may have at any time against a
beneficiary named in a Letter of Credit, any transferee of any Letter of Credit (or any Person for whom any such
transferee may be acting), the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer, any Lender, or other Person, whether in
connection with this Agreement, any Letter of Credit, the transactions contemplated herein or any unrelated
transactions (including any underlying transaction between the applicable LC Obligor and the beneficiary named in
any such Letter of Credit), other than any claim that the applicable LC Obligor may have against any applicable LC
Issuer for gross negligence or willful misconduct of such LC Issuer in making payment under any applicable Letter of
Credit;

(C)    any draft, certificate or other document presented under the Letter of Credit proving to be forged, fraudulent,
invalid or insufficient in any respect or any statement therein being untrue or inaccurate in any respect;

(D)    the surrender or impairment of any security for the performance or observance of any of the terms of any of the
Loan Documents; or

(E)    the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default.
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(vi)    To the extent any LC Issuer is not indemnified by the Borrower or any LC Obligor, the LC Participants will reimburse
and indemnify such LC Issuer, in proportion to their respective Revolving Facility Percentages, for and against any and all liabilities,
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, judgments, costs, expenses or disbursements of whatsoever kind or nature that
may be imposed on, asserted against or incurred by such LC Issuer in performing its respective duties in any way related to or arising
out of LC Issuances by it; provided, however, that no LC Participants shall be liable for any portion of such liabilities, obligations,
losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, judgments, costs, expenses or disbursements resulting from such LC Issuer’s gross
negligence or willful misconduct.

Section 2.06    Notice of Borrowing.

(a)    Time of Notice. Each Borrowing of a Loan (other than a Continuation or Conversion) shall be made upon notice in the form
provided for below which shall be provided by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent at its Notice Office not later than (i) in the case of
each Borrowing of a Fixed Rate Loan, 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) at least three Business Days’ prior to the date of such
Borrowing, (ii) in the case of each Borrowing of a Base Rate Loan, prior to 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) on the proposed date of
such Borrowing, and (iii) in the case of any Borrowing under the Swing Line Facility, prior to 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) on the
proposed date of such Borrowing. For the avoidance of doubt, each request for a Borrowing hereunder in a Designated Foreign Currency shall
be made only by the Borrower.

(b)    Notice of Borrowing. Each request for a Borrowing (other than a Competitive Bid Borrowing or a Continuation or Conversion)
shall be made by an Authorized Officer of the Borrower by delivering written notice of such request substantially in the form of Exhibit B-1
(each such notice, a “Notice of Borrowing”) or by telephone (to be confirmed immediately in writing by delivery by an Authorized Officer of
the Borrower of a Notice of Borrowing), and in any event each such request shall be irrevocable and shall specify (i) the aggregate principal
amount of the Loans to be made pursuant to such Borrowing, (ii) the date of the Borrowing (which shall be a Business Day), (iii) the Type of
Loans such Borrowing will consist of, and (iv) if applicable, the initial Interest Period, the Swing Loan Maturity Date (which shall be less than
15 days) and Designated Foreign Currency applicable thereto. Without in any way limiting the obligation of the Borrower to confirm in writing
any telephonic notice permitted to be given hereunder, the Administrative Agent may act prior to receipt of written confirmation without
liability upon the basis of such telephonic notice believed by the Administrative Agent in good faith to be from an Authorized Officer of the
Borrower entitled to give telephonic notices under this Agreement on behalf of the Borrower. In each such case, the Administrative Agent’s
record of the terms of such telephonic notice shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

(c)    Minimum Borrowing Amount. The aggregate principal amount of each Borrowing by the Borrower shall not be less than the
Minimum Borrowing Amount.

(d)    Maximum Borrowings. More than one Borrowing may be incurred by the Borrower on any day; provided, however, that (i) if
there are two or more Borrowings on a single day by the Borrower that consist of Fixed Rate Loans, each such Borrowing shall have a different
initial Interest Period, (ii) at no time shall there be more than seven Borrowings of Fixed Rate Loans outstanding hereunder, (iii) at no time
shall there be more than two Borrowings of Swing Loans outstanding hereunder, and (iv) at no time shall there be more than 10 Borrowings
outstanding hereunder.
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Section 2.07    Funding Obligations; Disbursement of Funds.

(a)    Several Nature of Funding Obligations. The Commitments of each Lender hereunder and the obligation of each Lender to make
Loans, acquire and fund Swing Loan Participations, and LC Participations, as the case may be, are several and not joint obligations. No Lender
shall be responsible for any default by any other Lender in its obligation to make Loans or fund any participation hereunder and each Lender
shall be obligated to make the Loans provided to be made by it and fund its participations required to be funded by it hereunder, regardless of
the failure of any other Lender to fulfill any of its Commitments hereunder. Nothing herein and no subsequent termination of the Commitments
pursuant to Section 2.12 shall be deemed to relieve any Lender from its obligation to fulfill its commitments hereunder and in existence from
time to time or to prejudice any rights that the Borrower may have against any Lender as a result of any default by such Lender hereunder.

(b)    Borrowings Pro Rata. Except with respect to the making of Swing Loans by the Swing Line Lender and the making of
Competitive Bid Loans, all Loans hereunder shall be made and LC Participations acquired by each Lender on a pro rata basis based upon each
Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the amount of such Revolving Borrowing or Letter of Credit in effect on the date the applicable
Revolving Borrowing is to be made or the Letter of Credit is to be issued.

(c)    Notice to Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall promptly give each Lender, as applicable, written notice (or telephonic notice
promptly confirmed in writing) of each proposed Borrowing, or Conversion or Continuation thereof, and LC Issuance, and of such Lender’s
proportionate share thereof or participation therein and of the other matters covered by the Notice of Borrowing, Notice of Continuation or
Conversion, or LC Request, as the case may be, relating thereto.

(d)    Funding of Loans.

(iii)    Loans Generally. No later than 4:00 P.M. (local time at the Payment Office) on the date specified in each Notice of
Borrowing or Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing, each Lender (or, in the case of any such Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing,
each Lender selected by the Borrower to make a Competitive Bid Loan, which has agreed to make such Loan in accordance with
Section 2.03) will make available its amount, if any, of each Borrowing requested to be made on such date to the Administrative Agent
at the Payment Office in Dollars or the applicable Designated Foreign Currency and in immediately available funds and the
Administrative Agent promptly will make available to the Borrower by depositing to its account at the Payment Office (or such other
account as the Borrower shall specify) the aggregate of the amounts so made available in the type of funds received. For the avoidance
of doubt, proceeds of any Borrowing hereunder in a Designated Foreign Currency shall be funded only to the Borrower as provided
immediately above.

(iv)    Swing Loans. No later than 4:00 P.M. (local time at the Payment Office) on the date specified in each Notice of
Borrowing, the Swing Line Lender will make available to the Borrower by depositing to its account at the Payment Office (or such
other account as the Borrower shall specify) the aggregate of Swing Loans requested in such Notice of Borrowing.

(e)    Advance Funding. Unless the Administrative Agent shall have been notified by any Lender prior to the date of Borrowing that
such Lender does not intend to make available to the Administrative Agent its portion of the Borrowing or Borrowings to be made on such
date, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has made such amount available to the Administrative Agent on such date of
Borrowing, and the Administrative Agent, in reliance upon such assumption, may (in its sole discretion and without any obligation to do so)
make available to the Borrower a corresponding amount. If such
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corresponding amount is not in fact made available to the Administrative Agent by such Lender and the Administrative Agent has made the
same available to the Borrower, the Administrative Agent shall be entitled to recover such corresponding amount from such Lender. If such
Lender does not pay such corresponding amount forthwith upon the Administrative Agent’s demand therefor, the Administrative Agent shall
promptly notify the Borrower, and the Borrower shall immediately pay such corresponding amount to the Administrative Agent. The
Administrative Agent shall also be entitled to recover from such Lender or the Borrower, as the case may be, interest on such corresponding
amount in respect of each day from the date such corresponding amount was made available by the Administrative Agent to the Borrower to
the date such corresponding amount is recovered by the Administrative Agent at a rate per annum equal to (i) if paid by such Lender, the
overnight Federal Funds Effective Rate or (ii) if paid by the Borrower, the then applicable rate of interest, calculated in accordance with Section
2.09, for the respective Loans (but without any requirement to pay any amounts in respect thereof pursuant to Section 3.02).

Section 2.08    Evidence of Obligations.

(a)    Loan Accounts of Lenders. Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an account or accounts evidencing
the Obligations of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from each Loan made by such Lender, including the amounts of principal and interest
payable and paid to such Lender from time to time hereunder.

(b)    Loan Accounts of Administrative Agent; Lender Register. The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it shall
record (i) the amount of each Loan and Borrowing made hereunder, the Type thereof, the currency in which such Loan is denominated, the
Interest Period and applicable interest rate and, in the case of a Swing Loan, the Swing Loan Maturity Date applicable thereto, (ii) the amount
and other details with respect to each Letter of Credit issued hereunder, (iii) the amount of any principal due and payable or to become due and
payable from the Borrower to each Lender hereunder, (iv) the amount of any sum received by the Administrative Agent hereunder for the
account of the Lenders and each Lender’s share thereof, and (v) the other details relating to the Loans, Letters of Credit and other Obligations.
In addition, the Administrative Agent, on behalf of the Borrower, shall maintain a register (the “Lender Register”) on or in which it will record
the names and addresses of the Lenders, and the Commitments, and principal amount of the Loans owing to each of the Lenders pursuant to the
terms hereof from time to time. Notwithstanding notice to the contrary, each Person whose name is recorded in the Lender Register pursuant to
the terms hereof shall be treated as a Lender for all purposes hereunder. The Administrative Agent will make the Lender Register available to
any Lender or the Borrower upon its request.

(c)    Effect of Loan Accounts, etc. The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to Section 2.08(b) shall be prima facie
evidence of the existence and amounts of the Obligations recorded therein; provided, that the failure of the Administrative Agent to maintain
such accounts or any error (other than manifest error) therein shall not in any manner affect the obligation of any Credit Party to repay or
prepay the Loans or the other Obligations in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(d)    Notes. Upon request of any Lender or the Swing Line Lender, the Borrower will execute and deliver to such Lender or the Swing
Line Lender, as the case may be, (i) a Revolving Facility Note with blanks appropriately completed in conformity herewith to evidence the
Borrower’s obligation to pay the principal of, and interest on, the Revolving Loans made to it by such Lender, and (ii) a Swing Line Note with
blanks appropriately completed in conformity herewith to evidence the Borrower’s obligation to pay the principal of, and interest on, the Swing
Loans made to it by the Swing Line Lender; provided, however, that the decision of any Lender or the Swing Line Lender to not request a Note
shall in no way detract from the Borrower’s obligation to repay the Loans and other amounts owing by the Borrower to such Lender or
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the Swing Line Lender. The indebtedness of the Borrower resulting from each Competitive Bid Loan shall be evidenced by a separate
Competitive Bid Note of the Borrower payable to the order of the Lender making such Competitive Bid Loan.

Section 2.09    Interest; Default Rate.

(a)    Interest on Revolving Loans. The outstanding principal amount of each Revolving Loan made by each Lender shall bear interest
at a fluctuating rate per annum that shall at all times be equal to (i) during such periods as such Revolving Loan is a Base Rate Loan, the Base
Rate plus the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time, (ii) during such periods as such Revolving Loan is a Eurodollar Loan, the relevant
Adjusted Eurodollar Rate for such Eurodollar Loan for the applicable Interest Period plus the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time,
and (iii) during such periods as a Revolving Loan is a Foreign Currency Loan, the relevant Adjusted Foreign Currency Rate for such Foreign
Currency Loan for the applicable Interest Period plus the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time.

(b)    Interest on Competitive Bid Loans. The outstanding principal amount of each Competitive Bid Loan shall bear interest from the
date on which such Competitive Bid Loan was made to the date on which the principal amount of such Competitive Bid Loan is repaid in full,
at the rate of interest for such Competitive Bid Loan specified by the Lender making such Competitive Bid Loan in its notice with respect
thereto delivered pursuant to Section 2.03(a), payable on the interest payment date or dates specified by the Borrower for such Competitive Bid
Loan in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing, as provided in the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Loan.

(c)    Interest on Swing Loans. The outstanding principal amount of each Swing Loan shall bear interest from the date of the Borrowing
at a rate per annum that shall be equal to the Quoted Rate applicable thereto plus the Applicable Margin for Base Rate Loans. Each Swing Loan
shall bear interest for a minimum of one day. Interest on all Swing Loans shall be paid on the last day of each month and on the Revolving
Facility Termination Date.

(d)    Default Interest. Notwithstanding the above provisions, if an Event of Default is in existence, upon written notice by the
Administrative Agent (which notice the Administrative Agent shall give at the direction of the Required Lenders), (i) all outstanding amounts
of principal and, to the extent permitted by law, all overdue interest, in respect of each Loan shall bear interest, payable on demand, at a rate per
annum equal to the Default Rate, and (ii) the LC Fees shall be increased by an additional 2% per annum in excess of the LC Fees otherwise
applicable thereto. In addition, if any amount (other than amounts as to which the foregoing subparts (i) and (ii) are applicable) payable by the
Borrower under the Loan Documents is not paid when due, upon written notice by the Administrative Agent (which notice the Administrative
Agent shall give at the direction of the Required Lenders), such amount shall bear interest, payable on demand, at a rate per annum equal to the
Default Rate.

(e)    Accrual and Payment of Interest. Interest shall accrue from and including the date of any Borrowing to but excluding the date of
any prepayment or repayment thereof and shall be payable by the Borrower as follows: (i) in respect of each Base Rate Loan, quarterly in
arrears on the last Business Day of each March, June, September and December, (ii) in respect of each Fixed Rate Loan, on the last day of each
Interest Period applicable thereto and, in the case of an Interest Period in excess of three months, on the dates that are successively three months
after the commencement of such Interest Period, (iii) in respect of any Swing Loan, on the Swing Loan Maturity Date applicable thereto, and
(iv) in respect of all other Loans, on (A) the date of any repayment or prepayment (other than a repayment or prepayment of a Revolving Loan
that is a Base Rate Loan prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date) on the amount repaid or prepaid,
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(B) the date of any Conversion on the amount Converted, and (C) the Revolving Facility Termination Date, (v) in respect of any interest not
paid when due pursuant to any of the foregoing subparts, on demand, and (vi) in respect of any interest payable pursuant to Section 2.09(c), as
set forth in Section 2.09(c).

(f)    Computations of Interest. All computations of interest on all Loans and Unreimbursed Drawings hereunder shall be made on the
actual number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all computations of interest in respect of Competitive
Bid Loans shall be made as specified in the applicable Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing.

(g)    Information as to Interest Rates. The Administrative Agent, upon determining the interest rate for any Borrowing, shall promptly
notify the Borrower and the Lenders thereof. Any changes in the Applicable Margin shall be determined by the Administrative Agent in
accordance with the provisions set forth in the definition of “Applicable Margin” and the Administrative Agent will promptly provide notice of
such determinations to the Borrower and the Lenders. Any such determination by the Administrative Agent shall be conclusive and binding
absent manifest error.

Section 2.10    Conversion and Continuation of Loans.

(a)    Conversion and Continuation of Revolving Loans. The Borrower shall have the right, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, to (i) Convert all or a portion of the outstanding principal amount of Loans of one Type made to it into a Borrowing or Borrowings
of another Type of Loans that can be made to it pursuant to this Agreement and (ii) Continue a Borrowing of Eurodollar Loans or Foreign
Currency Loans, as the case may be, at the end of the applicable Interest Period as a new Borrowing of Eurodollar Loans or Foreign Currency
Loans (in the same Designated Foreign Currency as the original Foreign Currency Loan) with a new Interest Period; provided, however, that
(A) no Foreign Currency Loan may be Converted into a Base Rate Loan, Eurodollar Loan or a Foreign Currency Loan that is denominated in a
different Designated Foreign Currency, and (B) any Conversion of Eurodollar Loans into Base Rate Loans shall be made on, and only on, the
last day of an Interest Period for such Eurodollar Loans.

(b)    Notice of Continuation and Conversion. Each Continuation or Conversion of a Loan shall be made upon notice in the form
provided for below provided by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent at its Notice Office not later than (i) in the case of each Continuation
of or Conversion into a Fixed Rate Loan, prior to 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice Office) at least three Business Days’ prior to the date of
such Continuation or Conversion, and (ii) in the case of each Conversion to a Base Rate Loan, prior to 1:00 P.M. (local time at its Notice
Office) on the proposed date of such Conversion. Each such request shall be made by an Authorized Officer of the Borrower delivering written
notice of such request substantially in the form of Exhibit B-3 (each such notice, a “Notice of Continuation or Conversion”) or by telephone (to
be confirmed immediately in writing by delivery by an Authorized Officer of the Borrower of a Notice of Continuation or Conversion), and in
any event each such request shall be irrevocable and shall specify (A) the Borrowings to be Continued or Converted, (B) the date of the
Continuation or Conversion (which shall be a Business Day), and (C) the Interest Period or, in the case of a Continuation, the new Interest
Period. Without in any way limiting the obligation of the Borrower to confirm in writing any telephonic notice permitted to be given hereunder,
the Administrative Agent may act prior to receipt of written confirmation without liability upon the basis of such telephonic notice believed by
the Administrative Agent in good faith to be from an Authorized Officer of the Borrower entitled to give telephonic notices under this
Agreement on behalf of the Borrower. In each such case, the Administrative Agent’s record of the terms of such telephonic notice shall be
conclusive absent manifest error.
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Section 2.11    Fees.

(a)    Unused Fees. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the ratable benefit of each Lender based upon each
such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage (except as otherwise provided in Section 11.26 with respect to Defaulting Lenders), as
consideration for the Revolving Commitments of the Lenders, unused fees (the “Unused Fees”) for the period from the Closing Date to, but not
including, the Revolving Facility Termination Date, computed for each day at a rate per annum equal to (i) the Applicable Margin for Unused
Fees times (ii) the Unused Total Revolving Commitment in effect on such day. Accrued Unused Fees shall be due and payable in arrears on the
last Business Day of each December, March, June and September and on the Revolving Facility Termination Date. For purposes of computing
Unused Fees with respect to the Revolving Commitments, the Revolving Commitment of each Lender shall be deemed used to the extent of the
outstanding Revolving Loans and LC Outstandings, but neither the Swing Line Exposure of such Lender nor any outstanding Competive Bid
Loan of any Lender shall be deemed to be usage of the Revolving Commitment of any Lender.

(b)    [Reserved.]

(c)    LC Fees.

(i)    Standby Letters of Credit. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the ratable benefit of each Lender
with a Revolving Commitment based upon each such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage (except as otherwise provided in Section
11.26 with respect to Defaulting Lenders), a fee in respect of each Letter of Credit issued hereunder that is a Standby Letter of Credit
for the period from the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit until the expiration date thereof (including any extensions of such
expiration date that may be made at the election of the account party or the beneficiary), computed for each day at a rate per annum
equal to (A) the Applicable Margin for Revolving Loans that are Eurodollar Loans in effect on such day times (B) the Stated Amount
of such Letter of Credit on such day. The foregoing fees shall be payable quarterly in arrears on the last Business Day of each March,
June, September and December and on the Revolving Facility Termination Date.

(ii)    Commercial Letters of Credit. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the ratable benefit of each
Lender based upon each such Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage (except as otherwise provided in Section 11.26 with respect to
Defaulting Lenders),, a fee in respect of each Letter of Credit issued hereunder that is a Commercial Letter of Credit in an amount
equal to (A) the Applicable Margin for Revolving Loans that are Eurodollar Loans in effect on the date of issuance times (B) the Stated
Amount of such Letter of Credit. The foregoing fees shall be payable on the date of issuance of such Letter of Credit.

(d)    Fronting Fees. The Borrower agrees to pay directly to each LC Issuer, for its own account, a fee in respect of each Letter of Credit
issued by it, payable on the date of issuance (or any increase in the amount, or renewal or extension) thereof, computed at the rate of 0.125%
per annum on the Stated Amount thereof for the period from the date of issuance (or increase, renewal or extension) to the expiration date
thereof (including any extensions of such expiration date which may be made at the election of the beneficiary thereof). The foregoing fees
shall be payable quarterly in arrears on the last Business Day of each of March, June, September and December and on the Revolving Facility
Termination Date.

(e)    Additional Charges of LC Issuer. The Borrower agrees to pay directly to each LC Issuer upon each LC Issuance, drawing under,
or amendment, extension, renewal or transfer of, a Letter of Credit issued by it such amount as shall at the time of such LC Issuance, drawing
under, amendment, extension,
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renewal or transfer be the processing charge that such LC Issuer is customarily charging for issuances of, drawings under or amendments,
extensions, renewals or transfers of, letters of credit issued by it.

(f)    Administrative Agent and Lender Fees. The Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent, on the Closing Date and thereafter,
for its own account and for the benefit of the Lenders, and shall pay to SunTrust Bank and SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., and KeyBank,
for their respective accounts, the fees set forth in their respective Fee Letters.

(g)    Computations of Fees. All computations of Unused Fees, LC Fees and other Fees hereunder shall be made on the actual number
of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.

Section 2.12    Termination and Reduction of Revolving Commitments.

(a)    Mandatory Termination of Revolving Commitments. All of the Revolving Commitments shall terminate on the Revolving Facility
Termination Date.

(b)    Voluntary Termination of the Total Revolving Commitment. Upon at least three Business Days’ prior irrevocable written notice
(or telephonic notice confirmed in writing) to the Administrative Agent at its Notice Office (which notice the Administrative Agent shall
promptly transmit to each of the Lenders), the Borrower shall have the right to terminate in whole the Total Revolving Commitment, provided
that (i) all outstanding Revolving Loans and Unreimbursed Drawings are contemporaneously prepaid in accordance with Section 2.13 and (ii)
either there are no outstanding Letters of Credit or the Borrower shall contemporaneously cause all outstanding Letters of Credit to be
surrendered for cancellation (any such Letters of Credit to be replaced by letters of credit issued by other financial institutions reasonably
acceptable to each LC Issuer and the Revolving Lenders), provided further, that a notice of termination of the Total Revolving Commitment
may state that such notice is conditioned on the effectiveness of other credit facilities, in which case such notice may be revoked by the
Borrower (by notice to the Administrative Agent on or prior to the specified effective date) if such condition is not satisfied.

(c)    Partial Reduction of Total Revolving Commitment. Upon at least three Business Days’ prior irrevocable written notice (or
telephonic notice confirmed in writing) to the Administrative Agent at its Notice Office (which notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly
transmit to each of the Lenders), the Borrower shall have the right to partially and permanently reduce the Unused Total Revolving
Commitment; provided, however, that (i) any such reduction shall apply to proportionately, except as set forth in Sections 11.26 and 11.27
(based on each Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage) and permanently reduce the Revolving Commitment of each Lender, (ii) such
reduction shall apply to proportionately, except as set forth in Sections 11.26 and 11.27, and permanently reduce the LC Commitment Amount,
but only to the extent that the Unused Total Revolving Commitment would be reduced below any such limits, (iii) no such reduction shall be
permitted if the Borrower would be required to make a mandatory prepayment of Loans or cash collateralize Letters of Credit pursuant to
Section 2.13, and (iv) any partial reduction shall be in the amount of at least $5,000,000 (or, if greater, in integral multiples of $1,000,000);
provided further that the Unused Total Revolving Commitment shall not be reduced to an amount that is less than the aggregate principal
amount of Competitive Bid Loans then outstanding.

Section 2.13    Voluntary, Scheduled and Mandatory Prepayments of Loans.

(a)    Voluntary Prepayments. The Borrower shall have the right to prepay from time to time any of the Loans (other than Competitive
Bid Loans) owing by it, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty (except as specified in subparts (c) and (d) below). The Borrower shall
give the Administrative Agent at the Notice Office written or telephonic notice (in the case of telephonic notice, promptly confirmed in writing
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if so requested by the Administrative Agent) of its intent to prepay the Loans, the amount of such prepayment and (in the case of Fixed Rate
Loans) the specific Borrowing(s) pursuant to which the prepayment is to be made, which notice shall be received by the Administrative Agent
by (y) 12:00 noon (local time at the Notice Office) two Business Days prior to the date of such prepayment, in the case of any prepayment of
Fixed Rate Loans, or (z) 12:00 noon (local time at the Notice Office) on the date of such prepayment, in the case of any prepayment of Base
Rate Loans, and which notice shall promptly be transmitted by the Administrative Agent to each of the affected Lenders, provided that:

(iii)    each partial prepayment shall be in an aggregate principal amount of at least (A) in the case of any prepayment of a Fixed
Rate Loan, $5,000,000 (or, if less, the full amount of such Borrowing) or the Dollar Equivalent thereof, or an integral multiple of
$1,000,000 or the Dollar Equivalent thereof in excess thereof, (B) in the case of any prepayment of a Base Rate Loan, $5,000,000 (or,
if less, the full amount of such Borrowing) or the Dollar Equivalent thereof, or an integral multiple of $1,000,000 or the Dollar
Equivalent thereof in excess thereof, and (C) in the case of any prepayment of a Swing Loan, in the full amount thereof; and

(iv)    no partial prepayment of any Loans made pursuant to a Borrowing shall reduce the aggregate principal amount of such
Loans outstanding pursuant to such Borrowing to an amount less than the Minimum Borrowing Amount applicable thereto.

(b)    Mandatory Payments. The Loans shall be subject to mandatory repayment or prepayment (in the case of any partial prepayment
conforming to the requirements as to the amounts of partial prepayments set forth in Section 2.13(a) above), and the LC Outstandings shall be
subject to cash collateralization requirements, in accordance with the following provisions:

(i)    Maturity. The entire principal amount of all outstanding Revolving Loans shall be repaid in full on the Revolving Facility
Termination Date. The Borrower shall repay each Competitive Bid Loan to the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lender that
has made such Competitive Bid Loan, on the maturity date applicable to such Competitive Bid Loan, the then unpaid principal amount
of such Competitive Bid Loan.

(ii)    Loans Exceed the Commitments. If on any date (after giving effect to any other payments on such date) (A) the
Revolving Facility Exposure of any Lender exceeds such Lender’s Revolving Commitment (whether due to a change in the Dollar
Equivalent such Lender’s Revolving Facility Exposure or otherwise), (B) the sum of (1) the Aggregate Revolving Facility Exposure,
(2) the outstanding principal amount of Swing Loans, and (3) the outstanding principal amount of Competitive Bid Loans, exceeds the
Total Revolving Commitment (in the case of clauses (1) or (3), whether due to a change in the Dollar Equivalent of the Aggregate
Revolving Facility Exposure and/or the outstanding Competitive Bid Loans or otherwise), or (C) the aggregate principal amount of
Swing Loans outstanding exceeds the Swing Line Commitment, then, in the case of each of the foregoing, the Borrower shall, on such
day, prepay on such date the principal amount of Loans and, after Loans have been paid in full, Unreimbursed Drawings, in an
aggregate amount at least equal to such excess.

(iii)    LC Outstandings Exceed LC Commitment If on any date the LC Outstandings exceed the LC Commitment Amount, then
the applicable LC Obligor or the Borrower shall, on such day, pay to the Administrative Agent an amount in cash equal to such excess
and the Administrative Agent shall hold such payment as security for the reimbursement obligations of the applicable LC Obligors
hereunder in respect of Letters of Credit pursuant to a cash collateral agreement to be
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entered into in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Borrower (which shall
permit certain investments in Cash Equivalents reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Borrower
until the proceeds are applied to any Unreimbursed Drawing or to any other Obligations in accordance with any such cash collateral
agreement and which shall provide for regular remittance to the Borrower of any interest accrued on such cash collateral amount).

(c)    Particular Loans to be Prepaid. With respect to each repayment or prepayment of Loans made or required by this Section, the
Borrower shall designate the Types of Loans that are to be repaid or prepaid and the specific Borrowing(s) pursuant to which such repayment or
prepayment is to be made; provided, however, that (i) the Borrower shall first so designate all Loans that are Base Rate Loans and Fixed Rate
Loans with Interest Periods ending on the date of repayment or prepayment prior to designating any other Fixed Rate Loans for repayment or
prepayment, and (ii) if the outstanding principal amount of Fixed Rate Loans made pursuant to a Borrowing is reduced below the applicable
Minimum Borrowing Amount as a result of any such repayment or prepayment, then all the Loans outstanding pursuant to such Borrowing
shall, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, be Converted into Base Rate Loans and, in the case of Foreign Currency Loans, be repaid in full. In the
absence of a designation by the Borrower as described in the preceding sentence, the Administrative Agent shall, subject to the above, make
such designation in its sole discretion with a view, but no obligation, to minimize breakage costs owing under Article III.

(d)    Breakage and Other Compensation. Any prepayment made pursuant to this Section 2.13 shall be accompanied by any amounts
payable in respect thereof under Article III.

Section 2.14    Method and Place of Payment.

(a)    Generally. All payments made by the Borrower hereunder (including any payments made with respect to the Borrower
Guaranteed Obligations under Article X) under any Note or any other Loan Document, shall be made without setoff, counterclaim or other
defense.

(b)    Application of Payments. Except as specifically set forth elsewhere in this Agreement and subject to Section 8.03, (i) all payments
and prepayments of Revolving Loans and Unreimbursed Drawings with respect to Letters of Credit shall be applied by the Administrative
Agent on a pro rata basis based upon each Lender’s Revolving Facility Percentage of the amount of such prepayment, and (ii) all payments or
prepayments of Swing Loans shall be applied by the Administrative Agent to pay or prepay such Swing Loans.

(c)    Payment of Obligations. Except as specifically set forth elsewhere in this Agreement, all payments under this Agreement with
respect to any of the Obligations shall be made to the Administrative Agent on the date when due and shall be made at the Payment Office in
immediately available funds and, except as set forth in the next sentence, shall be made in Dollars. With respect to any Foreign Currency Loan,
all payments (including prepayments) to any Lender of the principal of or interest on such Foreign Currency Loan shall be made in the same
Designated Foreign Currency as the original Loan and with respect to any Letter of Credit issued in a Designated Foreign Currency, all
Unreimbursed Drawings with respect to each such Letter of Credit shall be made in the same Designated Foreign Currency in which each such
Letter of Credit was issued.

(d)    Timing of Payments. Any payments under this Agreement that are made later than 2:00 P.M. (local time at the Payment Office)
shall be deemed to have been made on the next succeeding Business Day. Whenever any payment to be made hereunder shall be stated to be
due on a day that is not a Business Day, the due date thereof shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day and, with respect to
payments
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of principal, interest shall be payable during such extension at the applicable rate in effect immediately prior to such extension.

(e)    Distribution to Lenders. Upon the Administrative Agent’s receipt of payments hereunder, the Administrative Agent shall
immediately distribute to each Lender or the applicable LC Issuer, as the case may be, its ratable share, if any, of the amount of principal,
interest, and Fees received by it for the account of such Lender. Payments received by the Administrative Agent in Dollars shall be delivered to
the Lenders or the applicable LC Issuer, as the case may be, in Dollars in immediately available funds. Payments received by the
Administrative Agent in any Designated Foreign Currency shall be delivered to the Lenders or the applicable LC Issuer, as the case may be, in
such Designated Foreign Currency in same-day funds; provided, however, that if at any time insufficient funds are received by and available to
the Administrative Agent to pay fully all amounts of principal, Unreimbursed Drawings, interest and Fees then due hereunder then, except as
specifically set forth elsewhere in this Agreement and subject to Section 8.03, such funds shall be applied, first, towards payment of interest and
Fees then due hereunder, ratably among the parties entitled thereto in accordance with the amounts of interest and Fees then due to such parties,
and second, towards payment of principal and Unreimbursed Drawings then due hereunder, ratably among the parties entitled thereto in
accordance with the amounts of principal and Unreimbursed Drawings then due to such parties.

Section 2.15    Guaranty by the Borrower.

(a)    Borrower Guaranteed Obligations. The Borrower hereby unconditionally guarantees, for the benefit of the Benefited Creditors, all
of the following (collectively, the “Borrower Guaranteed Obligations”): all amounts, indemnities and reimbursement obligations, direct or
indirect, contingent or absolute, of every type or description, and at any time existing owing by any Subsidiary of the Borrower under any
Designated Hedge Agreement (excluding any Excluded Swap Obligation) or any other document or agreement executed and delivered in
connection therewith to any Designated Hedge Creditor, in all cases whether now existing or hereafter incurred or arising, including any such
interest or other amounts incurred or arising during the pendency of any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, receivership or similar
proceeding, regardless of whether allowed or allowable in such proceeding or subject to an automatic stay under Section 362(a) of the
Bankruptcy Code). Upon failure by any Credit Party to pay punctually any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations, the Borrower shall
forthwith on demand by the Administrative Agent pay the amount not so paid at the place and in the currency and otherwise in the manner
specified in this Agreement or any other applicable agreement or instrument.

(b)    Additional Undertaking. As a separate, additional and continuing obligation, the Borrower unconditionally and irrevocably
undertakes and agrees, for the benefit of the Benefited Creditors that, should any Borrower Guaranteed Obligations not be recoverable from the
Borrower under Section 2.15(a) for any reason whatsoever (including, without limitation, by reason of any provision of any Loan Document or
any other agreement or instrument executed in connection therewith being or becoming void, unenforceable, or otherwise invalid under any
applicable law) then, notwithstanding any notice or knowledge thereof by any Lender, the Administrative Agent, any of their respective
Affiliates, or any other person, at any time, the Borrower as sole, original and independent obligor, upon demand by the Administrative Agent,
will make payment to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Benefited Creditors, of all such obligations not so recoverable by way of
full indemnity, in such currency and otherwise in such manner as is provided in the Loan Documents or any other applicable agreement or
instrument.

(c)    Guaranty Unconditional. The obligations of the Borrower under this Section 2.15 shall be unconditional and absolute and, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing shall not be released, discharged or otherwise affected by the occurrence, one or more times, of any of
the following:
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(i)    any extension, renewal, settlement, compromise, waiver or release in respect to the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations
under any agreement or instrument, by operation of law or otherwise;

(ii)    any modification or amendment of or supplement to this Agreement, any Note, any other Loan Document, or any
agreement or instrument evidencing or relating to any Borrower Guaranteed Obligation;

(iii)    any release, non-perfection or invalidity of any direct or indirect security for the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations under
any agreement or instrument evidencing or relating to any Borrower Guaranteed Obligations;

(iv)    any change in the corporate existence, structure or ownership of any Credit Party or other Subsidiary or any insolvency,
bankruptcy, reorganization or other similar proceeding affecting any Credit Party or other Subsidiary or its assets or any resulting
release or discharge of any obligation of any Credit Party or other Subsidiary contained in any agreement or instrument evidencing or
relating to any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations;

(v)    the existence of any claim, set-off or other rights which the Borrower may have at any time against any other Credit Party,
the Administrative Agent, any Lender, any Affiliate of any Lender or any other Person, whether in connection herewith or any
unrelated transactions;

(vi)    any invalidity or unenforceability relating to or against any other Credit Party for any reason of any agreement or
instrument evidencing or relating to any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations, or any provision of applicable law or regulation
purporting to prohibit the payment by any Credit Party of any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations; or

(vii)    any other act or omission of any kind by any other Credit Party, the Administrative Agent, any Lender or any other
Person or any other circumstance whatsoever which might, but for the provisions of this Section 2.15, constitute a legal or equitable
discharge of the Borrower’s obligations under this Section other than the irrevocable payment in full of all Borrower Guaranteed
Obligations.

(d)    Borrower Obligations to Remain in Effect; Restoration. The Borrower’s obligations under this Section 2.15 shall remain in full
force and effect until the Commitments shall have terminated, and the principal of and interest on the Notes and other Borrower Guaranteed
Obligations, and all other amounts payable by the Borrower, any other Credit Party or other Subsidiary, under the Loan Documents or any other
agreement or instrument evidencing or relating to any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations, shall have been paid in full. If at any time any
payment of any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations is rescinded or must be otherwise restored or returned upon the insolvency, bankruptcy
or reorganization of such Credit Party, the Borrower’s obligations under this Section 2.15 with respect to such payment shall be reinstated at
such time as though such payment had been due but not made at such time.

(e)    Waiver of Acceptance, etc. The Borrower irrevocably waives acceptance hereof, presentment, demand, protest and any notice not
provided for herein, as well as any requirement that at any time any action be taken by any person against any other Credit Party or any other
Person, or against any collateral or guaranty of any other Person.

(f)    Subrogation. Until the indefeasible payment in full of all of the Obligations and the termination of the Commitments hereunder,
the Borrower shall have no rights, by operation of law or

-48-



otherwise, upon making any payment under this Section to be subrogated to the rights of the payee against any other Credit Party with respect
to such payment or otherwise to be reimbursed, indemnified or exonerated by any such Credit Party in respect thereof.

(g)    Effect of Stay. If acceleration of the time for payment of any amount payable by any Credit Party under any of the Borrower
Guaranteed Obligations is stayed upon insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization of such Credit Party, all such amounts otherwise subject to
acceleration under the terms of any applicable agreement or instrument evidencing or relating to any of the Borrower Guaranteed Obligations
shall nonetheless be payable by the Borrower under this Section 2.15 forthwith on demand by the Administrative Agent.

Section 2.16    Extension of Termination Date.  At least 45 days but not more than 90 days prior to the date which is one year prior to
the Revolving Facility Termination Date then in effect (such date, the “Extension Request Date”), the Borrower, by written notice to the
Administrative Agent, may request an extension of the Revolving Facility Termination Date in effect at such time by one year from its then
scheduled expiration. The Administrative Agent shall promptly (and in any case, within 5 Business Days of its receipt of such notice), notify
each Lender of such request, and each Lender shall in turn, in its sole discretion, at least 30 days prior to the Extension Request Date, notify the
Borrower and the Administrative Agent in writing as to whether such Lender will consent to such extension. If any Lender shall fail to notify
the Administrative Agent and the Borrower in writing of its consent to any such request for extension of the Revolving Facility Termination
Date at least 20 days prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date, such Lender shall be deemed to be a Non-Consenting Lender with
respect to such extension request. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower not later than 15 days prior to the Extension Request
Date of the decision of the Lenders regarding the Borrower’s request for an extension of the Revolving Facility Termination Date.

(a)    If all the Lenders consent in writing to any such request in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section 2.16, the Revolving
Facility Termination Date in effect at such time shall, effective as at the Extension Request Date (the “Extension Date”), be extended for one
year; provided that on each Extension Date the applicable conditions set forth in Section 4.02 shall be satisfied. If less than all of the Lenders
consent in writing to any such request in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section 2.16, the Revolving Facility Termination Date in effect
at such time shall, effective as at the applicable Extension Date and subject to subsection (d) of this Section 2.16, be extended as to those
Lenders that so consented (each a “Consenting Lender”) but shall not be extended as to any other Lender (each a “Non-Consenting Lender”).
To the extent that the Revolving Facility Termination Date is not extended as to any Lender pursuant to this Section 2.16 and the Commitment
of such Lender is not assumed in accordance with subsection (c) of this Section 2.16 on or prior to the applicable Extension Date, the
Commitment of such Non-Consenting Lender shall automatically terminate in whole on such unextended Revolving Facility Termination Date
without any further notice or other action by the Borrower, such Lender or any other Person; provided that such Non-Consenting Lender’s
rights under Sections 3.01, 11.01 or 11.02, and its obligations under Section 9.09, shall survive the Revolving Facility Termination Date for
such Lender as to matters occurring prior to such date. It is understood and agreed that no Lender shall have any obligation whatsoever to agree
to any request made by the Borrower for any requested extension of the Revolving Facility Termination Date.

(b)    If less than all of the Lenders consent to any such request pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section 2.16, the Administrative Agent
shall promptly so notify the Consenting Lenders, and each Consenting Lender may, in its sole discretion, give written notice to the
Administrative Agent not later than 10 days prior to the Revolving Facility Termination Date of the amount of the Non-Consenting Lenders’
Commitments for which it is willing to accept an assignment. If the Consenting Lenders notify the Administrative Agent
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that they are willing to accept assignments of Commitments in an aggregate amount that exceeds the amount of the Commitments of the Non-
Consenting Lenders, such Commitments shall be allocated among the Consenting Lenders willing to accept such assignments in such amounts
as are agreed between the Borrower and the Administrative Agent. If after giving effect to the assignments of Commitments described above
there remains any Commitments of Non-Consenting Lenders, the Borrower may arrange for one or more Consenting Lenders or other Eligible
Assignees (each, an “Assuming Lender”) to assume, effective as of the Extension Date, any Non-Consenting Lender’s Commitment and all of
the obligations of such Non-Consenting Lender under this Agreement thereafter arising, without recourse to or warranty by, or expense to, such
Non-Consenting Lender; provided, however, that the amount of the Commitment of any such Assuming Lender as a result of such substitution
shall in no event be less than $10,000,000 unless the amount of the Commitment of such Non-Consenting Lender is less than $10,000,000, in
which case such Assuming Lender shall assume all of such lesser amount; and provided further that:

(viii)    any such Consenting Lender or Assuming Lender shall have paid to such Non-Consenting Lender (A) the aggregate
principal amount of, and any interest accrued and unpaid to the effective date of the assignment on, the Revolving Facility Exposure, if
any, of such Non-Consenting Lender plus (B) any accrued but unpaid Fees owing to such Non-Consenting Lender as of the effective
date of such assignment;

(ix)    all additional costs reimbursements, expense reimbursements and indemnities payable to such Non-Consenting Lender,
and all other accrued and unpaid amounts owing to such Non-Consenting Lender hereunder, as of the effective date of such assignment
shall have been paid to such Non-Consenting Lender; and

(x)    with respect to any such Assuming Lender, the applicable processing and recordation fee required under Section 11.06(c)
(i)(D) for such assignment shall have been paid;

provided further that such Non-Consenting Lender’s rights under Sections 3.01, 11.01 or 11.02, and its obligations under Section 9.09, shall
survive such substitution as to matters occurring prior to the date of substitution. At least three Business Days prior to any Extension Date, (A)
each such Assuming Lender, if any, shall have delivered to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent an Assumption Agreement, duly
executed by such Assuming Lender, such Non-Consenting Lender, the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, (B) any such Consenting
Lender shall have delivered confirmation in writing satisfactory to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent as to the increase in the amount
of its Commitment and (C) each Non-Consenting Lender being replaced pursuant to this Section 2.16 shall have delivered to the Administrative
Agent any Note or Notes held by such Non-Consenting Lender. Upon the payment or prepayment of all amounts referred to in clauses (i), (ii)
and (iii) of the immediately preceding sentence, each such Consenting Lender or Assuming Lender, as of the Extension Date, will be
substituted for such Non-Consenting Lender under this Agreement and shall be a Lender for all purposes of this Agreement, without any further
acknowledgment by or the consent of the other Lenders, and the obligations of each such Non-Consenting Lender hereunder shall, by the
provisions hereof, be released and discharged.

(c)    If (after giving effect to any assignments or assumptions pursuant to subsection (c) of this Section 2.16) Lenders having
Commitments equal to at least 50% of the Commitments in effect immediately prior to the Extension Date consent in writing to a requested
extension (whether by execution or delivery of an Assumption Agreement or otherwise) not later than one Business Day prior to such
Extension Date, the Administrative Agent shall so notify the Borrower, and, subject to the satisfaction of the applicable conditions in Section
4.02, the Revolving Facility Termination Date then in effect shall be extended for the additional one-year period as described in subsection (a)
of this Section 2.16, and all references in this Agreement, and
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in the Notes, if any, to the “Revolving Facility Termination Date” shall, with respect to each Consenting Lender and each Assuming Lender for
such Extension Date, refer to the Revolving Facility Termination Date as so extended. Promptly following each Extension Date, the
Administrative Agent shall notify the Lenders (including, without limitation, each Assuming Lender) of the extension of the scheduled
Revolving Facility Termination Date in effect immediately prior thereto and shall thereupon record in the Lender Register the relevant
information with respect to each such Consenting Lender and each such Assuming Lender.

ARTICLE III.     

INCREASED COSTS, ILLEGALITY AND TAXES

Section 3.01    Increased Costs, Illegality, etc.

(c)    Subject to Section 3.05, if (y) in the case of clause (i) below, the Administrative Agent or (z) in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii)
below, any Lender, shall have determined on a reasonable basis (which determination shall, absent manifest error, be final and conclusive and
binding upon all parties hereto):

(i)    on any date for determining the interest rate applicable to any Fixed Rate Loan for any Interest Period that, by reason of
any changes arising after the Closing Date, adequate and fair means do not exist for ascertaining the applicable interest rate on the basis
provided for in this Agreement for such Fixed Rate Loan; or

(ii)    at any time, that such Lender shall incur increased costs or reductions in the amounts received or receivable by it
hereunder in an amount that such Lender deems material with respect to any Fixed Rate Loans (other than any increased cost or
reduction in the amount received or receivable resulting from the imposition of or a change in the rate of taxes or similar charges)
because of (x) any Change in Law or (y) other circumstances arising after the date such Lender becomes party to this Agreement
adversely affecting the London interbank market or the position of such Lender in any such market; or

(iii)    at any time, that the making or continuance of any Fixed Rate Loan has become unlawful by compliance by such Lender
in good faith with any Change in Law, or would conflict with any thereof not having the force of law but with which such Lender
customarily complies, or has become impracticable as a result of a contingency occurring after the date such Lender becomes party to
this Agreement that materially adversely affects the London interbank market;

then, and in each such event, such Lender (or the Administrative Agent in the case of clause (i) above) shall (1) on or promptly following such
date or time and (2) within 10 Business Days of the date on which such event no longer exists give notice (by telephone confirmed in writing)
to the Borrower and to the Administrative Agent of such determination (which notice the Administrative Agent shall promptly transmit to each
of the other Lenders). Thereafter (x) in the case of clause (i) above, the affected Type of Fixed Rate Loans shall no longer be available until
such time as the Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances giving rise to such notice by the
Administrative Agent no longer exist, and any Notice of Borrowing, Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing or Notice of Continuation or
Conversion given by the Borrower with respect to such Type of Fixed Rate Loans that have not yet been incurred, Converted or Continued shall
be deemed rescinded by the Borrower or, in the case of a Notice of Borrowing other than a Borrowing of Foreign Currency Loans, shall, at the
option of the Borrower, be deemed converted into a Notice of Borrowing for Base Rate Loans to be made on the date of Borrowing contained
in such Notice of Borrowing, (y) in the case of clause (ii) above, the Borrower shall pay to such Lender, upon written demand therefor, such
additional amounts (in the form of an increased rate of, or a different method of
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calculating, interest or otherwise as such Lender shall determine) as shall be required to compensate such Lender for such increased costs or
reductions in amounts receivable hereunder (a written notice as to the additional amounts owed to such Lender, showing the basis for the
calculation thereof, which basis must be reasonable, submitted to the Borrower by such Lender shall, absent manifest error, be final and
conclusive and binding upon all parties hereto) and (z) in the case of clause (iii) above, the Borrower shall take one of the actions specified in
Section 3.01(b) as promptly as possible and, in any event, within the time period required by law.

(d)    At any time that any Fixed Rate Loan is affected by the circumstances described in Section 3.01(a)(ii) or (iii), the Borrower may
(and in the case of a Fixed Rate Loan affected pursuant to Section 3.01(a)(iii) the Borrower shall) either (i) if the affected Fixed Rate Loan is
then being made pursuant to a Borrowing, by giving the Administrative Agent telephonic notice (confirmed promptly in writing) thereof on the
same date that the Borrower was notified by a Lender pursuant to Section 3.01(a)(ii) or (iii), cancel said Borrowing, or, in the case of any
Borrowing other than a Borrowing of Foreign Currency Loans, convert the related Notice of Borrowing into one requesting a Borrowing of
Base Rate Loans or require the affected Lender to make its requested Loan as a Base Rate Loan, or (ii) if the affected Fixed Rate Loan is then
outstanding, upon at least one Business Day’s notice to the Administrative Agent, require the affected Lender to Convert each such Fixed Rate
Loan into a Base Rate Loan or, in the case of a Foreign Currency Loan, prepay in full such Foreign Currency Loan; provided, however, that if
more than one Lender is affected at any time, then all affected Lenders must be treated the same pursuant to this Section 3.01(b).

(e)    If any Lender shall have determined that after the date such Lender becomes party to this Agreement, the adoption of any
applicable law, rule or regulation regarding capital adequacy or liquidity requirements, or any change therein, or any change in the
interpretation or administration thereof by any Governmental Authority, central bank or comparable agency charged by law with the
interpretation or administration thereof, or compliance by such Lender or its parent corporation with any request or directive regarding capital
adequacy or liquidity requirements (whether or not having the force of law) of any such authority, central bank, or comparable agency, in each
case made subsequent to the date such Lender becomes party to this Agreement, has or would have the effect of reducing by an amount
reasonably deemed by such Lender to be material to the rate of return on such Lender’s or its parent corporation’s capital or assets as a
consequence of such Lender’s commitments or obligations hereunder to a level below that which such Lender or its parent corporation could
have achieved but for such adoption, effectiveness, change or compliance (taking into consideration such Lender’s or its parent corporation’s
policies with respect to capital adequacy), then from time to time, within 15 days after demand by such Lender (with a copy to the
Administrative Agent), the Borrower shall pay to such Lender such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender or its parent
corporation for such reduction. Any affected Lender, upon determining in good faith that any additional amounts are payable pursuant to this
Section 3.01(c), will give prompt written notice thereof to the Borrower, which notice shall set forth, in reasonable detail, the basis of the
calculation of such additional amounts, which basis must be reasonable, although the failure to give any such notice shall not release or
diminish any of the Borrower’s obligations to pay additional amounts pursuant to this Section 3.01(c) upon the subsequent receipt of such
notice.

(f)    Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, (i) no Lender shall be entitled to compensation or payment or
reimbursement of other amounts under Section 3.01 or Section 3.04 for any amounts incurred or accruing more than 90 days prior to the giving
of notice to the Borrower of additional costs or other amounts of the nature described in such Sections, and (ii) no Lender shall demand
compensation for any reduction referred to in Section 3.01(c) or payment or reimbursement of other amounts under Section 3.04 if it shall not
at the time be the general policy or practice of such Lender to demand such compensation,
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payment or reimbursement of borrowers in similar circumstances under comparable provisions of other credit agreements.

Section 3.02    Breakage Compensation. The Borrower shall compensate any Lender (including the Swing Line Lender), upon its
written request (which request shall set forth the detailed basis for requesting and the method of calculating such compensation), for all
reasonable losses, costs, expenses and liabilities (including, without limitation, any loss, cost, expense or liability incurred by reason of the
liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds required by such Lender to fund its Fixed Rate Loans or Swing Loans and costs
associated with foreign currency hedging obligations incurred by such Lender in connection with any Fixed Rate Loan) which such Lender has
incurred in connection with any of the following: (i) if for any reason (other than a default by such Lender or the Administrative Agent) a
Borrowing of Fixed Rate Loans or Swing Loans does not occur on a date specified therefor in a Notice of Borrowing, a Notice of Competitive
Bid Borrowing or a Notice of Continuation or Conversion (whether or not withdrawn by the Borrower or deemed withdrawn pursuant to
Section 3.01(a)); (ii) if any repayment, prepayment, Conversion or Continuation of any Fixed Rate Loan occurs on a date that is not the last day
of an Interest Period applicable thereto or any Swing Loan is paid prior to the Swing Loan Maturity Date applicable thereto; (iii) if any
prepayment of any of its Fixed Rate Loans is not made on any date specified in a notice of prepayment given by the Borrower; (iv) as a result
of an assignment by a Lender of any Fixed Rate Loan other than on the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto pursuant to a request
by the Borrower pursuant to Section 3.05(b); or (v) as a consequence of (y) any other default by the Borrower to repay or prepay any Fixed
Rate Loans when required by the terms of this Agreement or (z) an election made pursuant to Section 3.05(b). The written request of any
affected Lender setting forth any amount or amounts that such Lender is entitled to receive pursuant to this Section shall be delivered to the
Borrower and shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The Borrower shall pay such Lender the amount shown as due on any such request
within 10 days after receipt thereof.

Section 3.03    Net Payments.

(e)    Except as provided for in Section 3.03(b), all payments made by the Borrower hereunder, under any Note or any other Loan
Document, including all payments made by the Borrower pursuant to its guaranty obligations under Section 2.15, will be made free and clear
of, and without deduction or withholding for, any present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges of whatever
nature now or hereafter imposed by any jurisdiction or by any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein with respect to such
payments (but excluding, with respect to the Administrative Agent, any Lender, or any other recipient of any payment made by the Borrower
hereunder, (i) any tax imposed on or measured by the net income or net profits of such Person and franchise taxes imposed on it pursuant to the
laws of the jurisdiction under which such Lender is organized or the jurisdiction in which the principal office or Applicable Lending Office of
such Lender, as applicable, is located or in which it is otherwise doing business or any subdivision thereof or therein, and (ii) any branch profits
or similar taxes imposed by any jurisdiction in which such Person is located) and all interest, penalties or similar liabilities with respect to such
non-excluded taxes, levies imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges other than those resulting from the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of the Administrative Agent, any Lender, or any other recipient of any payment made by the Borrower hereunder (all such non-
excluded taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges being referred to collectively as “Taxes”). If any Taxes are so levied
or imposed, the Borrower agrees to pay the full amount of such Taxes and such additional amounts (including additional amounts to
compensate for withholding on amounts paid pursuant to this Section 3.03) as may be necessary so that every payment by it of all amounts due
hereunder, under any Note or under any other Loan Document, after withholding or deduction of any Taxes will not be less than the amount
provided for herein or in such Note or in such other Loan Document. The Borrower will indemnify and hold harmless any Lender, and
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reimburse such Lender upon its written request, for the amount of any Taxes imposed on and paid by such Lender. The Borrower will furnish to
the Administrative Agent within 45 days after the date the payment of any Taxes, or any withholding or deduction on account thereof, is due
pursuant to applicable law certified copies of tax receipts, or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the respective Lender, evidencing such
payment by the Borrower.

(f)    Each Lender that is not a United States person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code) for federal income tax
purposes and that is entitled to claim an exemption from or reduction in United States withholding tax with respect to a payment by Borrower
agrees to provide to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent on or prior to the Closing Date, or in the case of a Lender that is an assignee or
transferee of an interest under this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.06 (unless the respective Lender was already a Lender hereunder
immediately prior to such assignment or transfer and such Lender is in compliance with the provisions of this Section), on or prior to the date of
such assignment or transfer to such Lender, and from time to time thereafter if required by applicable law or as reasonably requested by the
Borrower or the Administrative Agent two accurate and complete original signed copies of Internal Revenue Service Forms W-8BEN, W-
8BEN-E, W-8ECI, W-8EXP or W-8IMY (or successor, substitute or other appropriate forms and, in the case of Form W-8IMY, complete with
accompanying Forms W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E with respect to beneficial owners of the payment) certifying to such Lender’s entitlement to
exemption from or a reduced rate of withholding of United States withholding tax with respect to payments to be made under this Agreement,
any Note or any other Loan Document, along with any other appropriate documentation establishing such exemption or reduction (such as
statements certifying qualification for exemption with respect to portfolio interest). In addition, each Lender agrees that from time to time after
the Closing Date, when a lapse in time or change in circumstances renders the previous certification obsolete or inaccurate in any material
respect, it will deliver to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent two new accurate and complete original signed copies of the applicable
Internal Revenue Service form establishing such exemption or reduction (such as statements certifying qualification for exemption with respect
to portfolio interest) and any related documentation as may be required to confirm or establish the entitlement of such Lender to a continued
exemption from or reduction in United States withholding tax if the Lender continues to be so entitled or notify the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent of its legal inability to do so. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, no Lender shall be
required by this Section 3.03 to deliver a form,certificate or other documentation that it is not legally entitled to deliver or, except with respect
to the specific Internal Revenue Service forms described in Section 3.03(b) and (c), if in Lender’s reasonable judgment the completion,
execution or submission of such documentation would subject such Lender to any material unreimbursed cost or expense or would materially
prejudice the legal or commercial position of such Lender. The Borrower shall not be obligated pursuant to Section 3.03(a) to pay additional
amounts on account of or indemnify with respect to Taxes to the extent that such Taxes arise solely due to a Lender’s failure to deliver forms
that it was legally entitled and required to deliver under this Section 3.03(b) but failed to deliver under this Section 3.03(b). The Borrower
agrees to pay additional amounts and indemnify each Lender in the manner set forth in Section 3.03(a) in respect of any Taxes deducted or
withheld by it as a result of any changes after the date such Lender becomes party to this Agreement in any applicable law, treaty, governmental
rule, regulation, guideline or order, or in the interpretation thereof, relating to the deducting or withholding of income or similar Taxes.

(g)    Each Lender or Administrative Agent that is a United States person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code)
for federal income tax purposes shall deliver at the time(s) and in the manner(s) prescribed by applicable law, to the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent (as applicable), a properly completed and duly executed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 or any successor form,
certifying that such Person is exempt from United States backup withholding tax on payments made hereunder. The Borrower shall not be
obligated pursuant to Section 3.03(a) to pay additional amounts on account of or
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indemnify with respect to Taxes to the extent that such Taxes arise solely due to a Person’s failure to deliver forms that it was legally entitled to
but failed to deliver under this Section 3.03(c).

(h)    If any Lender, in its reasonable discretion, determines that it has finally and irrevocably received or been granted a refund in
respect of any Taxes as to which indemnification has been paid by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 3.03, it shall promptly remit such
refund (including any interest received in respect thereof), net of all out-of-pocket costs and expenses to the Borrower; provided, however, that
the Borrower agrees to promptly return any such refund (plus interest) to such Lender in the event such Lender is required to repay such refund
to the relevant taxing authority. Any such Lender shall provide the Borrower with a copy of any notice of assessment from the relevant taxing
authority (redacting any unrelated confidential information contained therein) requiring repayment of such refund. Nothing contained herein
shall impose an obligation on any Lender to apply for any such refund.

Section 3.04    Increased Costs to LC Issuers. If after the date an LC Issuer or Lender becomes party to this Agreement, any Change in
Law shall either (i) impose, modify or make applicable any reserve, deposit, capital adequacy, liquidity or similar requirement against Letters of
Credit issued by such LC Issuer or such Lender’s participation therein, or (ii) impose on such LC Issuer or any Lender any other conditions
affecting this Agreement, any Letter of Credit or such Lender’s participation therein; and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the
cost to such LC Issuer or such Lender of issuing, maintaining or participating in any Letter of Credit, or to reduce the amount of any sum
received or receivable by such LC Issuer or such Lender hereunder (other than any increased cost or reduction in the amount received or
receivable resulting from the imposition of or a change in the rate of taxes or similar charges), then, upon demand to the Borrower by such LC
Issuer or such Lender (a copy of which notice shall be sent by such LC Issuer or such Lender to the Administrative Agent), the Borrower shall
pay to such LC Issuer or such Lender such additional amount or amounts as will compensate any such LC Issuer or such Lender for such
increased cost or reduction. A certificate submitted to the Borrower by any affected LC Issuer or Lender, as the case may be (a copy of which
certificate shall be sent by such LC Issuer or such Lender to the Administrative Agent), setting forth, in reasonable detail, the basis for the
determination of such additional amount or amounts necessary to compensate such LC Issuer or such Lender as aforesaid shall be conclusive
and binding on the Borrower absent manifest error, although the failure to deliver any such certificate shall not release or diminish the
Borrower’s obligations to pay additional amounts pursuant to this Section 3.04.

Section 3.05    Change of Lending Office; Replacement of Lenders.

(e)    Each Lender agrees that, upon the occurrence of any event giving rise to the operation of Sections 3.01(a)(ii) or (iii), 3.01(c), 3.03
or 3.04 requiring the payment of additional amounts to the Lender, such Lender will, if requested by the Borrower, use reasonable efforts
(subject to overall policy considerations of such Lender) to designate another Applicable Lending Office for any Loans or Commitments
affected by such event; provided, however, that such designation is made on such terms that such Lender and its Applicable Lending Office
suffer no economic, legal or regulatory disadvantage, with the object of avoiding the consequence of the event giving rise to the operation of
any such Section.

(f)    If (i) any Lender requests any compensation, reimbursement or other payment under Sections 3.01(a)(ii) or (iii), 3.01(c) or 3.04
with respect to such Lender, (ii) the Borrower is required to pay any additional amount to any Lender or Governmental Authority pursuant to
Section 3.03, or (iii) any Lender is a Defaulting Lender or an Impacted Lender, then the Borrower may, at its sole expense and effort, upon
notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, require such Lender to assign and delegate, without recourse (in accordance with the
restrictions contained in Section 11.06(c)), all its interests, rights and obligations under this Agreement to an Eligible Assignee that shall
assume such obligations; provided,
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however, that (1) the Borrower shall have received the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed, (2) such Lender shall have received payment of an amount equal to the outstanding principal of its Loans,
accrued interest thereon, accrued fees and all other amounts payable to it hereunder, from the assignee (to the extent of such outstanding
principal and accrued interest and fees) or the Borrower (in the case of all other amounts, including any breakage compensation under Section
3.02), and (3) in the case of any such assignment resulting from a claim for compensation, reimbursement or other payments required to be
made under Section 3.01(a)(ii) or (iii), Section 3.01(c) or Section 3.04 with respect to such Lender, or resulting from any required payments to
any Lender or Governmental Authority pursuant to Section 3.03, such assignment will result in a reduction in such compensation,
reimbursement or payments. A Lender shall not be required to make any such assignment and delegation if, prior thereto, as a result of a waiver
by such Lender or otherwise, the circumstances entitling the Borrower to require such assignment and delegation cease to apply.

(g)    Nothing in this Section 3.05 shall affect or postpone any of the obligations of the Borrower or the right of any Lender provided in
Sections 3.01, 3.03 or 3.04.

ARTICLE IV.     

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Section 4.01    Conditions Precedent at Closing Date. The obligation of the Lenders to make Loans, and of any LC Issuer to issue
Letters of Credit, is subject to the satisfaction of each of the following conditions on or prior to the Closing Date:

(v)    Credit Agreement. This Agreement shall have been executed by the Borrower, the Subsidiary Guarantors, the
Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and each of the Lenders.

(vi)    Notes. The Borrower shall have executed and delivered to the Administrative Agent the appropriate Note or Notes for the
account of each Lender that has requested the same.

(vii)    Fees. The Borrower shall have paid (A) all fees required to be paid by it on the Closing Date described in the Fee
Letters, (B) all fees payable to the Lenders on the Closing Date agreed to by the Borrower on or prior to the Closing Date, and (C) all
reasonable fees and expenses of the Administrative Agent and of special counsel to the Administrative Agent that have been invoiced
on or prior to the Closing Date in connection with the preparation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Loan
Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

(viii)    Corporate Resolutions and Approvals. The Administrative Agent shall have received certified copies of the resolutions
of the Board of Directors of the Borrower and each Subsidiary Guarantor approving the Loan Documents to which the Borrower or any
such Subsidiary Guarantor, as the case may be, is or may become a party, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate
action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to the execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower or any such
Subsidiary Guarantor of the Loan Documents to which it is or may become a party.

(ix)    Incumbency Certificates. The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant
Secretary of the Borrower and of each Subsidiary Guarantor certifying the names and true signatures of the officers of the Borrower or
such Subsidiary Guarantor, as the case may be, authorized to sign the Loan Documents to which the Borrower or such Subsidiary
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Guarantor is a party and any other documents to which the Borrower or any such other Subsidiary Guarantor is a party that may be
executed and delivered in connection herewith.

(x)    Opinions of Counsel. The Administrative Agent shall have received such opinions of counsel from counsel to the
Borrower and the Subsidiary Guarantors as the Administrative Agent shall request, each of which shall be addressed to the
Administrative Agent and each of the Lenders and dated the Closing Date and in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the
Administrative Agent.

(xi)    Search Reports. The Administrative Agent shall have received the results of UCC and other search reports from one or
more commercial search firms reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent, listing all of the effective financing statements filed
against any Credit Party, together with copies of such financing statements.

(xii)    Corporate Charter and Good Standing Certificates. The Administrative Agent shall have received: (A) an original
certified copy of the Certificate or Articles of Incorporation or equivalent formation document of the Borrower and any and all
amendments and restatements thereof, certified as of a recent date by the relevant Secretary of State; (B) an original good standing
certificate for each Credit Party from the Secretary of State of the state of its incorporation or formation, dated as of a recent date,
listing all charter documents affecting such Credit Party and certifying as to the good standing of such Credit Party; and (C) copies of
the Certificate or Articles of Incorporation or equivalent formation document of each Credit Party and any and all amendments and
restatement thereof, certified by the Secretary (or equivalent officer) of such Credit Party.

(xiii)    Closing Certificate. The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit D,
dated the Closing Date, of an Authorized Officer of the Borrower, certifying (among other things) that, at and as of the Closing Date,
(A) both before and after giving effect to the initial Borrowings hereunder and the application of the proceeds thereof, (1) no Default or
Event of Default has occurred or is continuing and (2) all representations and warranties of the Credit Parties contained herein or in the
other Loan Documents are true and correct in all material respects (except that if any such representation or warranty contains any
materiality qualifier, such representation or warranty is true and correct in all respects); and (B) attached as Annex 1 to such certificate
is the list of Immaterial Subsidiaries (which annex shall include calculations demonstrating that such Subsidiaries comply with the
definition of “Immaterial Subsidiary” in Section 1.01).

(xiv)    Existing Indebtedness. On the Closing Date, after giving effect to the transactions contemplated herein, the Borrower
and its Subsidiaries shall have outstanding no Indebtedness other than (A) the Loans and (B) Indebtedness permitted under
Section 7.04. All other Indebtedness and agreements in respect thereof, including, without limitation, the Existing Credit Agreement,
shall be terminated and all Liens securing such Indebtedness shall be released or arrangements, to the satisfaction of the Administrative
Agent, shall have been made for such release.

(xv)    Material Agreements, etc. The Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent copies of any and all Material
Agreements not otherwise previously filed with the SEC, and the Administrative Agent shall be satisfied with such agreements.

(xvi)    Payoff Letter. A duly executed payoff letter with respect to the Existing Credit Agreement;
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(xvii)    Insurance. Certificates of insurance issued on behalf of insurers of the Borrower and the other Credit Parties, describing
in reasonable detail the types and amounts of insurance (property and liability) maintained by the Borrower and such other Credit
Parties.

(xviii)    Proceedings and Documents. All corporate and other proceedings and all documents incidental to the transactions
contemplated hereby shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders and the
Administrative Agent and its special counsel and the Lenders shall have received all such counterpart originals or certified or other
copies of such documents as the Administrative Agent or its special counsel or any Lender may reasonably request.

(xix)    Notice of Borrowing. A duly executed Notice of Borrowing for any initial Revolving Borrowing.

(xx)    Required Consents. Delivery of certified copies of all consents, approvals, authorizations, registrations, or filings
required to be made or obtained by all Credit Parties in connection with this Agreement and the proceeds of any initial Borrowings
hereunder, and such consents, approvals, authorizations, registrations, filings and orders shall be in full force and effect and all
applicable waiting periods shall have expired and no investigation or inquiry by any Governmental Authority regarding this or any
transaction being financed with the proceeds hereof shall be ongoing.

(xxi)    Financial Statements. Receipt and satisfactory review by the Lenders of the consolidated financial statements of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011, including balance sheets, income and cash flow
statements audited by independent public accountants of recognized national standing and prepared in conformity with GAAP.

(xxii)    Miscellaneous. The Credit Parties shall have provided to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders such other items
and shall have satisfied such other conditions as may be reasonably required by the Administrative Agent or the Lenders.

Section 4.02    Conditions Precedent to All Credit Events. The obligations of the Lenders, the Swing Line Lender and each LC Issuer to
make or participate in each Credit Event is subject, at the time thereof, to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(i)    Notice. The Administrative Agent (and in the case of subpart (iii) below, the applicable LC Issuer) shall have received, as
applicable, (i) a Notice of Borrowing meeting the requirements of Section 2.06(b) with respect to any Borrowing (other than a Continuation or
Conversion), (ii) a Notice of Continuation or Conversion meeting the requirements of Section 2.10(b) with respect to a Continuation or
Conversion, or (iii) an LC Request meeting the requirements of Section 2.05(b) with respect to each LC Issuance.

(j)    No Default; Representations and Warranties. At the time of each Credit Event and also after giving effect thereto, (i) there shall
exist no Default or Event of Default and (ii) all representations and warranties of the Credit Parties contained herein or in the other Loan
Documents shall be true and correct in all material respects (except that if any such representation or warranty contains any materiality
qualifier, such representation or warranty shall be true and correct in all respects) with the same effect as though such representations and
warranties had been made on and as of the date of such Credit Event, except to the extent that such representations and warranties expressly
relate to an earlier specified date, in which case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects
(except that if any
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such representation or warranty contains any materiality qualifier, such representation or warranty shall be true and correct in all respects) as of
the date when made.

(k)    No Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of the mostly recently delivered audited financial statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries pursuant to Section 6.01(a), there shall have been no change which has had or could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

In addition to other conditions precedent herein set forth, if any Lender is a Defaulting Lender or a Potential Defaulting Lender at the time of
and immediately after giving effect to such Borrowing or the issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of such Letter of Credit, as applicable,
no LC Issuer will be required to issue, amend or increase any Letter of Credit and the Swing Line Lender will not be required to make any
Swing Line Loans, unless in each case it is satisfied that all related LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of such Defaulting Lender or
Potential Defaulting Lender is fully covered or eliminated by any combination satisfactory to the LC Issuer or the Swing Line Lender, as the
case may be, of the following:

(i) in the case of a Defaulting Lender, the LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of such Defaulting Lender is reallocated,
as to outstanding and future Letters of Credit and Swing Line Exposure, to the Non-Defaulting Lenders as provided in Section
11.26(h); and

(ii) in the case of a Defaulting Lender or a Potential Defaulting Lender, without limiting the provisions of Section 11.26(h), the
Borrower Cash Collateralizes its payment and reimbursement obligations with respect to such Letter of Credit or Swing Loan in an
amount at least equal to the aggregate amount of the unreallocated obligations (contingent or otherwise) of such Defaulting Lender or
Potential Defaulting Lender in respect of such Letter of Credit or Swing Loan, or the Borrower makes other arrangements satisfactory
to the Administrative Agent, the LC Issuer and the Swing Line Lender, as the case may be, to protect them against the risk of non-
payment by such Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting Lender;

provided that (a) the sum of each Non-Defaulting Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure may not in any event exceed the Revolving
Commitment of such Non-Defaulting Lender, and (b) neither any such reallocation nor any payment by a Non-Defaulting Lender pursuant
thereto nor any such Cash Collateralization or reduction will constitute a waiver or release of any claim the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent, the LC Issuer, the Swing Line Lender or any other Lender may have against such Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting Lender, or
cause such Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting Lender to be a Non-Defaulting Lender.

The acceptance of the benefits of each Credit Event shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower to the
Administrative Agent, the Swing Line Lender, each LC Issuer and each of the Lenders that all of the applicable conditions specified in Section
4.01 and Section 4.02 have been satisfied as of the times referred to in such Sections.

Section 4.03    Conditions Precedent to Each Competitive Bid Borrowing. The obligation of each Lender that is to make a Competitive
Bid Loan on the occasion of a Competitive Bid Borrowing to make such Competitive Bid Loan as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing is
subject, at the time thereof, to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(h)    the Administrative Agent shall have received a Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing meeting the requirements of Section 2.03(b)
with respect to such Competitive Bid Borrowing;
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(i)    on or before the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, but prior to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, the Administrative Agent
shall have received a Competitive Bid Note payable to the order of such Lender for each of the one or more Competitive Bid Loans to be made
by such Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, in a principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Competitive Bid Loan to
be evidenced thereby and otherwise on such terms as were agreed to for such Competitive Bid Loan in accordance with Section 2.03; and

(j)    at the time of the making of each Competitive Bid Loan and also after giving effect thereto, (i) there shall exist no Default or Event
of Default and (ii) all representations and warranties of the Credit Parties contained herein or in the other Loan Documents shall be true and
correct in all material respects (except that if any such representation or warranty contains any materiality qualifier, such representation or
warranty shall be true and correct in all respects) with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as
of the date of such Competitive Bid Loan, except to the extent that such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier specified
date, in which case such representations and warranties shall have been true and correct in all material respects (except that if any such
representation or warranty contains any materiality qualifier, such representation or warranty shall be true and correct in all respects) as of the
date when made.

The acceptance of the benefits of each Competitive Bid Loan shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower to the
Administrative Agent, the Swing Line Lender, each LC Issuer and each of the Lenders that all of the applicable conditions specified in Section
4.01 and Section 4.03 have been satisfied as of the times referred to in such Sections.

ARTICLE V.     

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

To induce the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and each LC Issuer to enter into this Agreement and to make the Loans and to issue
and to participate in the Letters of Credit provided for herein, the Borrower and the other Credit Parties each makes the following
representations and warranties to, and agreements with, the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and each LC Issuer, all of which shall survive
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and each Credit Event:

Section 5.01    Corporate Status. Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries (other than any Immaterial Subsidiaries) (i) is a duly
organized or formed and validly existing corporation, partnership or limited liability company, as the case may be, in good standing or in full
force and effect under the laws of the jurisdiction of its formation and has the corporate, partnership or limited liability company power and
authority, as applicable, to own its property and assets and to transact the business in which it is engaged and presently proposes to engage, and
(ii) has duly qualified and is authorized to do business in all jurisdictions where it is required to be so qualified or authorized except where the
failure to be so qualified would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 5.01 lists, as of the Closing Date, each Subsidiary of the
Borrower (and the direct and indirect ownership interest of the Borrower therein), and such Schedule identifies each Subsidiary that is a
Foreign Subsidiary, Immaterial Subsidiary or a Special Subsidiary as of the Closing Date.

Section 5.02    Corporate Power and Authority. Each Credit Party has the corporate or other organizational power and authority to
execute, deliver and carry out the terms and provisions of the Loan Documents to which it is party and has taken all necessary corporate or
other organizational action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of the Loan Documents to which it is party. Each Credit Party
has duly executed and delivered each Loan Document to which it is party and each Loan Document to which it is party constitutes the legal,
valid and binding agreement and obligation of such Credit Party enforceable
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in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that the enforceability thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws generally affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles (regardless of whether
enforcement is sought in equity or at law).

Section 5.03    No Violation. Neither the execution, delivery and performance by any Credit Party of the Loan Documents to which it is
party nor compliance with the terms and provisions thereof (i) will contravene any provision of any law, statute, rule, regulation, order, writ,
injunction or decree of any Governmental Authority applicable to such Credit Party, (ii) will conflict with or result in any breach of, any of the
terms, covenants, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation or imposition of (or the obligation to create
or impose) any Lien upon any of the property or assets of such Credit Party pursuant to the terms of any promissory note, bond, debenture,
indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, credit or loan agreement, or any other Material Agreement, or (iii) will violate any provision of the
Organizational Documents of such Credit Party.

Section 5.04    Governmental Approvals. No order, consent, approval, license, authorization, or validation of, or filing, recording or
registration with, or exemption by, any Governmental Authority is required to authorize or is required as a condition to (i) the execution,
delivery and performance by any Credit Party of any Loan Document to which it is a party or any of its obligations thereunder, or (ii) the
legality, validity, binding effect or enforceability of any Loan Document to which any Credit Party is a party.

Section 5.05    Litigation. There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened with
respect to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (i) that have had, or could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect, or (ii)
that question the validity or enforceability of any of the Loan Documents, or of any action to be taken by the Borrower or any of the other
Credit Parties pursuant to any of the Loan Documents.

Section 5.06    Use of Proceeds; Margin Regulations.

(h)    The proceeds of all Loans and LC Issuances shall be utilized to refinance Indebtedness under the Existing Credit Agreement,
provide funds for Permitted Acquisitions and provide working capital and funds for general corporate purposes, in each case, not inconsistent
with the terms of this Agreement.

(i)    No part of the proceeds of any Credit Event will be used directly or indirectly to purchase or carry Margin Stock, or to extend
credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying any Margin Stock, in violation of any of the provisions of Regulations T, U or X of the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. The Borrower is not engaged in the business of extending credit for the purpose of
purchasing or carrying any Margin Stock. At no time would more than 25% of the value of the assets of the Borrower or of the Borrower and
its consolidated Subsidiaries that are subject to any “arrangement” (as such term is used in Section 221.2(g) of such Regulation U) hereunder be
represented by Margin Stock.

Section 5.07    Financial Statements.

(c)    The Borrower has furnished to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders complete and correct copies of the audited consolidated
balance sheets of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 and the related audited
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries for the fiscal year of
the Borrower then ended, accompanied by the report thereon of Grant Thornton LLP. All such financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP, consistently applied (except as stated therein), and fairly present the financial position of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as of the respective dates indicated and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the respective periods
indicated, subject
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in the case of any such financial statements that are unaudited, to normal audit adjustments, none of which shall be material. The Borrower and
its Subsidiaries did not have, as of the date of the latest financial statements referred to above, and will not have as of the Closing Date after
giving effect to the incurrence of Loans or LC Issuances hereunder, any material or significant contingent liability or liability for taxes, long-
term lease or unusual forward or long-term commitment that is not reflected in the foregoing financial statements or the notes thereto in
accordance with GAAP and that in any such case is material in relation to the business, operations, properties, assets, financial or other
condition or prospects of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries.

(d)    The financial projections of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the fiscal years 2014 through 2019 prepared by the Borrower
and delivered to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders (the “Financial Projections”) were prepared on behalf of the Borrower in good faith
after taking into account historical levels of business activity of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, known trends, including general economic
trends, and all other information, assumptions and estimates considered by management of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries to be pertinent
thereto; provided, however, that no representation or warranty is made as to the impact of future general economic conditions or as to whether
the Borrower’s projected consolidated results as set forth in the Financial Projections will actually be realized, it being recognized by the
Lenders that such projections as to future events are not to be viewed as facts and that actual results for the periods covered by the Financial
Projections may differ materially from the Financial Projections. No facts are known to the Borrower as of the Closing Date which, if reflected
in the Financial Projections, would result in a material adverse change in the assets, liabilities, results of operations or cash flows reflected
therein.

Section 5.08    Solvency. The Borrower has received consideration that is the reasonable equivalent value of the obligations and
liabilities that the Borrower has incurred to the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Lenders under the Loan Documents. The
Borrower now has capital sufficient to carry on its business and transactions and all business and transactions in which it is about to engage and
is now solvent and able to pay its debts as they mature and the Borrower, as of the Closing Date, owns property having a value, both at fair
valuation and at present fair salable value, greater than the amount required to pay the Borrower’s debts; and the Borrower is not entering into
the Loan Documents with the intent to hinder, delay or defraud its creditors.

Section 5.09    No Material Adverse Change. Since December 31, 2013, there has been no change in the financial condition, business or
operations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, except for changes none of which, individually or in the aggregate, has had or
could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.10    Tax Returns and Payments. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has filed all federal income tax returns and all
other tax returns, domestic and foreign, required to be filed by it and has paid all material taxes and assessments payable by it that have become
due, other than those not yet delinquent and except for those contested in good faith. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has established
on its books such charges, accruals and reserves in respect of taxes, assessments, fees and other governmental charges for all fiscal periods as
are required by GAAP.

Section 5.11    Title to Properties, etc. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has good and marketable title, in the case of Real
Property, and good title (or valid Leaseholds, in the case of any leased property), in the case of all other property, to all properties and assets
necessary to the conduct of its respective business free and clear of Liens other than Permitted Liens.
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Section 5.12    Lawful Operations, etc. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries: (i) hold all necessary foreign, federal, state, local and
other governmental licenses, registrations, certifications, permits and authorizations necessary to conduct its business; and (ii) is in compliance
with all requirements imposed by law, regulation or rule, whether foreign, federal, state or local, that are applicable to it, its operations, or its
properties and assets, including, without limitation, applicable requirements of Environmental Laws, except, in each case, for any failure to
obtain and maintain in effect, or noncompliance that, individually or in the aggregate, could not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

Section 5.13    Environmental Matters.

(d)    The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries is in compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, except to the extent that any
such failure to comply (together with any resulting penalties, fines or forfeitures) is not reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect. All
licenses, permits, registrations or approvals required for the conduct of the business of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries under any
Environmental Law have been secured and the Borrower and its Subsidiaries are in substantial compliance therewith, except for such licenses,
permits, registrations or approvals the failure to secure or to comply therewith is not reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.
Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice, or otherwise knows, that it is in any respect in noncompliance
with, breach of or default under any applicable writ, order, judgment, injunction, or decree to which the Borrower or such Subsidiary is a party
or that would affect the ability of the Borrower or such Subsidiary to operate any Real Property and no event has occurred and is continuing
that, with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute noncompliance, breach of or default thereunder, except in each
such case, such noncompliance, breaches or defaults as are not reasonably likely to, in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect. There are
no Environmental Claims pending or, to the best knowledge of any Borrower, threatened against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any
Real Property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding is reasonably likely to have a
Material Adverse Effect. There are no facts, circumstances, conditions or occurrences on any Real Property now or at any time owned, leased
or operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or on any property adjacent to any such Real Property, that are known by the Borrower or
as to which the Borrower or any such Subsidiary has received written notice, that are reasonably likely: (i) to form the basis of an
Environmental Claim against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any Real Property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; or (ii) to
cause such Real Property to be subject to any restrictions on the ownership, occupancy, use or transferability of such Real Property under any
Environmental Law, except in each such case, such Environmental Claims or restrictions that individually or in the aggregate are not
reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(e)    Hazardous Materials have not at any time been (i) generated, used, treated or stored on, or transported to or from, any Real
Property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) Released on any such Real Property, in each case where such occurrence or event is
not in compliance with Environmental Laws and is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.14    Compliance with ERISA. Compliance by the Borrower with the provisions hereof and Credit Events contemplated
hereby will not involve any prohibited transaction within the meaning of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code. Except as set forth on Schedule
5.14, the Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries and each ERISA Affiliate (i) has fulfilled all obligations under the minimum funding standards
of ERISA and the Code with respect to each Plan that is not a Multi-Employer Plan or a Multiple Employer Plan, (ii) has satisfied all
contribution obligations in respect of each Multi-Employer Plan and each Multiple Employer Plan, (iii) is in compliance in all material respects
with all other applicable provisions of ERISA and the Code with respect to each Plan, that is not a Multi-Employer Plan or a Multiple
Employer Plan, and
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(iv) has not incurred any liability under Title IV of ERISA to the PBGC with respect to any Plan, any Multi-Employer Plan, any Multiple
Employer Plan, or any trust established thereunder. No Plan or trust created thereunder has been terminated, and there have been no Reportable
Events, with respect to any Plan or trust created thereunder or with respect to any Multi-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan, which
termination or Reportable Event will or could result in the termination of such Plan, Multi-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan give rise
to a material liability of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate in respect thereof. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14, neither the Borrower nor
any Subsidiary of the Borrower nor any ERISA Affiliate is at the date hereof, or has been at any time within the five years preceding the date
hereof, an employer required to contribute to any Multi-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan, or a “contributing sponsor” (as such term is
defined in Section 4001 of ERISA) in any Multi-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan. Neither the Borrower nor any Subsidiary of the
Borrower nor any ERISA Affiliate has any contingent liability with respect to any post-retirement “welfare benefit plan” (as such term is
defined in ERISA) except as has been disclosed to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders in writing.

Section 5.15    Intellectual Property, etc. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries has obtained or has the right to use all material
patents, trademarks, service marks, trade names, copyrights, licenses and other rights with respect to the foregoing necessary for the present and
planned future conduct of its business, without any known conflict with the rights of others, except for such patents, trademarks, service marks,
trade names, copyrights, licenses and rights, the loss of which, and such conflicts which, in any such case individually or in the aggregate could
not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.16    Investment Company Act, etc. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to regulation with respect to
the creation or incurrence of Indebtedness under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, the Interstate Commerce Act, as amended,
the Federal Power Act, as amended, or any applicable state public utility law.

Section 5.17    Insurance. The Borrower and each of its Subsidiaries maintains insurance coverage by such insurers and in such forms
and amounts and against such risks as are generally consistent with industry standards and in each case in compliance with the terms of Section
6.03.

Section 5.18    True and Complete Disclosure. All factual information (taken as a whole) furnished by or on behalf of the Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries in writing to the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with this Agreement, other than the Financial
Projections (as to which representations are made only as provided in Section 5.07(b)), is true and accurate in all material respects on the date
as of which such information is dated or certified and not incomplete by omitting to state any material fact necessary to make such information
(taken as a whole) not misleading at such time in light of the circumstances under which such information was provided, except that any such
future information consisting of financial projections prepared by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is only represented herein as being
based on good faith estimates and assumptions believed by such persons to be reasonable at the time made, it being recognized by the Lenders
that such projections as to future events are not to be viewed as facts and that actual results during the period or periods covered by any such
projections may differ materially from the projected results.

Section 5.19    Defaults. No Default or Event of Default exists as of the Closing Date hereunder, nor will any Default or Event of
Default begin to exist immediately after the execution and delivery hereof.

Section 5.20    OFAC; Patriot Act.
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(a)    Neither any Credit Party nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates (i) is a Sanctioned Person, (ii) has any of its assets in Sanctioned
Countries, or (iii) derives any of its operating income from investments in, or transactions with, Sanctioned Persons or Sanctioned Countries.
No part of the proceeds of any Loans hereunder and no LC Issuances will be used directly or indirectly to fund any operations in, finance any
investments or activities in or make any payments to a Sanctioned Person or a Sanctioned Country or for any payments to any governmental
official or employee, political party, official of a political party, candidate for political office, or anyone else acting in an official capacity, in
order to obtain, retain or direct business or obtain any improper advantage, in violation of the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of
1977, as amended and in effect from time to time. The Borrower has implemented and maintains in effect policies and procedures designed to
ensure compliance by the Borrower, its Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents with laws, rules, and
regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to the Borrower and its affiliated companies from time to time concerning or relating to bribery or
corruption, and the Borrower, its Subsidiaries and their respective officers and employees and to the knowledge of the Borrower its directors
and agents, are in compliance in all material respects with such laws, rules, and regulations.

(b)    Neither any Credit Party nor any of its Subsidiaries is an “enemy” or an “ally of the enemy” within the meaning of Section 2 of
the Trading with the Enemy Act or any enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto. Neither any Credit Party nor any or its
Subsidiaries is in violation of (a) the Trading with the Enemy Act, (b) any of the foreign assets control regulations of the United States Treasury
Department (31 C.F.R., Subtitle B, Chapter V, as amended) or any enabling legislation or executive order relating thereto or (c) the USA Patriot
Act. None of the Credit Parties (i) is a blocked person described in Section 1 of the Anti-Terrorism Order or (ii) to the best of its knowledge,
engages in any dealings or transactions, or is otherwise associated, with any such blocked person.

Section 5.21    Indebtedness Agreements and Liens.

(a)    A complete and correct list, as of the date of this Agreement, of each credit agreement, loan agreement, indenture, purchase
agreement, guarantee, letter of credit or other arrangement providing for or otherwise relating to any Indebtedness or any extension of credit (or
commitment for any extension of credit) to, or guarantee by, the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (other than any Immaterial Subsidiary)
(other than any agreements or arrangements relating to Indebtedness or extensions of credit between the Borrower and any Subsidiary or any
Subsidiary with any other Subsidiary), in each case in respect of Indebtedness not less than $1,000,000 and the aggregate principal or face
amount outstanding or that may become outstanding under each such arrangement is correctly described in Schedule 5.21(a).

(b)    A complete and correct list, as of the date of this Agreement, of each Lien securing Indebtedness in excess of $1,000,000 of any
Person and covering any property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (other than any Immaterial Subsidiary), and the aggregate
Indebtedness secured (or that may be secured) by each such Lien and the property covered by each such Lien is correctly described in
Schedule 5.21(b).

ARTICLE VI.     

AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

The Borrower and the other Credit Parties each hereby covenants and agrees that on the Closing Date and thereafter, so long as this
Agreement is in effect and until such time as the Commitments have been terminated, no Notes remain outstanding and the Loans, together
with interest, Fees and all other Obligations incurred hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, have been paid in full, as follows:
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Section 6.01    Reporting Requirements. The Borrower will furnish to the Administrative Agent and each Lender:

(k)    Annual Financial Statements. As soon as available and in any event within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year of the
Borrower, the consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at the end of such fiscal year and the related
consolidated statements of income, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for such fiscal year, in each case setting forth comparative figures
for the preceding fiscal year, all in reasonable detail and accompanied by the opinion with respect to such consolidated financial statements of
independent public accountants of recognized national standing selected by the Borrower, which opinion shall be unqualified and shall (i) state
that such accountants audited such consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, that such
accountants believe that such audit provides a reasonable basis for their opinion, and that in their opinion such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Borrower and its consolidated subsidiaries as at the end of such
fiscal year and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for such fiscal year in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, or (ii) contain such statements as are customarily included in unqualified reports of independent accountants in conformity with the
recommendations and requirements of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (or any successor organization); provided,
however, that the Borrower may also comply with this subpart by publishing such statements and reports on its internet website or in another
publicly accessible electronic database and giving the Administrative Agent and each Lender notice thereof.

(l)    Quarterly Financial Statements. As soon as available and in any event within 50 days after the close of each of the quarterly
accounting periods in each fiscal year of the Borrower, the unaudited consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower and its consolidated
Subsidiaries as at the end of such quarterly period and the related unaudited consolidated statements of income and of cash flows for such
quarterly period and/or for the fiscal year to date, and setting forth, in the case of such unaudited consolidated statements of income and of cash
flows, comparative figures for the related periods in the prior fiscal year, and which shall be certified on behalf of the Borrower by the Chief
Financial Officer of the Borrower, subject to changes resulting from normal year-end audit adjustments; provided, however, that the Borrower
may also comply with this subpart by publishing such statements and reports on its internet website or in another publicly accessible electronic
database and giving the Administrative Agent and each Lender notice thereof.

(m)    Officer’s Compliance Certificates. At the time of the delivery of the financial statements provided for in subparts (a) and (b)
above, a certificate (a “Compliance Certificate”), substantially in the form of Exhibit C, signed by the Chief Financial Officer or Corporate
Controller of the Borrower to the effect that (i) no Default or Event of Default exists or, if any Default or Event of Default does exist,
specifying the nature and extent thereof and the actions the Borrower has taken or proposes to take with respect thereto, and (ii) the
representations and warranties of the Credit Parties are true and correct in all material respects (except that if any such representation or
warranty contains any materiality qualifier, such representation or warranty is true and correct in all respects), except to the extent that any
relate to an earlier specified date, in which case, such representations were true and correct in all material respects (except that if any such
representation or warranty contains any materiality qualifier, such representation or warranty was true and correct in all respects) as of the date
made, which certificate shall set forth the calculations required to establish compliance with the provisions of Section 7.07.

(n)    Budgets and Forecasts. Not later than 90 days after the commencement of any fiscal year of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries,
commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014, a consolidated budget in reasonable detail for each of the four fiscal quarters of
such fiscal year, and (if and to the extent prepared by management of the Borrower) for any subsequent fiscal years, as customarily
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prepared by management for its internal use, setting forth, with appropriate discussion, the forecasted balance sheet, income statement,
operating cash flows and capital expenditures of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the period covered thereby, and the principal assumptions
upon which forecasts and budget are based.

(o)    Notices. Promptly, and in any event within three Business Days, after the Borrower obtains knowledge thereof, notice of:

(i)    the occurrence of any event that constitutes a Default or Event of Default, which notice shall specify the nature thereof, the
period of existence thereof and what action the Borrower proposes to take with respect thereto; and/or

(ii)    the commencement of, or any other material development concerning, any litigation or governmental or regulatory
proceeding pending against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or the occurrence of any other event, if the same would be
reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(p)    ERISA. As soon as possible, and in any event within 30 days after the Borrower knows or has reason to believe that any of the
events or conditions specified below with respect to any Plan or Multi-Employer Plan has occurred or exists, a statement signed by an
Authorized Officer of the Borrower setting forth details respecting such event or condition and the action, if any, that the Borrower or its
ERISA Affiliate proposes to take with respect thereto (and a copy of any report or notice required to be filed with or given to PBGC by the
Borrower or an ERISA Affiliate with respect to such event or condition):

(i)    any reportable event, as defined in Section 4043(c) of ERISA and the regulations issued thereunder, with respect to a Plan,
as to which PBGC has not by regulation waived the requirement of Section 4043(a) of ERISA that it be notified within 30 days of the
occurrence of such event (provided that a failure to meet the minimum funding standard of Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of
ERISA, including, without limitation, the failure to make on or before its due date a required installment under Section 412(m) of the
Code or Section 302(e) of ERISA, shall be a reportable event regardless of the issuance of any waivers in accordance with
Section 412(d) of the Code); and any request for a waiver under Section 412(d) of the Code for any Plan;

(ii)    the distribution under Section 4041 of ERISA of a notice of intent to terminate any Plan or any action taken by the
Borrower or an ERISA Affiliate to terminate any Plan;

(iii)    the institution by PBGC of proceedings under Section 4042 of ERISA for the termination of, or the appointment of a
trustee to administer, any Plan, or the receipt by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of a notice from a Multi-Employer Plan that such
action has been taken by PBGC with respect to such Multi-Employer Plan;

(iv)    the complete or partial withdrawal from a Multi-Employer Plan by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate that results in
liability under Section 4201 or 4204 of ERISA (including the obligation to satisfy secondary liability as a result of a purchaser default)
or the receipt by the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of notice from a Multi-Employer Plan that it is in reorganization or insolvency
pursuant to Section 4241 or 4245 of ERISA or that it intends to terminate or has terminated under Section 4041A of ERISA;

(v)    the institution of a proceeding by a fiduciary of any Multi-Employer Plan against the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate to
enforce Section 515 of ERISA, which proceeding is not dismissed within 30 days; and
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(vi)    the adoption of an amendment to any Plan that, pursuant to Section 401(a)(29) of the Code or Section 307 of ERISA,
would result in the loss of tax-exempt status of the trust of which such Plan is a part if the Borrower or an ERISA Affiliate fails to
timely provide security to the Plan in accordance with the provisions of said Sections.

(q)    SEC Reports and Registration Statements. Promptly after transmission thereof or other filing with the SEC, copies of all
registration statements (other than the exhibits thereto and any registration statement on Form S-8 or its equivalent) and all annual, quarterly or
current reports that the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries files with the SEC on Form 10-K, 10-Q or 8-K (or any successor forms); provided,
however, that the Borrower may also comply with this subpart by publishing such statements and reports on its internet website or in another
publicly accessible electronic database and giving the Administrative Agent and each Lender notice thereof.

(r)    Annual, Quarterly and Other Reports. Promptly after transmission thereof to its stockholders, copies of all annual, quarterly and
other reports and all proxy statements that the Borrower furnishes to its stockholders generally; provided, however, that the Borrower may also
comply with this subpart by publishing such statements and reports on its internet website or in another publicly accessible electronic database
and giving the Administrative Agent and each Lender notice thereof.

(s)    Auditors’ Internal Control Comment Letters, etc. Promptly upon receipt thereof, a copy of each letter or memorandum
commenting on internal accounting controls and/or accounting or financial reporting policies followed by the Borrower and/or any of its
Subsidiaries which is submitted to the Borrower by its independent accountants in connection with any annual or interim audit made by them of
the books of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

(t)    Other Notices. Promptly after the transmission or receipt thereof, as applicable, copies of all notices received or sent by the
Borrower or any Subsidiary to or from the holders of any Material Indebtedness or any trustee with respect thereto.

(u)    Immaterial Subsidiaries. At the time of the delivery of the financial statements provided for in subpart (b) above (any such date,
an “Immaterial Subsidiary Testing Date”), a certificate signed by the Chief Financial Officer or Corporate Controller of the Borrower setting
forth a list of Immaterial Subsidiaries (which certificate shall include calculations demonstrating that such Subsidiaries comply with the
definition of “Immaterial Subsidiary” in Section 1.01).

(v)    Other Information. Within 10 days after a request therefor, such other information or documents (financial or otherwise) relating
to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries as the Administrative Agent or any Lender may reasonably request from time to time.

Section 6.02    Books, Records and Inspections.

(h)     The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than any Immaterial Subsidiaries) to, (i) keep proper books of
record and account, in which full and correct entries shall be made of all financial transactions and the assets and business of the Borrower or
such Subsidiary, as the case may be, in accordance with GAAP.

(i)    The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, permit officers and designated representatives of the Administrative
Agent or any of the Lenders to visit and inspect any of the properties or assets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries in whomsoever’s possession
(but only to the extent the Borrower or such Subsidiary has the right to do so to the extent in the possession of another Person), to examine the
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books of account of the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries, and make copies thereof and take extracts therefrom, and to discuss the affairs,
finances and accounts of the Borrower and of its Subsidiaries with, and be advised as to the same by, its and their officers and independent
accountants and independent actuaries, if any, all to the extent reasonably requested in advance by the Administrative Agent or any of the
Lenders and in any event no more than one time per year during normal business hours (provided that no such restrictions shall apply when an
Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, except that any such visit or inspection must be during normal business hours).

Section 6.03    Insurance. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (i) maintain insurance coverage by such insurers
and in such forms and amounts and against such risks as are generally consistent with the insurance coverage maintained by the Borrower and
its Subsidiaries as of the Closing Date, and (ii) forthwith upon the Administrative Agent’s or any Lender’s written request, furnish to the
Administrative Agent or such Lender such information about such insurance as the Administrative Agent or such Lender may from time to time
reasonably request, which information shall be prepared in form and detail reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent or such Lender
and certified by an Authorized Officer of the Borrower.

Section 6.04    Payment of Taxes and Claims. The Borrower will pay and discharge, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to pay and
discharge, all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its income or profits, or upon any properties
belonging to it, prior to the date on which penalties attach thereto, and all lawful claims that, if unpaid, might become a Lien or charge upon
any properties of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; provided, however, that neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries shall be
required to pay any such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim that is being contested in good faith and by proper proceedings if it has
maintained adequate reserves with respect thereto in accordance with GAAP. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Borrower
will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, pay in full all of its wage obligations to its employees in accordance with the Fair Labor
Standards Act (29 U.S.C. Sections 206‑207) and any comparable provisions of applicable law.

Section 6.05    Corporate Franchises. The Borrower will do, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than any Immaterial
Subsidiaries) to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence, rights and
authority; provided, however, that nothing in this Section shall be deemed to prohibit any transaction permitted by Section 7.02.

Section 6.06    Compliance with Statutes, etc. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, comply with all applicable
statutes, regulations and orders of, and all applicable restrictions imposed by, all Governmental Authorities in respect of the conduct of its
business and the ownership of its property, other than those the noncompliance with which would not be reasonably expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

Section 6.07    Compliance with Environmental Laws. Without limitation of the covenants contained in Section 6.06:

(h)    The Borrower will comply in all material respects, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to comply in all material respects, with
all Environmental Laws applicable to its or their ownership, lease or use of all Real Property now or hereafter owned, leased or operated by the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, and will promptly pay or cause to be paid all costs and expenses incurred in connection with such
compliance, except to the extent that such compliance with Environmental Laws is being contested in good faith and by appropriate
proceedings and for which adequate reserves have been established to the
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extent required by GAAP, and an adverse outcome in such proceedings is not reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(i)    The Borrower will keep or cause to be kept, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to keep or cause to be kept, all Real Property
now or hereafter owned by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries free and clear of any Liens imposed pursuant to Environmental Laws other
than Permitted Liens.

(j)    Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries will generate, use, treat, store, Release or dispose of Hazardous Materials on any
Real Property now or hereafter owned, leased or operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or transport or arrange for transport of
Hazardous Materials to or from any such Real Property other than in compliance with applicable Environmental Laws and in the ordinary
course of business, except for such noncompliance as is not reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(k)    If required to do so under any applicable order issued under any Environmental Law by any Governmental Authority, the
Borrower will undertake, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to undertake, any clean up, removal, remedial or other action necessary to remove
and clean up any Hazardous Materials from any Real Property owned, leased or operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in
accordance with, in all material respects, the requirements of all applicable Environmental Laws and in accordance with, in all material
respects, such orders of all Governmental Authorities, except to the extent that the Borrower or such Subsidiary is contesting such order in good
faith and by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves have been established to the extent required by GAAP.

Section 6.08    Additional Subsidiary Guarantors and Foreign Pledges.

(d)    The Borrower will take such action, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to take such action, from time to time as shall be
necessary to ensure that all Subsidiaries of the Borrower (other than Foreign Subsidiaries, Immaterial Subsidiaries and Special Subsidiaries) are
Subsidiary Guarantors. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall form or acquire any new
Subsidiary (other than Foreign Subsidiaries, Immaterial Subsidiaries and Special Subsidiaries), the Borrower or the respective Subsidiary will
cause such new Subsidiary to become a “Subsidiary Guarantor” hereunder pursuant to a written instrument in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, and to deliver such proof of corporate action, incumbency of officers, opinions of counsel and other
documents as is consistent with those delivered by each Subsidiary Guarantor pursuant to Section 4.01 on the Closing Date or as the
Administrative Agent shall have reasonably requested.

(e)    If at any time the Leverage Ratio is equal to or greater than 4.00 to 1.00, then each (i) Domestic Credit Party and/or (ii) Domestic
Subsidiary that is a Special Subsidiary (other than Circor German Holdings), which creates, acquires or directly holds a Foreign Subsidiary on
or after such time shall immediately execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent a Pledge Agreement pursuant to which such Domestic
Credit Party or Special Subsidiary, as applicable, shall pledge to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Lenders, 65% of the capital
stock or other equity interests of each such Foreign Subsidiary and shall take all actions necessary to ensure that such pledge provides the
Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Lenders, with a first priority perfected Lien (including, without limitation, delivery of all
certificates that evidence such stock or other equity interests and transfer powers duly executed in blank, any registration or notarization
required under the laws of the jurisdiction of organization of any applicable Foreign Subsidiary and delivery of legal opinions, in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, by counsel that is authorized to practice law in such foreign jurisdiction,
regarding, among other things, the enforceability of such pledge under the laws of such foreign jurisdiction). In addition,
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each such Domestic Credit Party or Special Subsidiary, as applicable, shall authorize the Administrative Agent to file UCC financing
statements, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, with respect to the collateral pledged under the Pledge
Agreement that such Domestic Credit Party or Special Subsidiary has executed.

Section 6.09    Senior Debt. The Obligations shall, and the Borrower shall take all necessary action to ensure that the Obligations shall,
at all times rank at least pari passu in right of payment (to the fullest extent permitted by law) with all other senior Indebtedness of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries.

ARTICLE VII.     

NEGATIVE COVENANTS

The Borrower and the other Credit Parties each hereby covenants and agrees that on the Closing Date and thereafter, so long as this
Agreement is in effect and until such time as the Commitments have been terminated, no Notes remain outstanding and the Loans, together
with interest, Fees and all other Obligations incurred hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, have been paid in full, as follows:

Section 7.01    Changes in Business. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries will engage in any business if, as a result, the
general nature of the business, taken on a consolidated basis, which would then be engaged in by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, would be
substantially changed from the general nature of the business engaged in by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on the Closing Date.

Section 7.02    Consolidation, Merger, Acquisitions, Asset Sales, etc. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, (i)
wind up, liquidate or dissolve its affairs, (ii) enter into any transaction of merger or consolidation, (iii) make or otherwise effect any
Acquisition, (iv) make or otherwise effect any Asset Sale, or (v) agree to do any of the foregoing at any future time, except that, if no Default or
Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result therefrom, each of the following shall be permitted:

(f)    the merger, consolidation or amalgamation of (i) any Subsidiary of the Borrower with or into the Borrower, provided the Borrower
is the surviving or continuing or resulting corporation; (ii) any Immaterial Subsidiary into any other Immaterial Subsidiary, provided that if any
such Immaterial Subsidiary is a Subsidiary Guarantor, such Subsidiary Guarantor shall be the surviving or continuing or resulting Person;
(iii) any Subsidiary of the Borrower with or into any other Subsidiary (other than an Immaterial Subsidiary), provided that the surviving or
continuing or resulting Person is not a Foreign Subsidiary and is or becomes a Subsidiary Guarantor; or (iv) any Foreign Subsidiary of the
Borrower with or into any other Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower;

(g)    any Asset Sale by (i) the Borrower to any other Domestic Credit Party, (ii) any Subsidiary of the Borrower to any Domestic Credit
Party; (iii) any Domestic Credit Party (other than the Borrower) to any Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower, provided that the aggregate fair
market value of all such Asset Sales shall not at any time exceed $100,000,000; (iv) any Immaterial Subsidiary that is not a Subsidiary
Guarantor to any other Immaterial Subsidiary or any Foreign Subsidiary; or (v) any Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower to any other Foreign
Subsidiary of the Borrower;

(h)    the Borrower or any Subsidiary may make any Acquisition that is a Permitted Acquisition, provided that all of the conditions
contained in the definition of the term Permitted Acquisition are satisfied;
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(i)    the Borrower or any Subsidiary may consummate any Asset Sale of any Real Property which is not necessary to the conduct of its
respective business;

(j)    in addition to any Asset Sale permitted above, the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries may consummate any Asset Sale, provided
that (i) the consideration for each such Asset Sale represents fair value and at least 90% of such consideration consists of cash; (ii) in the case of
any Asset Sale involving consideration in excess of $50,000,000, at least five Business Days prior to the date of completion of such Asset Sale,
the Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent an officer’s certificate executed by an Authorized Officer, which certificate shall
contain (A) a description of the proposed transaction, the date such transaction is scheduled to be consummated, the estimated sale price or
other consideration for such transaction, and (B) a certification that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, or would
result from consummation of such transaction; (iii) the aggregate amount of all Asset Sales made pursuant to this clause (e) after the Closing
Date shall not exceed 25% of Total Consolidated Assets; and (iv) the aggregate amount of Asset Sales made pursuant to this clause (e) during
any fiscal year shall not exceed 15% of Total Consolidated Assets; and

(k)    any Immaterial Subsidiary may be dissolved or wound up.

Section 7.03    Liens. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any
Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets of any kind of the Borrower or any such Subsidiary whether now owned or hereafter
acquired, except:

(e)    any Standard Permitted Lien;

(f)    Liens in existence on the Closing Date that are listed in Schedule 7.03;

(g)    Liens (i) that are placed upon fixed or capital assets, acquired, constructed or improved by the Borrower or any Subsidiary,
provided that (A) such Liens only secure Indebtedness permitted by Section 7.04(c), (B) such Liens and the Indebtedness secured thereby are
incurred prior to or within 120 days after such acquisition or the completion of such construction or improvement, (C) the Indebtedness secured
thereby does not exceed 80% of the cost of acquiring, constructing or improving such fixed or capital assets; and (D) such Liens shall not apply
to any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary; or (ii) arising out of the refinancing, extension, renewal or refunding of any
Indebtedness secured by any such Liens, provided that the principal amount of such Indebtedness is not increased and such Indebtedness is not
secured by any additional assets;

(h)    any Lien granted to the Administrative Agent securing any of the Obligations or any other Indebtedness of the Credit Parties
under the Loan Documents or any Indebtedness under any Designated Hedge Agreement;

(i)    Liens on property of any Person that becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower after the Closing Date pursuant to a Permitted
Acquisition, provided that such Liens are in existence at the time such Person becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower and were not created in
anticipation thereof;

(j)    in addition to any Lien permitted above, Liens created after the Closing Date, provided that the aggregate outstanding amount of
Indebtedness secured thereby and incurred after the Closing Date shall not exceed $10,000,000 at any time; and

(k)    Liens securing Indebtedness permitted by Section 7.04(c)(i) and Liens securing Investments permitted by Section 7.05(f)(i), (ii) or
(iii) hereof.
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Section 7.04    Indebtedness. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, contract, create, incur, assume or
suffer to exist any Indebtedness of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, except:

(j)    Indebtedness incurred under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents;

(k)    the Indebtedness in existence on the Closing Date and identified in Schedule 7.04, and any refinancing, extension, renewal or
refunding of any such Indebtedness not involving an increase in the principal amount thereof;

(l)    any intercompany loans (i) made by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower to any Domestic Credit Party; (ii) made by
any Domestic Credit Party to any Foreign Subsidiary not at any time in excess of $40,000,000, in the aggregate (other than in connection with a
Permitted Foreign Subsidiary Investment), (iii) made by any Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower to any other Foreign Subsidiary of the
Borrower, or (iv) in connection with any Permitted Foreign Subsidiary Investment.

(m)    Guaranty Obligations permitted by Section 7.05 that constitute Indebtedness;

(n)    Indebtedness of any Person that becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower after the Closing Date pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition,
provided that such Indebtedness is in existence at the time such Person becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower and was not created in
anticipation thereof; and

(o)    and additional Indebtedness of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to the extent not permitted by any of the foregoing clauses
(including, without limitation, Capital Lease Obligations and other Indebtedness secured by Liens referred to in Section 7.03(c)), provided that
(i) the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all such Indebtedness does not exceed $110,000,000 at any time, (ii) no Default or Event of
Default shall exist or immediately after incurring any such Indebtedness shall begin to exist, and (iii) the Borrower shall be in compliance with
the financial covenants set forth in Section 7.07 after giving pro forma effect to the incurrence of any such Indebtedness.

Section 7.05    Investments and Guaranty Obligations. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly, (i) make or commit to make any Investment or (ii) be or become obligated under any Guaranty Obligations, except:

(e)    Investments in cash and Cash Equivalents;

(f)    any endorsement of a check or other medium of payment for deposit or collection, or any similar transaction in the normal course
of business;

(g)    to the extent not permitted by any of the other subparts in this Section, Investments existing as of the Closing Date and described
in Schedule 7.05;

(h)    any Guaranty Obligations of the Borrower or any Subsidiary in favor of the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer, the Lenders
and/or the Designated Hedge Creditors pursuant to the Loan Documents;

(i)    Investments in Interest Rate Protection Agreements;

(j)    Investments (i) of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in any Subsidiary existing as of the Closing Date, (ii) of the Borrower in
any Domestic Credit Party made after the Closing Date, (iii) of any
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Domestic Credit Party in any other Domestic Credit Party (other than the Borrower) made after the Closing Date, or (iv) Investments of any
Foreign Subsidiary in any other Subsidiary of the Borrower;

(k)    Permitted Foreign Subsidiary Investments;

(l)    intercompany loans permitted by Section 7.04(c);

(m)    the Acquisitions permitted by Section 7.02;

(n)    any Guaranty Obligation incurred by any Domestic Credit Party with respect to Indebtedness of another Domestic Credit Party
which Indebtedness is permitted by Section 7.04;

(o)    any Guaranty Obligation incurred by any Foreign Subsidiary with respect to Indebtedness of another Foreign Subsidiary; and

(p)    other Investments by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower in any other Person (other than the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries) made after the Closing Date and not permitted pursuant to the foregoing subparts, provided that (i) at the time of making any such
Investment no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, or would result therefrom, and (ii) the maximum cumulative
amount of all such Investments that are so made pursuant to this subpart and outstanding at any time shall not exceed an aggregate of
$5,000,000, taking into account the repayment of any loans or advances comprising such Investments.

Section 7.06    Restricted Payments. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, declare or make, or agree to
pay or make, directly or indirectly, any Restricted Payment, except:

(l)    the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries may declare and pay or make Capital Distributions that are payable solely in additional
shares of its common stock (or warrants, options or other rights to acquire additional shares of its common stock);

(m)    (i) any Subsidiary of the Borrower may declare and pay or make Capital Distributions to any Domestic Credit Party, and (ii) any
Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower may declare and pay or make Capital Distributions to any other Foreign Subsidiary, any Special Subsidiary
or any Domestic Credit Party; and

(n)    the Borrower may declare and pay or make Cash Dividends and may repurchase capital stock or other equity interests of the
Borrower or its Subsidiaries, provided that (i) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result therefrom.

Section 7.07    Financial Covenants.

(f)    Leverage Ratio. The Borrower will not permit at any time the Leverage Ratio to be greater than 3.50 to 1.00; provided however,
that commencing with the first fiscal quarter ending after the Closing Date, the Leverage Ratio may be up to 4.00 to 1.00 for any fiscal quarter
during which the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries has consummated a Permitted Acquisition (a “Trigger Quarter”) and for the next
succeeding fiscal quarter (or, if such Permitted Acquisition occurred after the forty-fifth (45th) day of such Trigger Quarter, the Leverage Ratio
may be up to 4.00 to 1.00 for such Trigger Quarter and the next two succeeding fiscal quarters); provided, further, that the Leverage Ratio shall
return to 3.50 to 1.00 (or lower) no later than the second fiscal quarter after such Trigger Quarter (or, if such Permitted Acquisition occurred
after the forty-
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fifth (45th) day of such Trigger Quarter, no later than the third fiscal quarter after such Trigger Quarter); provided, further, that following the
occurrence of a Trigger Quarter, no subsequent Trigger Quarter shall be permitted to occur for purposes of this Section 7.07(a) unless and until
the Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to 3.50 to 1.00 as of the end of at least one fiscal quarter following the applicable Permitted
Acquisition.

(g)    Interest Coverage Ratio. The Borrower will not permit at any time the Interest Coverage Ratio to be less than 3.00 to 1.00.

Section 7.08    Limitation on Certain Restrictive Agreements. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to,
directly or indirectly, enter into, incur or permit to exist or become effective, any “negative pledge” covenant or other agreement, restriction or
arrangement that prohibits, restricts or imposes any condition upon (a) the ability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to create, incur or suffer to
exist any Lien upon any of its property or assets as security for Indebtedness, or (b) the ability of any such Subsidiary to make Capital
Distributions or any other interest or participation in its profits owned by the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower, or pay any
Indebtedness owed to the Borrower or a Subsidiary of the Borrower, or to make loans or advances to the Borrower or any of the Borrower’s
other Subsidiaries, or transfer any of its property or assets to the Borrower or any of the Borrower’s other Subsidiaries, except for such
restrictions existing under or by reason of (i) applicable law, (ii) this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, (iii) customary provisions
restricting subletting or assignment of any lease governing a leasehold interest, (iv) customary provisions restricting assignment of any
licensing agreement entered into in the ordinary course of business, (v) customary provisions restricting the transfer or further encumbering of
assets subject to Liens permitted under Section 7.03(c), (vi) customary restrictions affecting only a Subsidiary of the Borrower under any
agreement or instrument governing any of the Indebtedness of a Subsidiary permitted pursuant to Section 7.04, (vii) restrictions affecting any
Foreign Subsidiary of the Borrower under any agreement or instrument governing any Indebtedness of such Foreign Subsidiary permitted
pursuant to Section 7.04, and customary restrictions contained in “comfort” letters and guarantees of any such Indebtedness, (viii) any
document relating to Indebtedness secured by a Lien permitted by Section 7.03, insofar as the provisions thereof limit grants of junior liens on
the assets securing such Indebtedness, and (ix) any Operating Lease or Capital Lease, insofar as the provisions thereof limit grants of a security
interest in, or other assignments of, the related leasehold interest to any other Person.

Section 7.09    Transactions with Affiliates. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, enter into any transaction or
series of transactions with any Affiliate (other than, in the case of the Borrower, any Subsidiary, and in the case of a Subsidiary, the Borrower or
another Subsidiary) other than in the ordinary course of business of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of the Borrower’s or such
Subsidiary’s business and upon fair and reasonable terms no less favorable to the Borrower or such Subsidiary than would be obtained in a
comparable arm’s-length transaction with a Person other than an Affiliate, except (i) sales of goods to an Affiliate for use or distribution outside
the United States that in the good faith judgment of the Borrower comply with any applicable legal requirements of the Code, (ii) agreements
and transactions with and payments to officers, directors and shareholders that are either (A) entered into in the ordinary course of business and
not prohibited by any of the provisions of this Agreement, or (B) entered into outside the ordinary course of business, approved by the directors
or shareholders of the Borrower, and not prohibited by any of the provisions of this Agreement or in violation of any law, rule or regulation,
and (iii) repurchases of capital stock or other equity interests of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries as permitted pursuant to Section 7.06.

Section 7.10    Plan Terminations, Minimum Funding, etc. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary of the Borrower
or ERISA Affiliate to, (i) terminate any Single-Employer Plan
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or Multiple Employer Plan so as to result in liability of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate to the PBGC in excess of, in the aggregate, the
amount that is equal to 5% of the Borrower’s Consolidated Net Worth as of the date of the then most recent financial statements furnished to
the Lenders pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, (ii) permit to exist one or more events or conditions that present a material risk of the
termination by the PBGC of any Single-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan with respect to which the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the
Borrower or ERISA Affiliate would, in the event of such termination, incur liability to the PBGC in excess of such amount in the aggregate,
(iii) fail to comply with the minimum funding standards of ERISA and the Code with respect to any Plan, or (iv) except as set forth on
Schedule 5.14, have an obligation to contribute to, or become a contributing sponsor (as such term is defined in Section 4001 of ERISA) in, any
Multi-Employer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan.

Section 7.11    Anti-Terrorism Laws. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries shall be subject to or in violation of any law,
regulation, or list of any government agency (including, without limitation, the U.S. Office of Foreign Asset Control list, Executive Order No.
13224 or the USA Patriot Act) that prohibits or limits the conduct of business with or the receiving of funds, goods or services to or for the
benefit of certain Persons specified therein or that prohibits or limits any Lender or LC Issuer from making any advance or extension of credit
to the Borrower or from otherwise conducting business with the Borrower.

Section 7.12    Material Agreements. The Borrower will not, nor will it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, consent to any modification,
supplement or waiver of any of the provisions of any Material Agreement, which modification, supplement or waiver is materially adverse to
the interests of any Lender, without the prior consent of the Administrative Agent (with the approval of the Required Lenders).

ARTICLE VIII.     

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Section 8.01    Events of Default. Any of the following specified events shall constitute an Event of Default (each an “Event of
Default”):

(l)    Payments: the Borrower shall (i) default in the payment when due (whether at maturity, on a date fixed for a scheduled repayment,
on a date on which a required prepayment is to be made, upon acceleration or otherwise) of any principal of the Loans or any reimbursement
obligation in respect of any Unreimbursed Drawing; or (ii) default, and such default shall continue for three or more days, in the payment when
due of any interest on the Loans, any Fees or any other Obligations; or

(m)    Representations, etc.: any representation, warranty or statement made by the Borrower or any other Credit Party herein or in any
other Loan Document or in any statement or certificate delivered or required to be delivered pursuant hereto or thereto shall prove to be untrue
in any material respect on the date as of which made or deemed made; or

(n)    Certain Covenants: the Borrower shall default in the due performance or observance by it of any term, covenant or agreement
contained in Sections 6.01, 6.02(b), 6.03 or 6.09 or Article VII; or

(o)    Other Covenants: any Credit Party shall default in the due performance or observance by it of any term, covenant or agreement
contained in this Agreement or any other Loan Document (other than those referred to in Section 8.01(a) or (b) or (c) above) and such default is
not remedied within 30 days after the earlier of (i) an Authorized Officer of any Credit Party obtaining knowledge of such default or (ii) the
Borrower receiving written notice of such default from the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders; or
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(p)    Cross Default Under Other Agreements: the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall (i) default in any payment with respect to
any Material Indebtedness (other than the Obligations), and such default shall continue after the applicable grace period, if any, specified in the
agreement or instrument relating to such Material Indebtedness, or (ii) default in the observance or performance of any agreement or condition
relating to any such Material Indebtedness or contained in any instrument or agreement evidencing, securing or relating thereto (and all grace
periods applicable to such observance, performance or condition shall have expired), or any other event shall occur or condition exist, the effect
of which default or other event or condition is to cause, or to permit the holder or holders of such Material Indebtedness (or a trustee or agent
on behalf of such holder or holders) to cause any such Material Indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity; or any such Material
Indebtedness of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall be declared to be due and payable, or shall be required to be prepaid (other than by
a regularly scheduled required prepayment or redemption, prior to the stated maturity thereof); or (iii) without limitation of the foregoing
clauses, default in any payment obligation under a Designated Hedge Agreement, and such default shall continue after the applicable grace
period, if any, specified in such Designated Hedge Agreement or any other agreement or instrument relating thereto; or

(q)    Invalidity of Loan Documents: any provision of any Loan Document, at any time after its execution and delivery and for any
reason other than as expressly permitted hereunder or under such Loan Document or satisfaction in full of all the Obligations, ceases to be in
full force and effect; or any Credit Party or any other Person contests in any manner the validity or enforceability of any provision of any Loan
Document; or any Credit Party denies that it has any or further liability or obligation under any Loan Document, or purports to revoke,
terminate or rescind any Loan Document; or

(r)    Judgments: (i) one or more judgments, orders or decrees shall be entered against the Borrower and/or any of its Subsidiaries
involving a liability (other than a liability covered by insurance, as to which the carrier has adequate claims paying ability and has not denied
coverage) of $30,000,000 or more in the aggregate for all such judgments, orders and decrees for the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, and any
such judgments or orders or decrees shall not have been vacated, discharged or stayed or bonded pending appeal within 30 days from the entry
thereof; or (ii) one or more judgments, orders or decrees shall be entered against the Borrower and/or any of its Subsidiaries involving a
required divestiture of any material properties, assets or business reasonably estimated to have a fair value in excess of $30,000,000 (excluding
any divestiture required as a matter of law in connection with a Permitted Acquisition), and any such judgments, orders or decrees shall not
have been vacated, discharged or stayed or bonded pending appeal within 30 days (or such longer period, not in excess of 60 days, during
which enforcement thereof, and the filing of any judgment lien, is effectively stayed or prohibited) from the entry thereof; or

(s)    Insolvency Event: any Insolvency Event shall occur with respect to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (other than an
Immaterial Subsidiary); or

(t)    ERISA: an event or condition specified in Section 6.01(f) shall occur or exist with respect to any Plan or Multiple Employer Plan
and as a result of such event or condition, together with all other such events or conditions, the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate shall incur a
liability to a Plan, a Multiple Employer Plan or PBGC (or any combination of the foregoing) that, in the reasonable determination of the
Required Lenders, would (either individually or in the aggregate) have a Material Adverse Effect; or

(u)    Environmental Claim: there shall have been asserted against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, or any predecessor in interest
of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, an Environmental Claim that in the reasonable judgment of the Required Lenders is
reasonably likely to be determined adversely to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, and the amount thereof (either individually
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or in the aggregate) is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect (insofar as such amount is payable by the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries but after deducting any portion thereof that is reasonably expected to be paid by other creditworthy Persons jointly and severally
liable therefor); or

(v)    Change of Control: if there occurs a Change of Control.

Section 8.02    Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, and at any time thereafter, if any Event of Default shall then be
continuing, the Administrative Agent shall, upon the written request of the Required Lenders, by written notice to the Borrower, take any or all
of the following actions, without prejudice to the rights of the Administrative Agent or any Lender to enforce its claims against the Borrower or
any other Credit Party in any manner permitted under applicable law:

(l)    declare the Commitments terminated, whereupon the Commitment of each Lender shall forthwith terminate immediately without
any other notice of any kind;

(m)    declare the principal of and any accrued interest in respect of all Loans, all Unreimbursed Drawings and all other Obligations
owing hereunder and/or under any other Loan Document to be, whereupon the same shall become, forthwith due and payable without
presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby waived by the Borrower;

(n)    terminate any Letter of Credit that may be terminated in accordance with its terms; or

(o)    exercise any other right or remedy available under any of the Loan Documents or applicable law;

provided that, if an Event of Default specified in Section 8.01(h) shall occur, the result that would occur upon the giving of written notice by the
Administrative Agent as specified in clauses (a) and (b) above shall occur automatically without the giving of any such notice.

Section 8.03    Application of Certain Payments and Proceeds. All payments and other amounts received by the Administrative Agent
or any Lender through the exercise of remedies hereunder or under the other Loan Documents shall, unless otherwise required by the terms of
the other Loan Documents or by applicable law, be applied as follows:

(i)    first, to the payment of that portion of the Obligations constituting fees, indemnities and expenses and other amounts
(including attorneys’ fees and amounts due under Article III) payable to the Administrative Agent in its capacity as such;

(ii)    second, to the payment of that portion of the Obligations constituting fees, indemnities and expenses (including attorneys’
fees and amounts due under Article III) payable to each Lender or each LC Issuer, ratably among them in proportion to the aggregate of
all such amounts;

(iii)    third, to the payment of that portion of the Obligations constituting accrued and unpaid interest on the Loans and
Unreimbursed Drawings with respect to Letters of Credit, ratably among the Lenders in proportion to the aggregate of all such
amounts;

(iv)    fourth, pro rata to the payment of (A) that portion of the Obligations constituting unpaid principal of the Loans and
Unreimbursed Drawings, ratably among the Lenders and each LC Issuer in proportion to the aggregate of all such amounts, and (B) the
amounts due to Designated Hedge Creditors under Designated Hedge Agreements subject to confirmation by the Administrative
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Agent that any calculations of termination or other payment obligations are being made in accordance with normal industry practice;

(v)    fifth, to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of each LC Issuer to cash collateralize the Stated Amount of outstanding
Letters of Credit;

(vi)    sixth, to the payment of all other Obligations of the Credit Parties owing under or in respect of the Loan Documents that
are then due and payable to the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer, the Swing Line Lender, and the Lenders, ratably based upon the
respective aggregate amounts of all such Obligations owing to them on such date; and

(vii)    finally, any remaining surplus after all of the Obligations have been paid in full, to the Borrower or to whomsoever shall
be lawfully entitled thereto.

ARTICLE IX.     

THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT

Section 9.01    Appointment. Each Lender hereby irrevocably designates and appoints SunTrust to act as specified herein and in the
other Loan Documents, and each such Lender hereby irrevocably authorizes SunTrust as the Administrative Agent for such Lender, to take
such action on its behalf under the provisions of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and to exercise such powers and perform such
duties as are expressly delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, together with such
other powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. The Administrative Agent agrees to act as such upon the express conditions contained in this
Article. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, the Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or
responsibilities, except those expressly set forth herein or in the other Loan Documents, nor any fiduciary relationship with any Lender or LC
Issuer, and no implied covenants, functions, responsibilities, duties, obligations or liabilities shall be read into this Agreement or otherwise exist
against the Administrative Agent. The provisions of this Article are solely for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, and no
Credit Party shall have any rights as a third-party beneficiary of any of the provisions hereof. In performing its functions and duties under this
Agreement, the Administrative Agent shall act solely as agent of the Lenders and does not assume and shall not be deemed to have assumed
any obligation or relationship of agency or trust with or for the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries.

Section 9.02    Delegation of Duties. The Administrative Agent may execute any of its duties under this Agreement or any other Loan
Document by or through agents, sub-agents or attorneys-in-fact, and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters pertaining to
such duties. The Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for the negligence or misconduct of any agents, sub-agents or attorneys-in-fact
selected by it with reasonable care except to the extent otherwise required by Section 9.03.

Section 9.03    Exculpatory Provisions. Neither the Administrative Agent nor any of its Related Parties shall be (a) liable for any action
lawfully taken or omitted to be taken by it or such Person under or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document (except for
its or such Related Parties’ own gross negligence or willful misconduct) or (b) responsible in any manner to any of the Lenders for any recitals,
statements, representations or warranties made by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective officers contained in this
Agreement, any other Loan Document or in any certificate, report, statement or other document referred to or provided for in, or received by
the Administrative Agent under or in connection with, this Agreement or any other Loan Document or for any failure of the Borrower or any
Subsidiary of the Borrower or any of their respective officers to perform its obligations hereunder or
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thereunder. The Administrative Agent shall not be under any obligation to any Lender to ascertain or to inquire as to the observance or
performance of any of the agreements contained in, or conditions of, this Agreement or any other Loan Document (other than confirming
delivery of items expressly required to be delivered to the Administrative Agent by the terms of the Loan Documents), or to inspect the
properties, books or records of the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower. The Administrative Agent shall not be responsible to any
Lender for the effectiveness, genuineness, validity, enforceability, collectibility or sufficiency of this Agreement or any Loan Document or for
any representations, warranties, recitals or statements made herein or therein or made in any written or oral statement or in any financial or
other statements, instruments, reports, certificates or any other documents in connection herewith or therewith furnished or made by the
Administrative Agent to the Lenders or by or on behalf of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to the Administrative Agent or any Lender or
be required to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance of any of the terms, conditions, provisions, covenants or agreements
contained herein or therein or as to the use of the proceeds of the Loans or of the existence or possible existence of any Default or Event of
Default.

Section 9.04    Reliance by Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely, and shall be fully protected in
relying, upon any note, writing, resolution, notice, consent, certificate, affidavit, letter, cablegram, telegram, e-mail or other electronic
transmission, facsimile transmission, telex or teletype message, statement, order or other document or conversation believed by it, in good faith,
to be genuine and correct and to have been signed, sent or made by the proper Person or Persons and upon advice and statements of legal
counsel (including, without limitation, counsel to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries), independent accountants and other experts selected
by the Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent shall be fully justified in failing or refusing to take any action under this Agreement or
any other Loan Document unless it shall first receive such advice or concurrence of the Required Lenders as it deems appropriate or it shall first
be indemnified to its satisfaction by the Lenders against any and all liability and expense that may be incurred by it by reason of taking or
continuing to take any such action. The Administrative Agent shall in all cases be fully protected in acting, or in refraining from acting, under
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents in accordance with a request of the Required Lenders or all of the Lenders, as applicable, as to
any matter that, pursuant to Section 11.12, can only be effectuated with the consent of all Required Lenders, or all applicable Lenders, as the
case may be), and such request and any action taken or failure to act pursuant thereto shall be binding upon all the Lenders.

Section 9.05    Notice of Default. The Administrative Agent shall not be deemed to have knowledge or notice of the occurrence of any
Default or Event of Default hereunder unless the Administrative Agent has received notice from a Lender or the Borrower referring to this
Agreement, describing such Default or Event of Default and stating that such notice is a “notice of default.” If the Administrative Agent
receives such a notice, the Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice thereof to the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall take such
action with respect to such Default or Event of Default as shall be reasonably directed by the Required Lenders; provided, however, that unless
and until the Administrative Agent shall have received such directions, the Administrative Agent may (but shall not be obligated to) take such
action, or refrain from taking such action, with respect to such Default or Event of Default as it shall deem advisable in the best interests of the
Lenders.

Section 9.06    Non-Reliance. Each Lender expressly acknowledges that neither the Administrative Agent nor any of its Related Parties
has made any representations or warranties to it and that no act by the Administrative Agent hereinafter taken, including, without limitation,
any review of the affairs of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, shall be deemed to constitute any representation or warranty by the
Administrative Agent to any Lender. Each Lender represents to the Administrative Agent that it has, independently and without reliance upon
the Administrative Agent, or any other Lender, and based on such
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documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own appraisal of and investigation into the business, assets, operations,
property, financial and other conditions, prospects and creditworthiness of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and made its own decision to make
its Loans hereunder and enter into this Agreement. Each Lender also represents that it will, independently and without reliance upon the
Administrative Agent, or any other Lender, and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to
make its own credit analysis, appraisals and decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement, and to make such investigation as it
deems necessary to inform itself as to the business, assets, operations, property, financial and other conditions, prospects and creditworthiness
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries. The Administrative Agent shall not have any duty or responsibility to provide any Lender with any credit
or other information concerning the business, operations, assets, property, financial and other conditions, prospects or creditworthiness of the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that may come into the possession of the Administrative Agent or any of its Related Parties.

Section 9.07    No Reliance on Administrative Agent’s Customer Identification Program. Each Lender acknowledges and agrees that
neither such Lender, nor any of its Affiliates, participants or assignees, may rely on the Administrative Agent to carry out such Lender’s,
Affiliate’s, participant’s or assignee’s customer identification program, or other obligations required or imposed under or pursuant to the USA
Patriot Act or the regulations thereunder, including the regulations contained in 31 CFR 103.121 (as hereafter amended or replaced, the “CIP
Regulations”), or any other Anti-Terrorism Law, including any programs involving any of the following items relating to or in connection with
the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, any of their respective Affiliates or agents, the Loan Documents or the transactions hereunder: (a) any
identity verification procedures, (b) any record keeping, (c) any comparisons with government lists, (d) any customer notices or (e) any other
procedures required under the CIP Regulations or such other laws.

Section 9.08    [Reserved].

Section 9.09    Indemnification. The Lenders agree to indemnify the Administrative Agent and its Related Parties, ratably according to
their pro rata share of the Aggregate Credit Facility Exposure (excluding Swing Loans), from and against any and all liabilities, obligations,
losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, reasonable expenses or disbursements of any kind whatsoever that may at any time
(including, without limitation, at any time following the payment of the Obligations) be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the
Administrative Agent or such Related Parties in any way relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any
documents contemplated by or referred to herein or the transactions contemplated hereby or any action taken or omitted to be taken by the
Administrative Agent or such Related Parties under or in connection with any of the foregoing, but only to the extent that any of the foregoing
is not paid by the Borrower; provided, however, that no Lender shall be liable to the Administrative Agent or any of its Related Parties for the
payment of any portion of such liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements to
the extent resulting solely from the Administrative Agent’s or such Related Parties’ gross negligence or willful misconduct. If any indemnity
furnished to the Administrative Agent or any such Related Parties for any purpose shall, in the opinion of the Administrative Agent, be
insufficient or become impaired, the Administrative Agent may call for additional indemnity and cease, or not commence, to do the acts
indemnified against until such additional indemnity is furnished. The agreements in this Section shall survive the payment of all Obligations.

Section 9.10    The Administrative Agent in Individual Capacity. The Administrative Agent and its Affiliates may make loans to, accept
deposits from and generally engage in any kind of business with the Borrower, its Subsidiaries and their Affiliates as though not acting as
Administrative Agent hereunder. With respect to the Loans made by it and all Obligations owing to it, the Administrative Agent shall have
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the same rights and powers under this Agreement as any Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent, and
the terms “Lender” and “Lenders” shall include the Administrative Agent in its individual capacity.

Section 9.11    Successor Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent may resign at any time upon not less than 30 days’ notice to
the Lenders, each LC Issuer and the Borrower. Upon receipt of any such notice of resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, in
consultation with the Borrower, to appoint a successor. If no such successor shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and shall
have accepted such appointment within 30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent gives notice of its resignation, then the retiring
Administrative Agent may on behalf of the Lenders and each LC Issuer, appoint a successor Administrative Agent; provided, however, that if
the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders that no such successor is willing to accept such appointment, then such
resignation shall nonetheless become effective in accordance with such notice and (i) the retiring Administrative Agent shall be discharged
from its duties and obligations hereunder and under the other Loan Documents (except that in the case of any collateral security held by the
Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders or any LC Issuer under any of the Loan Documents, the retiring Administrative Agent shall
continue to hold such collateral security until such time as a successor Administrative Agent is appointed) and (ii) all payments,
communications and determinations provided to be made by, to or through the Administrative Agent shall instead be made by or to each Lender
and LC Issuer directly, until such time as the Required Lenders appoint a successor Administrative Agent as provided for above in this
paragraph. Upon the acceptance of a successor’s appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder, such successor shall succeed to and become
vested with all of the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the retiring (or retired) Administrative Agent, and the retiring Administrative
Agent shall be discharged from all of its duties and obligations hereunder or under the other Loan Documents (if not already discharged
therefrom as provided above in this paragraph). The fees payable by the Borrower to a successor Administrative Agent shall be the same as
those payable to its predecessor unless otherwise agreed between the Borrower and such successor. After the retiring Administrative Agent’s
resignation hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, the provisions of this Article and Section 11.02 shall continue in effect for the
benefit of such retiring Administrative Agent, its sub-agents and their respective Related Parties in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be
taken by any of them while the retiring Administrative Agent was acting as Administrative Agent.

Section 9.12    Other Agents. Any Lender identified herein as a Co-Agent, Syndication Agent, Documentation Agent, Joint-Lead
Arranger, Arranger, Joint-Bookrunner or any other corresponding title, other than “Administrative Agent,” shall have no right, power,
obligation, liability, responsibility or duty under this Agreement or any other Loan Document except those applicable to all Lenders as such.
Each Lender acknowledges that it has not relied, and will not rely, on any Lender so identified in deciding to enter into this Agreement or in
taking or not taking any action hereunder.

Section 9.13    Defaulting Agents. At any time any Lender serving as an Administrative Agent or an LC Issuer becomes a Defaulting
Lender or Impacted Lender or a Distress Event occurs with respect to such Lender (each, a “Defaulting Agent”), then, during the Default
Period, the Borrower (so long as no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing) or the Required Lenders may, but shall not be
required to, direct such Defaulting Agent to resign, and upon the direction of the Borrower (so long as no Default or Event of Default has
occurred and is continuing) or the Required Lenders, as the case may be, such Defaulting Agent shall be required to so resign and upon such
resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, in consultation with the Borrower, to appoint a successor. Such resigning Defaulting
Agent shall cooperate reasonably and in good faith to effectuate the transfer of the agency to the successor agent, including the execution and
delivery of such assignments, modifications, documents, certificates and further assurances as such successor agent may reasonably request.
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ARTICLE X.     

GUARANTY

Section 10.01    Guaranty by the Subsidiary Guarantors, etc.

(p)    Each Subsidiary Guarantor, jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees to the Administrative Agent, each
LC Issuer, the Lenders, and each Designated Hedge Creditor, as applicable, the full and prompt payment when due (whether at the stated
maturity, by acceleration or otherwise) of all of the Obligations. Such guaranty is an absolute, unconditional, present and continuing guaranty of
payment and not of collectibility and is in no way conditioned or contingent upon any attempt to collect from the Borrower or any other
Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Borrower, or any other action, occurrence or circumstance whatsoever. If an Event of Default shall occur and be
continuing hereunder or any payment default shall occur and be outstanding under any Designated Hedge Agreement, each Subsidiary
Guarantor will, immediately upon (and in any event no later than one Business Day following) its receipt of written notice from the
Administrative Agent demanding payment hereunder, pay to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Creditors, in immediately
available funds, at the Payment Office, such amount of the Obligations as the Administrative Agent shall specify in such notice.

(q)    In addition to the foregoing, each Subsidiary Guarantor, jointly and severally, unconditionally and irrevocably, guarantees to the
Creditors the payment of any and all Obligations, whether or not due or payable by the obligor thereon, upon the occurrence of an Insolvency
Event in respect of the Borrower or such other Credit Party, and unconditionally and irrevocably, jointly and severally, promises to pay the
Obligations to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Creditors, on demand, in such currency and otherwise in such manner as is
provided in the Loan Documents governing the Obligations.

(r)    As a separate, additional and continuing obligation, each Subsidiary Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably undertakes and
agrees, for the benefit of the Creditors, that, should any amounts constituting Obligations not be recoverable from the Borrower or any other
Credit Party for any reason whatsoever (including, without limitation, by reason of any provision of any Loan Document or any other
agreement or instrument executed in connection therewith being or becoming, at any time, voidable, void, unenforceable, or otherwise invalid
under any applicable law), then notwithstanding any notice or knowledge thereof by the Administrative Agent, any other Creditor, any of their
respective Affiliates, or any other Person, each Subsidiary Guarantor, jointly and severally, as sole, original and independent obligor, upon
demand by the Administrative Agent, will make payment to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Creditors, of all such obligations
not so recoverable by way of full indemnity.

(s)    All payments by each Subsidiary Guarantor under this Article X shall be made to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the
Creditors, in such currency and otherwise in such manner as is provided in the Loan Documents to which such payments relate.

Section 10.02    Subordination.

(q)    Any Indebtedness or other obligations or liabilities of the Borrower now or hereafter held by any Subsidiary Guarantor
(collectively, “Subordinated Obligations”) are hereby subordinated to the Indebtedness of the Borrower to any Creditor; and such Subordinated
Obligations of the Borrower to any Subsidiary Guarantor, if the Administrative Agent, after an Event of Default has occurred, so requests, shall
be collected, enforced and received by such Subsidiary Guarantor as trustee for the Administrative Agent and the other Creditors and be paid
over to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Creditors, on account of the Indebtedness of the Borrower owing under the Loan
Documents to the Administrative Agent
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and to the other Creditors, but without affecting or impairing in any manner the liability of such Subsidiary Guarantor under the other
provisions of this Article X. Prior to the transfer by any Subsidiary Guarantor of any note or negotiable instrument evidencing any
Subordinated Obligation of the Borrower to such Subsidiary Guarantor, such Subsidiary Guarantor shall mark such note or negotiable
instrument with a legend that the same is subject to this subordination.

(r)    If and to the extent that any Subsidiary Guarantor makes any payment to the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor or to any
other Person pursuant to or in respect of this Article X, any reimbursement or similar claim that such Subsidiary Guarantor may have against
the Borrower by reason thereof shall be subject and subordinate to the prior termination of all of the Commitments and indefeasible payment in
full of all Obligations.

Section 10.03    Subsidiary Guarantors’ Obligations Absolute. The obligations of each Subsidiary Guarantor under this Article X shall
be absolute and unconditional, shall not be subject to any counterclaim, setoff, deduction or defense based on any claim such Subsidiary
Guarantor may have against the Borrower or any other Person, including, without limitation, the Administrative Agent, any other Creditor, any
of their respective Affiliates, or any other Guarantor, and shall remain in full force and effect without regard to, and shall not be released,
suspended, abated, deferred, reduced, limited, discharged, terminated or otherwise impaired or adversely affected by any circumstance or
occurrence whatsoever, other than indefeasible payment in full of, and complete performance of, all of the Obligations, including, without
limitation:

(o)    any increase in the amount of the Obligations outstanding from time to time, including, without limitation, any increase in the
aggregate outstanding amount of the Loans and Letters of Credit above any specific maximum amount referred to in this Agreement as in effect
on the date hereof, and any increase in any interest rate, Fee or other amount applicable to any portion of the Obligations or otherwise payable
under any Loan Document;

(p)    any direction as to the application of any payment by the Borrower or by any other Person;

(q)    any incurrence of additional Obligations at any time or under any circumstances, including, without limitation, (i) during the
continuance of a Default or Event of Default, (ii) at any time when all conditions to such incurrence have not been satisfied, or (iii) in excess of
any borrowing base, sublimit or other limitations contained in this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents;

(r)    any renewal or extension of the time for payment or maturity of any of the Obligations, or any amendment or modification of, or
addition or supplement to, or deletion from, this Agreement, any other Loan Document, or any other instrument or agreement applicable to the
Borrower or any other Person, or any part thereof, or any assignment, transfer or other disposition of any thereof;

(s)    any failure of this Agreement, any other Loan Document, or any other instrument or agreement applicable to the Borrower or any
other Person, to constitute the legal, valid and binding agreement or obligation of any party thereto, enforceable in accordance with its terms, or
any irregularity in the form of any Loan Document;

(t)    any waiver, consent, extension, indulgence or other action or inaction (including, without limitation, any lack of diligence, any
failure to mitigate damages or marshal assets, or any election of remedies) under or in respect of (i) this Agreement, any other Loan Document,
or any such other instrument or agreement, or (ii) any obligation or liability of the Borrower or any other Person;
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(u)    any payment made to the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor on the Obligations that the Administrative Agent or any
other Creditor repays, returns or otherwise restores to the Borrower or any other applicable obligor pursuant to court order in any bankruptcy,
reorganization, arrangement, moratorium or other debtor relief proceeding;

(v)    any sale, exchange, release, surrender or foreclosure of, or any realization upon, or other dealing with, in any manner and in any
order, any property, rights or interests by whomsoever at any time granted, assigned, pledged or mortgaged to secure, or howsoever securing,
the Obligations, or any other liabilities or obligations (including any of those hereunder), or any portion of any thereof;

(w)    any release of any security or any guaranty by or at the direction of the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor, or any release
or discharge of, or limitation of recourse against, any Person furnishing any security or guaranty, including, without limitation, any release or
discharge of any Guarantor from this Article X;

(x)    any Insolvency Event relating to the Borrower or to any of its properties or assets;

(y)    any assignment, transfer or other disposition, in whole or in part, by the Borrower or any other Person of its interest in any of the
property, rights or interests constituting security for all or any portion of the Obligations or any other Indebtedness, liabilities or obligations;

(z)    any lack of notice to, or knowledge by, any Subsidiary Guarantor of any of the matters referred to above; or

(aa)    to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law now or hereafter in effect, any other circumstance or occurrence, whether
similar or dissimilar to any of the foregoing, that could or might constitute a defense available to, or a discharge of the obligations of, a
guarantor or other surety.

Section 10.04    Waivers. Each Subsidiary Guarantor unconditionally waives, to the maximum extent permitted under any applicable
law now or hereafter in effect, insofar as its obligations under this Article X are concerned, (a) notice of any of the matters referred to in
Section 10.03, (b) all notices required by statute, rule of law or otherwise to preserve any rights against such Subsidiary Guarantor hereunder,
including, without limitation, any demand, presentment, proof or notice of dishonor or non‑payment of any Obligation, notice of acceptance of
the Guaranty provided under this Article X, notice of the incurrence of any Obligation, notice of any failure on the part of the Borrower, any of
its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, or any other Person, to perform or comply with any term or provision of this Agreement, any other Loan
Document or any other agreement or instrument to which the Borrower or any other Person is a party, or notice of the commencement of any
proceeding against any other Person or its any of its property or assets, (c) any right to the enforcement, assertion or exercise against the
Borrower or against any other Person or any collateral of any right, power or remedy under or in respect of this Agreement, the other Loan
Documents or any other agreement or instrument, and (d) any requirement that such Guarantor be joined as a party to any proceedings against
the Borrower or any other Person for the enforcement of any term or provision of this Agreement, the other Loan Documents, or any other
agreement or instrument.

Section 10.05    Subrogation Rights. Until such time as the Obligations have been paid in full in cash and otherwise fully performed and
all of the Commitments under this Agreement have been terminated, each Subsidiary Guarantor hereby irrevocably waives all rights of
subrogation that it may at any time otherwise have as a result of this Article X (whether contractual, under Section 509 of the Bankruptcy Code,
or otherwise) to the claims of the Administrative Agent and/or the other Creditors against the Borrower, any other Guarantor or any other
guarantor of or surety for the Obligations and all contractual, statutory or

-85-



common law rights of reimbursement, contribution or indemnity from the Borrower or any other Guarantor that it may at any time otherwise
have as a result of this Article X.

Section 10.06    Separate Actions. A separate action or actions may be brought and prosecuted against any Guarantor whether or not
action is brought against any other Guarantor, any other guarantor or the Borrower, and whether or not any other Guarantor, any other guarantor
of the Borrower or the Borrower be joined in any such action or actions.

Section 10.07    Subsidiary Guarantors Familiar with Borrower’s Affairs. Each Guarantor confirms that it has made its own independent
investigation with respect to the creditworthiness of the Borrower and its other Subsidiaries and Affiliates and is not executing this Agreement
in reliance on any representation or warranty by the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor or any other Person acting on behalf of the
Administrative Agent or any other Creditor as to such creditworthiness. Each Guarantor expressly assumes all responsibilities to remain
informed of the financial condition of the Borrower and its other Subsidiaries and Affiliates and any circumstances affecting (a) the Borrower’s
or any other Subsidiary’s or Affiliate’s ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents to which it is a
party, or (b) any collateral securing, or any other guaranty for, all or any part of the Borrower’s or such other Subsidiary’s or Affiliate’s payment
and performance obligations thereunder; and each Subsidiary Guarantor further agrees that the Administrative Agent and the other Creditors
shall have no duty to advise any Subsidiary Guarantor of information known to them regarding such circumstances or the risks such Subsidiary
Guarantor undertakes in this Article X.

Section 10.08    Solvency. Each Subsidiary Guarantor represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent and each of the other
Creditors that as of the date such Guarantor has become a party to this Agreement, (i) such Subsidiary Guarantor has received consideration
that is the reasonable equivalent value of the obligations and liabilities that such Subsidiary Guarantor has incurred to the Administrative Agent
and the other Creditors under this Article X and the other Loan Documents to which such Subsidiary Guarantor is a party; (ii) such Subsidiary
Guarantor has capital sufficient to carry on its business and transactions and all business and transactions in which it is about to engage and is
solvent and able to pay its debts as they mature; (iii) such Subsidiary Guarantor owns property having a value, both at fair valuation and at
present fair salable value, greater than the amount required to pay its debts; and (iv) such Subsidiary Guarantor is not entering into the Loan
Documents to which it is a party with the intent to hinder, delay or defraud its creditors.

Section 10.09    Continuing Guaranty; Remedies Cumulative, etc. The guaranty provided under this Article X is a continuing guaranty,
all liabilities to which it applies or may apply under the terms hereof shall be conclusively presumed to have been created in reliance hereon,
and this Article X shall remain in full force and effect until terminated as provided in Section 10.18. No failure or delay on the part of the
Administrative Agent or any other Creditor in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any
single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other
right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein expressly specified are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies that the
Administrative Agent or any other Creditor would otherwise have. No notice to or demand on any Guarantor in any case shall entitle such
Guarantor to any other further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances or constitute a waiver of the rights of the Administrative
Agent or any other Creditor to any other or further action in any circumstances without notice or demand. It is not necessary for, and neither the
Administrative Agent nor any other Creditor, undertakes any obligation or duty to, inquire into the capacity or powers of the Borrower or any
of its Subsidiaries or the officers, directors, partners or agents acting or purporting to
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act on its behalf, and any indebtedness made or created in reliance upon the professed exercise of such powers shall be guaranteed hereunder.

Section 10.10    Application of Payments and Recoveries. All amounts received by the Administrative Agent pursuant to, or in
connection with the enforcement of, this Article X, together with all amounts and other rights and benefits realized by any Creditor (or to which
any Creditor may be entitled) by virtue of this Article X, shall be applied as provided in Section 8.03.

Section 10.11    Enforcement Expenses. The Guarantors hereby jointly and severally agree to pay, to the extent not paid pursuant to
Section 11.01, all out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent and each other Creditor in connection with the enforcement of
this Article X and any amendment, waiver or consent relating hereto (including, without limitation, the fees and disbursements of a single
counsel employed by the Administrative Agent and the other Creditors for each applicable jurisdiction, unless such counsel has a conflict of
interest prohibiting it from representing one or more of the Creditors, in which case the fees and disbursements of separate counsel for such
Creditors shall also be paid by the Guarantors as aforesaid).

Section 10.12    Right of Setoff. In addition to any rights now or hereafter granted under applicable law and not by way of limitation of
any such rights, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default after any applicable notice and grace period, each
Creditor is hereby authorized at any time or from time to time, without notice to any Subsidiary Guarantor or to any other Person, any such
notice being expressly waived, to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law now or hereafter in effect, to set off and to appropriate and
apply any and all deposits (general or special) and any other indebtedness at any time held or owing by such Creditor to or for the credit or the
account of such Subsidiary Guarantor, against and on account of the obligations and liabilities of such Subsidiary Guarantor to such Creditor
under this Article X, irrespective of whether or not the Administrative Agent or such Creditor shall have made any demand hereunder and
although said obligations, liabilities, deposits or claims, or any of them, shall be contingent or unmatured. Each Creditor agrees to promptly
notify the relevant Subsidiary Guarantor after any such set off and application, provided, however, that the failure to give such notice shall not
affect the validity of such set off and application.

Section 10.13    Reinstatement. If a claim is ever made upon the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor for recission, repayment,
recovery or restoration of any amount or amounts received by the Administrative Agent or any other Creditor in payment or on account of any
of the Obligations and any of the aforesaid payees repays all or part of said amount by reason of (a) any judgment, decree or order of any court
or administrative body having jurisdiction over such payee or any of its property, or (b) any settlement or compromise of any such claim
effected by such payee with any such claimant, then and in such event (i) any such judgment, decree, order, settlement or compromise shall be
binding upon each Subsidiary Guarantor, notwithstanding any revocation hereof or other instrument evidencing any liability of the Borrower,
(ii) each Subsidiary Guarantor shall be and remain liable to the aforesaid payees hereunder for the amount so repaid or otherwise recovered or
restored to the same extent as if such amount had never originally been received by any such payee, and (iii) this Article X shall continue to be
effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, all as if such repayment or other recovery had not occurred.

Section 10.14    Sale of Capital Stock of a Guarantor. If all of the capital stock of one or more Subsidiary Guarantors is sold or
otherwise disposed of or liquidated in compliance with the requirements of Section 7.02 (or such sale or other disposition has been approved in
writing by the Required Lenders (or all Lenders, as applicable, if required by Section 11.12)) and the proceeds of such sale, disposition or
liquidation are applied, to the extent applicable, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, such
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Subsidiary Guarantor shall, in accordance with Section 11.12, be released from this Article X and this Article X shall, as to each such
Subsidiary Guarantor or Subsidiary Guarantors, terminate, and have no further force or effect.

Section 10.15    Contribution Among Guarantors. Each Subsidiary Guarantor, in addition to the subrogation rights it shall have against
the Borrower under applicable law as a result of any payment it makes hereunder, shall also have a right of contribution against all other
Subsidiary Guarantors in respect of any such payment pro rata among the same based on their respective net fair value as enterprises, provided
any such right of contribution shall be subject and subordinate to the prior payment in full of the Obligations (and such Subsidiary Guarantor’s
obligations in respect thereof).

Section 10.16    Full Recourse Obligations; Effect of Fraudulent Transfer Laws, etc. It is the desire and intent of each Subsidiary
Guarantor, the Administrative Agent and the other Creditors that this Article X shall be enforced as a full recourse obligation of each
Subsidiary Guarantor to the fullest extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is
sought. If and to the extent that the obligations of any Subsidiary Guarantor under this Article X would, in the absence of this sentence, be
adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable because of any applicable state or federal law relating to fraudulent conveyances or transfers, then
the amount of such Subsidiary Guarantor’s liability hereunder in respect of the Obligations shall be deemed to be reduced ab initio to that
maximum amount that would be permitted without causing such Subsidiary Guarantor’s obligations hereunder to be so invalidated.

Section 10.17    Payments Free and Clear of Setoffs, Counterclaims and Taxes, etc.

(a)    All payments made by any Subsidiary Guarantor hereunder will be made without setoff, counterclaim or other defense and, except
as provided for in this Section 10.17, all such payments will be made free and clear of, and without deduction or withholding for, any present or
future Taxes. If any Taxes are so levied or imposed, the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor agrees to pay the full amount of such Taxes and such
additional amounts as may be necessary so that every payment by it of all amounts due hereunder, after withholding or deduction for or on
account of any Taxes will not be less than the amount provided for herein. The applicable Subsidiary Guarantor will furnish to the
Administrative Agent within 45 days after the date the payment of any Taxes, or any withholding or deduction on account thereof, is due
pursuant to applicable law certified copies of tax receipts, or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the applicable Creditor, evidencing such
payment by the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor. Each applicable Subsidiary Guarantor will indemnify and hold harmless the Administrative
Agent and each Creditor, and reimburse the Administrative Agent or such Creditor upon its written request, for the amount of any Taxes so
levied or imposed on and paid or withheld by such Creditor in respect of payments by the applicable Subsidiary Guarantor hereunder.

(b)    Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 10.17, (i) any applicable Subsidiary Guarantor shall be entitled,
to the extent it is required to do so by law, to deduct or withhold income or other similar taxes imposed by the United States (or any political
subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein) from any amounts payable hereunder for the account of any Creditor that is not a United
States Person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code) for United States federal income tax purposes and that has not
provided to the Borrower such forms that establish a complete exemption from such deduction or withholding; and (ii) any applicable
Subsidiary Guarantor shall not be obligated pursuant to this Section 10.17 hereof to gross-up payments to be made to a Creditor in respect of
income or similar taxes imposed by the United States or any additional amounts with respect thereto if such Creditor has not provided to the
Borrower such forms.
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Section 10.18    Termination. After the termination of all of the Commitments, when no LC Outstandings exist and when all Loans and
other Obligations (other than unasserted indemnity obligations) have been paid in full, this guaranty provided under this Article X will
terminate and the Administrative Agent, at the request and expense of the Borrower and/or any of the Subsidiary Guarantors, will execute and
deliver to the Subsidiary Guarantors an instrument or instruments acknowledging such termination.

Section 10.19    Enforcement Only by Administrative Agent. The Creditors agree that the guaranty provided under this Article X may
be enforced only by the action of the Administrative Agent, acting upon the instructions of the Required Lenders, and that no Creditor shall
have any right individually to seek to enforce or to enforce the guaranty provided under this Article X, it being understood and agreed that such
rights and remedies may be exercised by the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Creditors, upon the terms of this Article X.

Section 10.20    Effect of Stay. If acceleration of the time for payment of any amount payable by any Subsidiary Guarantor under any of
the Obligations is stayed upon insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization of such Subsidiary Guarantor, all such amounts otherwise subject to
acceleration under the terms of any applicable agreement or instrument evidencing or relating to any of the Obligations shall nonetheless be
payable by such Subsidiary Guarantor under this Article forthwith on demand by the Administrative Agent.

ARTICLE XI.     

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.01    Payment of Expenses etc. The Borrower agrees to pay (or reimburse the Administrative Agent, the Lenders or their
Affiliates, as the case may be, for) all of the following: (i) whether or not the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated, for all
reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent in connection with the negotiation, preparation, syndication,
administration and execution and delivery of the Loan Documents and the documents and instruments referred to therein and the syndication of
the Commitments; (ii) all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders in connection with any
amendment, waiver or consent relating to any of the Loan Documents that are requested by any Credit Party; (iii) all reasonable out-of-pocket
costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and their Affiliates in connection with the enforcement of any of the Loan
Documents or the other documents and instruments referred to therein, including, without limitation,  the reasonable fees and disbursements of
any individual counsel to the Administrative Agent and any Lender (including, without limitation, allocated costs of internal counsel); and (iv)
subject to Section 3.03, any and all present and future stamp and other similar taxes with respect to the foregoing matters and save the
Administrative Agent and each of the Lenders harmless from and against any and all liabilities with respect to or resulting from any delay or
omission (other than to the extent attributable to any such indemnified Person) to pay such taxes.

Section 11.02    Indemnification. The Borrower agrees to indemnify the Administrative Agent, each Lender, and their respective
Related Parties (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) from and hold each of them harmless against any and all losses, liabilities, claims, damages or
expenses reasonably incurred by any of them as a result of, or arising out of, or in any way related to, or by reason of (i) any investigation,
litigation or other proceeding related to the entering into and/or performance of any Loan Document or the use of the proceeds of any Loans
hereunder or the consummation of any transactions contemplated in any Loan Document, other than any such investigation, litigation or
proceeding arising out of transactions solely between any of the Lenders or the Administrative Agent, transactions solely involving the
assignment by a
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Lender of all or a portion of its Loans and Commitments, or the granting of participations therein, as provided in this Agreement, or arising
solely out of any examination of a Lender by any regulatory or other Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over it, or (ii) the actual or
alleged presence of Hazardous Materials in the air, surface water or groundwater or on the surface or subsurface of any Real Property owned,
leased or operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, the Release, generation, storage, transportation, handling or disposal of
Hazardous Materials at any location, whether or not owned or operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, if the Borrower or any such
Subsidiary could have or is alleged to have any responsibility in respect thereof, the non-compliance of any Real Property owned, leased or
operated by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries with foreign, federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances (including applicable
permits thereunder) applicable thereto, or any Environmental Claim asserted against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, in respect of any
such Real Property, including, in the case of each of (i) and (ii) above, without limitation, the reasonable documented fees and disbursements of
counsel (such costs of counsel to be limited to one counsel to the Administrative Agent for each applicable jurisdiction and one single counsel
for all other Indemnitees for each applicable jurisdiction unless such counsel has a conflict of interest prohibiting it from representing one or
more of such Indemnitees, in which case the fees and disbursements of separate counsel for such Indemnitees shall also be paid by the
Borrower as aforesaid) incurred in connection with any such investigation, litigation or other proceeding (but excluding any such losses,
liabilities, claims, damages or expenses to the extent incurred by reason of the gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach of its obligations
under any Loan Document of the Person to be indemnified or of any other Indemnitee who is such Person or an Affiliate of such Person). To
the extent that the undertaking to indemnify, pay or hold harmless any Person set forth in the preceding sentence may be unenforceable because
it is violative of any law or public policy, the Borrower shall make the maximum contribution to the payment and satisfaction of each of the
indemnified liabilities that is permissible under applicable law.

Section 11.03    Right of Setoff. In addition to any rights now or hereafter granted under applicable law or otherwise, and not by way of
limitation of any such rights, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, each Lender and each LC Issuer is hereby
authorized at any time or from time to time, without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind to the Borrower or to any other
Person, any such notice being hereby expressly waived, to set off and to appropriate and apply any and all deposits (general or special) and any
other Indebtedness at any time held or owing by such Lender or such LC Issuer (including, without limitation, by branches, agencies and
Affiliates of such Lender or LC Issuer wherever located) to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower against and on account of the
Obligations and liabilities of the Borrower to such Lender or LC Issuer under this Agreement or under any of the other Loan Documents,
including, without limitation, all claims of any nature or description arising out of or connected with this Agreement or any other Loan
Document, irrespective of whether or not such Lender or LC Issuer shall have made any demand hereunder and although said Obligations,
liabilities or claims, or any of them, shall be contingent or unmatured; provided, that in the event that any Defaulting Lender shall exercise any
such right of setoff, (i) all amounts so set off shall be paid over immediately to the Administrative Agent for further application in accordance
with the provisions of Section 11.26 and, pending such payment shall be segregated by such Defaulting Lender from its other funds and
deemed held in trust for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, and (ii) the Defaulting Lender shall provide promptly to the
Administrative Agent a statement describing in reasonable detail the Obligations owing to such Defaulting Lender as to which it exercised such
right of setoff. Each Lender and LC Issuer agrees to promptly notify the Borrower after any such set off and application, provided, however,
that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such set off and application.
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Section 11.04    Equalization.

(e)    Equalization. If at any time any Lender receives any amount hereunder (whether by voluntary payment, by realization upon
security, by the exercise of the right of setoff or banker’s lien, by counterclaim or cross action, by the enforcement of any right under the Loan
Documents, or otherwise) that is applicable to the payment of the principal of, or interest on, the Loans (other than Swing Loans), LC
Participations, Swing Loan Participations or Fees (other than Fees that are intended to be paid solely to the Administrative Agent or an LC
Issuer and amounts payable to a Lender under Article III), of a sum that with respect to the related sum or sums received by other Lenders is in
a greater proportion than the total of such Obligation then owed and due to such Lender bears to the total of such Obligation then owed and due
to all of the Lenders immediately prior to such receipt, then such Lender receiving such excess payment shall purchase for cash without
recourse or warranty from the other Lenders an interest in the Obligations to such Lenders in such amount as shall result in a proportional
participation by all of the Lenders in such amount.

(f)    Recovery of Amounts. If any amount paid to any Lender pursuant to subparts (i) or (ii) above is recovered in whole or in part from
such Lender, such original purchase shall be rescinded, and the purchase price restored ratably to the extent of the recovery.

(g)    Consent of Borrower. The Borrower consents to the foregoing and agrees, to the extent it may effectively do so under applicable
law, that any Lender acquiring a participation pursuant to the foregoing arrangements may exercise against the Borrower rights of set-off and
counterclaim with respect to such participation as fully as if such Lender were a direct creditor of the Borrower in the amount of such
participation.

The provisions of this Section 11.04 shall not be construed to apply to (i) any payment made by the Borrower pursuant to and in accordance
with the express terms of this Agreement where such terms expressly provide for or contemplate non-ratable payments to a Lender or (ii) any
payment obtained by a Lender pursuant to Section 11.26 or as consideration for any assignment or participation pursuant to Section 11.06.

Section 11.05    Notices.

(f)    Generally. Except in the case of notices and other communications expressly permitted to be given by telephone (and except as
provided in subpart (c) below), all notices and other communications provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or
overnight courier service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent by facsimile as follows:

(iii)    if to the Borrower, to it at 30 Corporate Drive, Suite 200, Burlington, Massachusetts 01803, Attention: Corporate
Secretary (Facsimile No. (781) 270-1299);

(iv)    if to any other Credit Party, to it c/o the Borrower at 30 Corporate Drive, Suite 200, Burlington, Massachusetts 01803,
Attention: Corporate Secretary (Facsimile No. (781) 270-1299);

(v)    if to the Administrative Agent, to it at the Notice Office; and

(vi)    if to a Lender, to it at its address (or facsimile number) set forth next to its name on the signature pages hereto or, in the
case of any Lender that becomes a party to this Agreement by way of assignment under Section 11.06, to it at the address set forth in
the Assignment Agreement to which it is a party;
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(g)    Receipt of Notices. Notices and communications sent by hand or overnight courier service, or mailed by certified or registered
mail, shall be deemed to have been given when received; notices sent by facsimile shall be deemed to have been given when sent and receipt
has been confirmed by telephone. Notices delivered through electronic communications to the extent provided in subpart (c) below shall be
effective as provided in said subpart (c).

(h)    Electronic Communications. Notices and other communications to the Administrative Agent, an LC Issuer or any Lender
hereunder and required to be delivered pursuant to Sections 6.01(a), (b), (c), (d), (g), (h) or (i) may be delivered or furnished by electronic
communication (including e-mail and Internet or intranet web sites) pursuant to procedures approved by the Administrative Agent. The
Administrative Agent and the Borrower may, in their discretion, agree in a separate writing to accept notices and other communications to them
hereunder by electronic communications pursuant to procedures approved by it, provided that approval of such procedures may be limited to
particular notices or communications. Unless the Administrative Agent otherwise prescribes, (i) notices and other communications sent to an e-
mail address shall be deemed received upon the sender’s receipt of an acknowledgement from the intended recipient (such as return e-mail or
other written acknowledgement, but not by the “return receipt requested” function), provided that if such notice or other communication is not
sent during the normal business hours of the recipient, such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been sent at the opening of
business on the next Business Day for the recipient, and (ii) notices or communications posted to an Internet or intranet web site shall be
deemed received upon the deemed receipt by the intended recipient at its e-mail address as described in the foregoing clause (i) of notification
that such notice or communication is available and identifying the web site address therefor.

(i)    Change of Address, Etc. Any party hereto may change its address or facsimile number for notices and other communications
hereunder by notice to each of the other parties hereto in accordance with Section 11.05(a).

Section 11.06    Successors and Assigns.

(h)    Successors and Assigns Generally. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that the Borrower may not assign or transfer any of its rights or
obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of all the Lenders, provided, further, that any assignment or participation by a Lender of
any of its rights and obligations hereunder shall be effected in accordance with this Section 11.06.

(i)    Participations. Each Lender may at any time grant participations in any of its rights hereunder or under any of the Notes to an
Eligible Assignee, provided that in the case of any such participation,

(viii)    the participant shall not have any rights under this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents, including rights of
consent, approval or waiver (the participant’s rights against such Lender in respect of such participation to be those set forth in the
agreement executed by such Lender in favor of the participant relating thereto),

(ix)    such Lender’s obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, its Commitments hereunder) shall remain
unchanged,

(x)    such Lender shall remain solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such obligations,
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(xi)    such Lender shall remain the holder of the Obligations owing to it and of any Note issued to it for all purposes of this
Agreement, and

(xii)    the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, and the other Lenders shall continue to deal solely and directly with the selling
Lender in connection with such Lender’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, and all amounts payable by the Borrower
hereunder shall be determined as if such Lender had not sold such participation, except that the participant shall be entitled to the
benefits of Article III to the extent that such Lender would be entitled to such benefits if the participation had not been entered into or
sold,

and, provided further, that no Lender shall transfer, grant or sell any participation under which the participant shall have rights to approve any
amendment to or waiver of this Agreement or any other Loan Document except to the extent such amendment or waiver would (x) extend the
final scheduled maturity of the date of any of the Loans in which such participant is participating, or reduce the rate or extend the time of
payment of interest or Fees thereon (except in connection with a waiver of the applicability of any post-default increase in interest rates), or
reduce the principal amount thereof, or increase such participant’s participating interest in any Commitment over the amount thereof then in
effect (it being understood that a waiver of any Default or Event of Default shall not constitute a change in the terms of any such Commitment),
(y) release all or any substantial portion of any collateral securing the Obligations, or release any guarantor from its guaranty of any of the
Obligations, except strictly in accordance with the terms of the Loan Documents, or (z) consent to the assignment or transfer by the Borrower
of any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement.

(j)    Assignments by Lenders.

(i)    Any Lender may assign all, or if less than all, a fixed portion, of its Loans, LC Participations, Swing Loan Participations
and/or Commitments and its rights and obligations hereunder to one or more Eligible Assignees, each of which shall become a party to
this Agreement as a Lender by execution of an Assignment Agreement; provided, however, that

(A)    except in the case of (x) an assignment of the entire remaining amount of the assigning Lender’s Loans and/or
Commitments or (y) an assignment to another Lender, an Affiliate of such Lender or an Approved Fund with respect to
such Lender, the aggregate amount of the Commitment so assigned (which for this purpose includes the Loans
outstanding thereunder) shall not be less than $7,500,000 (or an integral multiple of $1,000,000 in excess thereof);

(B)    at the time of any such assignment the Lender Register shall be modified to reflect the Commitments of such new
Lender and of the existing Lenders (and no assignment shall be effective hereunder unless recorded in the Lender
Register as provided herein);

(C)    upon surrender of the old Notes, if any, upon request of the new Lender, new Notes will be issued, at the
Borrower’s expense, to such new Lender and to the assigning Lender, to the extent needed to reflect the revised
Commitments;

(D)    unless waived by the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent shall receive at the time of each such
assignment, from the assigning or assignee Lender, the payment of a non-refundable assignment fee of $1,000;
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(E)    no such assignment shall be made to any Defaulting Lender or any Impacted Lender; and

(F)    in connection with any assignment of rights and obligations of any Defaulting Lender or Impacted Lender
hereunder, no such assignment shall be effective unless and until, in addition to the other conditions thereto set forth
herein, the parties to the assignment shall make such additional payments to the Administrative Agent in an aggregate
amount sufficient, upon distribution thereof as appropriate (which may be outright payment, purchases by the assignee
of participations or subparticipations, or other compensating actions, to each of which the applicable assignees and
assignor hereby irrevocably consent), to pay and satisfy in full all Defaulted Credits and Defaulted Payments and
interest accrued thereon attributable to such Defaulting Lender or Impacted Lender, as the case may be.

(ii)    To the extent of any assignment pursuant to this subpart (c), the assigning Lender shall be relieved of its obligations
hereunder with respect to its assigned Commitments.

(iii)    At the time of each assignment pursuant to this subpart (c), to a Person that is not already a Lender hereunder, the
respective assignee Lender shall provide to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent the applicable Internal Revenue Service Forms
(and any necessary additional documentation) described in Section 3.03(b) or (c), as appropriate.

(iv)    With respect to any Lender, the transfer of any Commitment of such Lender and the rights to the principal of, and interest
on, any Loan made pursuant to such Commitment shall not be effective until such transfer is recorded on the Lender Register
maintained by the Administrative Agent, acting solely for this purpose as an agent of the Borrower, with respect to ownership of such
Commitment and Loans and prior to such recordation all amounts owing to the transferor with respect to such Commitment and Loans
shall remain owing to the transferor. The registration of assignment or transfer of all or part of any Commitments and Loans shall be
recorded by the Administrative Agent on the Lender Register only upon the acceptance by the Administrative Agent of a properly
executed and delivered Assignment Agreement pursuant to this subpart (c).

(v)    Nothing in this Section shall prevent or prohibit (A) any Lender that is a bank, trust company or other financial institution
from pledging its Notes or Loans to a Federal Reserve Bank in support of borrowings made by such Lender from such Federal Reserve
Bank, or (B) any Lender that is a trust, limited liability company, partnership or other investment company from pledging its Notes or
Loans to a trustee or agent for the benefit of holders of certificates or debt securities issued by it. No such pledge, or any assignment
pursuant to or in lieu of an enforcement of such a pledge, shall relieve the transferor Lender from its obligations hereunder.

(k)    No SEC Registration or Blue Sky Compliance. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section, no transfer or assignment of
the interests or obligations of any Lender hereunder or any grant of participation therein shall be permitted if such transfer, assignment or grant
would require the Borrower to file a registration statement with the SEC or to qualify the Loans under the “Blue Sky” laws of any State.

(l)    Representations of Lenders. Each Lender initially party to this Agreement hereby represents, and each Person that becomes a
Lender pursuant to an assignment permitted by this Section will, upon its becoming party to this Agreement, represents that it is a commercial
lender, other financial institution or other “accredited” investor (as defined in SEC Regulation D) that makes or acquires loans in the ordinary
course of its business and that it will make or acquire Loans for its own account in the ordinary course of
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such business; provided, however, that subject to the preceding Sections 11.06(b) and (c), the disposition of any promissory notes or other
evidences of or interests in Indebtedness held by such Lender shall at all times be within its exclusive control.

Section 11.07    No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. No failure or delay on the part of the Administrative Agent or any Lender in
exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any other Loan Document and no course of dealing between the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent or any Lender shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege
hereunder or under any other Loan Document preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or
privilege hereunder or thereunder. No notice to or demand on the Borrower in any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further notice
or demand in similar or other circumstances or constitute a waiver of the rights of the Administrative Agent or the Lenders to any other or
further action in any circumstances without notice or demand. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the making of a Loan or any LC
Issuance shall not be construed as a waiver of any Default or Event of Default, regardless of whether the Administrative Agent, any Lender or
any LC Issuer may have had notice or knowledge of such Default or Event of Default at the time. The rights and remedies herein expressly
provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies that the Administrative Agent or any Lender would otherwise have.

Section 11.08    Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction; Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a)    THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES
HEREUNDER AND THEREUNDER SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND BE GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE
STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES (OTHER THAN SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW
YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW). TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE BORROWER AND THE CREDIT
PARTIES EACH HEREBY UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY CLAIM TO ASSERT THAT THE LAW OF ANY
JURISDICTION OTHER THAN THE STATE OF NEW YORK GOVERNS THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE OTHER LOAN
DOCUMENTS. Any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement or any other Loan Document may be brought in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York sitting in New York City or in the United States District Court of the Southern District of New York, and, by
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Borrower and the other Credit Parties each hereby irrevocably accepts for itself and in respect of
its property, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts. The Borrower and the other Credit Parties each hereby
further irrevocably consents to the service of process out of any of the aforementioned courts in any such action or proceeding by the mailing of
copies thereof by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the Borrower or any of the Credit Parties, as applicable, at its address for
notices pursuant to Section 11.05, such service to become effective 30 days after such mailing or at such earlier time as may be provided under
applicable law. Nothing herein shall affect the right of the Administrative Agent or any Lender to serve process in any other manner permitted
by law or to commence legal proceedings or otherwise proceed against the Borrower and/or any of the Credit Parties in any other jurisdiction.

(b)    The Borrower and the other Credit Parties each hereby irrevocably waives any objection that it may now or hereafter have to the
laying of venue of any of the aforesaid actions or proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document
brought in the courts referred to in Section 11.08(a) above and hereby further irrevocably waives and agrees not to plead or claim in any such
court that any such action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.
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(c)    EACH OF THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO A TRIAL
BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT
OR ANY OF THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AMENDMENTS, WAIVERS OR
OTHER MODIFICATIONS RELATING TO ANY OF THE FOREGOING), OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY OR THEREBY. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR
ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY
WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER, AND
(B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS
AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS PARAGRAPH.

Section 11.09    Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto on
separate counterparts, including via facsimile transmission or other electronic transmission (including .PDF), each of which when so executed
and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same agreement. A set of counterparts executed by all
the parties hereto shall be lodged with the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

Section 11.10    Integration. This Agreement, the other Loan Documents and any separate letter agreements with respect to fees payable
to the Administrative Agent, for its own account and benefit and/or for the account, benefit of, and distribution to, the Lenders, constitute the
entire contract among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede any and all previous agreements and
understandings, oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof or thereof.

Section 11.11    Headings Descriptive. The headings of the several Sections and other portions of this Agreement are inserted for
convenience only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this Agreement.

Section 11.12    Amendment or Waiver.

(a)    Neither this Agreement nor any other Loan Document, nor any terms hereof or thereof, may be amended, changed, waived or
otherwise modified unless such amendment, change, waiver or other modification is in writing and signed by the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent, and the Required Lenders or by the Administrative Agent acting at the written direction of the Required Lenders; provided, however,
that

(i)    no change, waiver or other modification shall:

(A)    increase the amount of any Commitment of any Lender hereunder (other than as provided in Section 2.02(b)),
without the written consent of such Lender or increase the Total Revolving Commitment without the consent of all the
Lenders;

(B)    extend or postpone the Revolving Facility Termination Date or the maturity date provided for herein that is
applicable to any Loan of any Lender, extend or postpone the expiration date of any Letter of Credit as to which such
Lender is an LC Participant beyond the latest expiration date for a Letter of Credit provided for herein, or extend or
postpone any scheduled expiration or termination date provided for herein that is applicable to a Commitment of any
Lender (other than as provided in Section 2.16), without the written consent of such Lender;
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(C)    reduce the principal amount of any Loan made by any Lender, or reduce the rate or extend the time of payment
of, or excuse the payment of, interest thereon (other than as a result of (x) waiving the applicability of any post-default
increase in interest rates or (y) any amendment or modification of defined terms used in financial covenants), without
the written consent of such Lender;

(D)    reduce the amount of any Unreimbursed Drawing as to which any Lender is an LC Participant, or reduce the rate
or extend the time of payment of, or excuse the payment of, interest thereon (other than as a result of waiving the
applicability of any post-default increase in interest rates), without the written consent of such Lender; or

(E)    reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of, or excuse the payment of, any Fees or other amounts payable
hereunder (including, without limitation, amounts under Section 11.02) or under any other Loan Document to which
any Lender is entitled hereunder, without the written consent of such Lender; and

(ii)    no change, waiver or other modification or termination shall, without the written consent of each Lender affected thereby,

(A)    release the Borrower from any of its obligations hereunder;

(B)    release the Borrower from its guaranty obligations under Article X or release any Credit Party from the Guaranty
to which it is a party, except, in the case of a Subsidiary Guarantor, in accordance with a transaction permitted under
this Agreement;

(C)    release all or any substantial portion of any collateral securing the Obligations, except in connection with a
transaction permitted under this Agreement;

(D)    amend, modify or waive any provision of this Section 11.12, Section 8.03, or any other provision of any of the
Loan Documents pursuant to which the consent or approval of all Lenders, or a number or specified percentage or
other required grouping of Lenders or Lenders having Commitments, is by the terms of such provision explicitly
required;

(E)    reduce the percentage specified in, or otherwise modify, the definition of Required Lenders; or

(F)    consent to the assignment or transfer by the Borrower of any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement.

Any waiver or consent with respect to this Agreement given or made in accordance with this Section shall be effective only in the specific
instance and for the specific purpose for which it was given or made.

(b)    No provision of Section 2.05 or any other provision in this Agreement specifically relating to Letters of Credit may be amended
without the consent of any LC Issuer adversely affected thereby.
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(c)    No provision of Article IX may be amended without the consent of the Administrative Agent and no provision of Section 2.04
may be amended without the consent of the Swing Line Lender.

(d)    To the extent the Required Lenders (or all of the Lenders, as applicable, as shall be required by this Section) waive the provisions
of Section 7.02 with respect to the sale, transfer or other disposition of any property or assets, or any property are assets are sold, transferred or
disposed of as permitted by Section 7.02, and such property or assets includes all of the capital stock of a Subsidiary that is a party to a
Guaranty such Subsidiary shall be released from such Guaranty; and the Administrative Agent shall be authorized to take actions deemed
appropriate by it to effectuate the foregoing.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no Defaulting Lender shall have any right to approve or disapprove any amendment, waiver or
consent hereunder, except that (i) the Commitment of such Lender may not be increased or extended without the consent of such Lender and
(ii) any amendment, waiver or consent requiring the consent of all Lenders or each affected Lender that by its terms affects any Defaulting
Lender in a manner that is materially and disproportionately adverse to such Defaulting Lender compared with other affected Lenders shall
require the consent of such Defaulting Lender.

Section 11.13    Survival of Indemnities. All indemnities set forth herein including, without limitation, in Article III (subject to the
limitations set forth Section 3.01(d)), Section 9.09 or Section 11.02 shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the making
and repayment of the Obligations.

Section 11.14    Domicile of Loans. Each Lender may transfer and carry its Loans at, to or for the account of any branch office,
subsidiary or affiliate of such Lender; provided, however, that the Borrower shall not be responsible for costs arising under Section 3.01
resulting from any such transfer (other than a transfer pursuant to Section 3.05) to the extent not otherwise applicable to such Lender prior to
such transfer.

Section 11.15    Confidentiality.

(c)    Each of the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Lenders agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential
Information, except that Confidential Information may be disclosed (1) to its and its Affiliates’ directors, officers, employees and agents,
including accountants, legal counsel and other advisors (it being understood that the persons to whom such disclosure is made will be informed
of the confidential nature of such Confidential Information and instructed to keep such Confidential Information confidential), (2) to any direct
or indirect contractual counterparty in any Hedge Agreement (or to any such contractual counterparty’s professional advisor), so long as such
contractual counterparty (or such professional advisor) agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Section, (3) to the extent requested by any
regulatory authority, (4) to the extent required by applicable laws or regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal process, (5) to any other
party to this Agreement, (6) to any other creditor of any Credit Party that is a direct or intended beneficiary of any of the Loan Documents, (7)
in connection with the exercise of any remedies hereunder or under any of the other Loan Documents, or any suit, action or proceeding relating
to this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents or the enforcement of rights hereunder or thereunder, (8) subject to an agreement
containing provisions substantially the same as those of this Section, to any assignee of or participant in any of its rights or obligations under
this Agreement, (9) with the consent of the Borrower, or (10) to the extent such Confidential Information (i) becomes publicly available other
than as a result of a breach of this Section, or (ii) becomes available to the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer or any Lender on a non-
confidential basis from a source other than a Credit Party and not otherwise in violation of this Section.

(d)    As used in this Section, “Confidential Information” shall mean all information received from the Borrower relating to the
Borrower or its business, other than any such information that is available
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to the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer or any Lender on a non-confidential basis prior to disclosure by the Borrower; provided, however,
that, in the case of information received from the Borrower after the Closing Date, such information is clearly identified at the time of delivery
as confidential.

(e)    Any Person required to maintain the confidentiality of Confidential Information as provided in this Section shall be considered to
have complied with its obligation to do so if such Person has exercised the same degree of care to maintain the confidentiality of such
Confidential Information as such Person would accord to its own confidential information. The Borrower hereby agrees that the failure of the
Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer or any Lender to comply with the provisions of this Section shall not relieve the Borrower, or any other
Credit Party, of any of its obligations under this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents.

Section 11.16    Limitations on Liability of the LC Issuers. The Borrower assumes all risks of the acts or omissions of any beneficiary
or transferee of any Letter of Credit with respect to its use of such Letters of Credit. Neither any LC Issuer nor any of its officers or directors
shall be liable or responsible for: (a) the use that may be made of any Letter of Credit or any acts or omissions of any beneficiary or transferee
in connection therewith; (b) the validity, sufficiency or genuineness of documents, or of any endorsement thereon, even if such documents
should prove to be in any or all respects invalid, insufficient, fraudulent or forged; (c) payment by an LC Issuer against presentation of
documents that do not comply with the terms of a Letter of Credit, including failure of any documents to bear any reference or adequate
reference to such Letter of Credit; or (d) any other circumstances whatsoever in making or failing to make payment under any Letter of Credit,
except that the LC Obligor shall have a claim against an LC Issuer, and an LC Issuer shall be liable to such LC Obligor, to the extent of any
direct, but not consequential, damages suffered by such LC Obligor that such LC Obligor proves were caused by (i) such LC Issuer’s willful
misconduct or gross negligence in determining whether documents presented under a Letter of Credit comply with the terms of such Letter of
Credit or (ii) such LC Issuer’s willful failure to make lawful payment under any Letter of Credit after the presentation to it of documentation
strictly complying with the terms and conditions of such Letter of Credit. In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, an LC Issuer
may accept documents that appear on their face to be in order, without responsibility for further investigation.

Section 11.17    General Limitation of Liability. No claim may be made by any Credit Party, any Lender, the Administrative Agent, any
LC Issuer or any other Person against the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer, or any other Lender or the Affiliates, directors, officers,
employees, attorneys or agents of any of them for any damages other than actual compensatory damages in respect of any claim for breach of
contract or any other theory of liability arising out of or related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any of the other Loan
Documents, or any act, omission or event occurring in connection therewith; and the Borrower, each Lender, the Administrative Agent and
each LC Issuer hereby, to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law, waive, release and agree not to sue or counterclaim upon any such
claim for any special, consequential or punitive damages, whether or not accrued and whether or not known or suspected to exist in their favor.

Section 11.18    No Duty. All attorneys, accountants, appraisers, consultants and other professional persons (including the firms or other
entities on behalf of which any such Person may act) retained by the Administrative Agent or any Lender with respect to the transactions
contemplated by the Loan Documents shall have the right to act exclusively in the interest of the Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the
case may be, and shall have no duty of disclosure, duty of loyalty, duty of care, or other duty or obligation of any type or nature whatsoever to
the Borrower, to any of its Subsidiaries, or to any other Person, with respect to any matters within the scope of such representation or related to
their activities in connection with such representation. The Borrower agrees, on behalf of itself and its Subsidiaries, not to
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assert any claim or counterclaim against any such persons with regard to such matters, all such claims and counterclaims, now existing or
hereafter arising, whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseeable, being hereby waived, released and forever discharged.

Section 11.19    Lenders and Agent Not Fiduciary to Borrower, etc. The relationship among the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, on the
one hand, and the Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Lenders, on the other hand, is solely that of debtor and creditor, and the
Administrative Agent, each LC Issuer and the Lenders have no fiduciary or other special relationship with the Borrower and its Subsidiaries,
and no term or provision of any Loan Document, no course of dealing, no written or oral communication, or other action, shall be construed so
as to deem such relationship to be other than that of debtor and creditor.

Section 11.20    Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties herein shall survive the making of
Loans and all LC Issuances hereunder, the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Notes and the other documents the forms of which are
attached as Exhibits hereto, the issue and delivery of the Notes, any disposition thereof by any holder thereof, and any investigation made by
the Administrative Agent or any Lender or any other holder of any of the Notes or on its behalf. All statements contained in any certificate or
other document delivered to the Administrative Agent or any Lender or any holder of any Notes by or on behalf of the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries pursuant hereto or otherwise specifically for use in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby shall constitute
representations and warranties by the Borrower hereunder, made as of the respective dates specified therein or, if no date is specified, as of the
respective dates furnished to the Administrative Agent or any Lender.

Section 11.21    Severability. Any provision of this Agreement held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to
such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability without affecting the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof; and the invalidity of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not invalidate such
provision in any other jurisdiction. Without limiting the foregoing provisions of this Section 11.21, if and to the extent that the enforceability of
any provisions in this Agreement relating to Defaulting Lenders or Impacted Lenders shall be limited by the Bankruptcy Code, then such
provisions shall be deemed to be in effect only to the extent not so limited.

Section 11.22    Independence of Covenants. All covenants hereunder shall be given independent effect so that if a particular action,
event, condition or circumstance is not permitted by any of such covenants, the fact that it would be permitted by an exception to, or would
otherwise be within the limitations or restrictions of, another covenant, shall not avoid the occurrence of a Default or an Event of Default if
such action is taken or event, condition or circumstance exists.

Section 11.23    Interest Rate Limitation. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if at any time the interest rate applicable to
any Loan, together with all fees, charges and other amounts that are treated as interest on such Loan under applicable law (collectively, the
“Charges”), shall exceed the maximum lawful rate (the “Maximum Rate”) that may be contracted for, charged, taken, received or reserved by
the Lender holding such Loan in accordance with applicable law, the rate of interest payable in respect of such Loan hereunder, together with
all Charges payable in respect thereof, shall be limited to the Maximum Rate and, to the extent lawful, the interest and Charges that would have
been payable in respect of such Loan but were not payable as a result of the operation of this Section shall be cumulated and the interest and
Charges payable to such Lender in respect of other Loans or periods shall be increased (but not above the Maximum Rate therefor) until such
cumulated amount, together with interest thereon at the Base Rate to the date of repayment, shall have been received by such Lender.
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Section 11.24    Judgment Currency. If the Administrative Agent, on behalf of the Lenders, obtains a judgment or judgments against the
Borrower or any other Credit Party in a Designated Foreign Currency, the obligations of the Borrower or such Credit Party in respect of any
sum adjudged to be due to the Administrative Agent or the Lenders hereunder or under the Notes (the “Judgment Amount”) shall be discharged
only to the extent that, on the Business Day following receipt by the Administrative Agent of the Judgment Amount in the Designated Foreign
Currency, the Administrative Agent, in accordance with normal banking procedures, may purchase Dollars with the Judgment Amount in such
Designated Foreign Currency. If the amount of Dollars so purchased is less than the amount of Dollars that could have been purchased with the
Judgment Amount on the date or dates the Judgment Amount (excluding the portion of the Judgment Amount which has accrued as a result of
the failure of the Borrower or any other Credit Party to pay the sum originally due hereunder or under the Notes when it was originally due
hereunder or under the Notes) was originally due and owing (the “Original Due Date”) to the Administrative Agent or the Lenders hereunder or
under the Notes (the “Loss”), the Borrower and the other Credit Parties each agrees as a separate obligation and notwithstanding any such
judgment, to indemnify the Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the case may be, against the Loss, and if the amount of Dollars so
purchased exceeds the amount of Dollars that could have been purchased with the Judgment Amount on the Original Due Date, the
Administrative Agent or such Lender agrees to remit such excess to the Borrower.

Section 11.25    USA Patriot Act. Each Lender subject to the USA Patriot Act hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to the
requirements of the USA Patriot Act, it is required to obtain, verify and record information that identifies the Borrower, which information
includes the name and address of the Borrower and other information that will allow such Lender to identify the Borrower in accordance with
the USA Patriot Act.

Section 11.26    Defaulting Lenders. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, if any Lender becomes a Defaulting
Lender, then, to the extent permitted by applicable Law,

(a)    during any Default Period with respect to such Defaulting Lender, such Defaulting Lender’s right to approve or disapprove any
amendment, waiver or consent with respect to this Agreement shall be restricted as set forth in Section 11.12;

(b)    until such time as all Defaulting Credits with respect to such Defaulting Lender shall have been funded or reduced to zero, any
prepayment of the Loans shall be applied to the Loans of other Lenders as if such Defaulting Lender had no Loans outstanding;

(c)    during a Default Period with respect to such Defaulting Lender, until such time as all Defaulted Payments with respect to such
Defaulting Lender shall have been paid and such Default Period terminated, the Administrative Agent shall apply any amounts thereafter
received by the Administrative Agent for the account of such Defaulting Lender to satisfy such Defaulting Lender’s obligations to make such
Defaulted Payments until such Defaulted Payments have been fully paid;

(d)    with respect to any Defaulting Lender with one or more Defaulted Credits, such Defaulting Lender shall not be entitled to receive
any Unused Fee pursuant to Section 2.11(a) for any Default Period with respect to such Defaulting Lender (and the Borrower shall not be
required to pay any such fee that otherwise would have been required to have been paid to such Defaulting Lender);

(e)    during any Default Period with respect to any Defaulting Lender with one or more Defaulted Credits, no Letter of Credit Fees
shall be payable to such Defaulting Lender under Section 2.11(c), except in respect of Letters of Credit for which cash collateral or other credit
support has been provided by such Defaulting Lender and Letter of Credit Fees otherwise payable to a Defaulting Lender in respect of
outstanding
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Letters of Credit for which cash collateral or other credit support has not been provided by such Defaulting Lender shall be paid to the
applicable LC Issuer;

(f)    at the request of the Borrower, any Defaulting Lender may be replaced in accordance with Section 9.13;

(g)    no assignments otherwise permitted by Section 11.06 shall be made to a Defaulting Lender or any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates
that are Distressed Persons; and

(h)    during a Default Period with respect to such Defaulting Lender or during any period when a Lender shall be a Potential Defaulting
Lender:

(i)    the LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of such Defaulting Lender will, subject to the limitation in the first proviso
below, automatically be reallocated (effective on the day such Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender) among the Non-Defaulting
Lenders pro rata in accordance with their respective Revolving Commitments; provided that (a) the sum of each Non-Defaulting
Lender’s total Revolving Facility Exposure may not in any event exceed the Revolving Commitment of such Non-Defaulting Lender as
in effect at the time of such reallocation and (b) neither such reallocation nor any payment by a Non-Defaulting Lender pursuant thereto
will constitute a waiver or release of any claim the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer, the Swing Line Lender or any
other Lender may have against such Defaulting Lender or cause such Defaulting Lender to be a Non-Defaulting Lender; and

(ii)    to the extent that any portion (the “unreallocated portion”) of the LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of any
Defaulting Lender cannot be so reallocated, for any reason, or with respect to the LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of any
Potential Defaulting Lender, the Borrower will, not later than two (2) Business Days after demand by the Administrative Agent (at the
direction of any LC Issuer and/or the Swing Line Lender), (a) Cash Collateralize the obligations of the Borrower to any LC Issuer or
Swing Line Lender in respect of such LC Outstandings or Swing Line Exposure, as the case may be, in an amount at least equal to the
aggregate amount of the unreallocated portion of the LC Outstandings and Swing Line Exposure of such Defaulting Lender or such
Potential Defaulting Lender, or (b) in the case of such Swing Line Exposure, prepay and/or Cash Collateralize in full the unreallocated
portion thereof, or (c) make other arrangements satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer and the Swing Line Lender in
their sole discretion to protect them against the risk of non-payment by such Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting Lender;
provided that (a) the sum of each Non-Defaulting Lender’s Revolving Facility Exposure may not in any event exceed the Revolving
Commitment of such Non-Defaulting Lender, and (b) neither any such reallocation nor any payment by a Non-Defaulting Lender
pursuant thereto nor any such Cash Collateralization or reduction will constitute a waiver or release of any claim the Borrower, the
Administrative Agent, any LC Issuer, the Swing Line Lender or any other Lender may have against such Defaulting Lender or
Potential Defaulting Lender, or cause such Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting Lender to be a Non-Defaulting Lender.

(i)    the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the LC Issuers and the Swing Line Lender agree in writing that any Defaulting Lender
should no longer be deemed to be a Defaulting Lender or a Potential Defaulting Lender should no longer be deemed to be a Potential
Defaulting Lender, as the case may be, the Administrative Agent will so notify the parties hereto, whereupon as of the effective date specified
in such notice and subject to any conditions set forth therein, the LC Outstanding and the Swing Line Exposure of the other Lenders shall be
readjusted to reflect the inclusion of such Lender’s Revolving Commitment, and
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such Lender will purchase at par such portion of outstanding Revolving Loans of the other Lenders and/or make such other adjustments as the
Administrative Agent may determine to be necessary to cause the Revolving Facility Exposure of the Lenders to be on a pro rata basis in
accordance with their respective Revolving Commitments, whereupon such Lender will cease to be a Defaulting Lender or Potential Defaulting
Lender and will be a Non-Defaulting Lender (and such Revolving Facility Exposure of each Lender will automatically be adjusted on a
prospective basis to reflect the foregoing), and if any cash collateral has been posted with respect to such Defaulting Lender or Potential
Defaulting Lender, the Administrative Agent will promptly return such cash collateral to the Borrower; provided that no adjustments will be
made retroactively with respect to fees accrued or payments made by or on behalf of the Borrower while such Lender was a Defaulting Lender;
and provided, further, that except to the extent otherwise expressly agreed by the affected parties, no change hereunder from Defaulting Lender
or Potential Defaulting Lender to Non-Defaulting Lender will constitute a waiver or release of any claim of any party hereunder.

Section 11.27    Impacted Lenders. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, if any Lender becomes an Impacted Lender,
then, (a) to the extent permitted by applicable Law, at the request of the Borrower, such Impacted Lender may be replaced in accordance with
Section 9.13 and (b) so long as any Lender remains an Impacted Lender, the Borrower may (in its discretion) apply all or any portion to be
specified by the Borrower of any optional reduction of unused Commitments under Section 2.12(c) to the unused Commitments of such
Impacted Lender specified by the Borrower before applying any remaining reduction to all Lenders in the manner otherwise specified in
Section 2.12(c).

Section 11.28    Keepwell. Each Qualified ECP Guarantor hereby jointly and severally absolutely, unconditionally and irrevocably
undertakes to provide such funds or other support as may be needed from time to time by each other Credit Party to honor all of its obligations
under this Agreement in respect of Swap Obligations (provided, however, that each Qualified ECP Guarantor shall only be liable under this
Section for the maximum amount of such liability that can be hereby incurred without rendering its obligations under this Section, or otherwise
under this Agreement, voidable under applicable law relating to fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer, and not for any greater amount).
The obligations of each Qualified ECP Guarantor under this Section shall remain in full force and effect until this Agreement has been
terminated. Each Qualified ECP Guarantor intends that this Section constitute, and this Section shall be deemed to constitute, a “keepwell,
support, or other agreement” for the benefit of each other Credit Party for all purposes of Section 1a(18)(A)(v)(II) of the Commodity Exchange
Act.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused a counterpart of this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered as
of the date first above written.

 

BORROWER:

CIRCOR INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

 

SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS:

CIRCOR AEROSPACE, INC.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla   
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

CIRCOR ENERGY PRODUCTS, INC.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

CIRCOR GERMAN HOLDINGS, LLC

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

CIRCOR INDIA LLC

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

CIRCOR INSTRUMENTATION TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

    



 

CIRCOR IP HOLDING CO.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

CIRCOR, INC.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

DOPAK INC.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

LESLIE CONTROLS, INC.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

PATRIOT HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

 

SAGEBRUSH PIPELINE EQUIPMENT CO.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

    



 

SPENCE ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

By: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

CIRCOR ENERGY PIPELINE SERVICES, INC.

By:  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla
Name: Rajeev Bhalla
Title: Executive Vice President

    



 

LENDERS:

 

SUNTRUST BANK,
  as a Lender, LC Issuer, Swing Line Lender, and
Administrative Agent

By:  /s/ Elizabeth Tallmadge
Name: Elizabeth Tallmadge
Title: Managing Director

    



Address: Mailcode: OH-01-27-0628
               127 Public Square
                Cleveland, OH 44114
               Attn: Marcel Fournier
               Fascimile: (216) 689-0511

      

KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
  as a Lender

By: /s/ Marcel Fournier
Name: Marcel Fournier
Title: Vice President

    



Address: 45 East 53rd Street, 15th Fl.
               New York, NY 10022
               Attn: Tom Devitt
               Fascimile: (212) 297-2926

SANTANDER BANK, N.A.,
  as a Lender

By: /s/ Daniel Vilarelle
Name: Daniel Vilarelle
Title: Vice President

    



Address: 1133 Ave of Americas, 27th Fl
                New York, NY 10036
                Attn: Tim Wiegand
                Facsimile:

BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY,
  as a Lender

By:  /s/ Tim Wiegand
Name: Tim Wiegand
Title: Vice President

    



Address: 125 High Street, Oliver
               Tower, Fl 16
                Boston, MA 02110
                Attn: Mary C. Neville
                Facsimile: (617) 338-3849

HSBC BANK USA, N.A.,
  as a Lender

By:  /s/ Pablo Pena
Name: Pablo Pena
Title: Vice President

    



Address: 101 Federal St., Ste. 2020
               Boston, MA 02110
               Attn: Christopher Allen
               Fascimile: (617) 723-0647

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
  as a Lender

By:  /s/ Christopher S. Allen
Name: Christopher S. Allen
Title: Senior Vice President

    



Address: _____________________ 
   _____________________ 
   _____________________ 
   Attn:  
   Facsimile:

CITIZENS BANK N.A.,
  as a Lender

By: /s/ James Tzouvelis
Name: James Tzouvelis
Title: Senior Vice President

    



Address: Bank of America, N.A.
               100 Federal Street
                Boston, Massachusetts 02110
                Attn: Robert Megan
                Facsimile: (617) 310-2342

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
  as a Lender

By: /s/ Robert C. Megan
Name: Robert C. Megan
Title: Senior Vice President

    



Schedule 1 

Lenders and Commitments

Lender Revolving 
Commitment

Revolving Facility Percentage as of the
Closing Date

SunTrust Bank $80,000,000 20.0%

KeyBank National Association $80,000,000 20.0%

Santander Bank, N.A. $50,000,000 12.5%

Branch Banking and Trust Company $50,000,000 12.5%

HSBC Bank USA, N.A. $50,000,000 12.5%

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association $30,000,000 7.5%

Citizens Bank N.A. $30,000,000 7.5%

Bank of America, N.A. $30,000,000 7.5%

Total: $400,000,000 100.0%



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott A. Buckhout, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CIRCOR International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2014 Signature: /s/ Scott A Buckhout

  Scott A. Buckhout

  President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Rajeev Bhalla, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CIRCOR International, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2014 Signature: /s/ Rajeev Bhalla

  Rajeev Bhalla

  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officers, who are the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of CIRCOR International, Inc. (the “Company”), each hereby certifies to
the best of his knowledge, that the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q to which this certification is attached (the “Report”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that the
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

   

/s/ Scott A. Buckhout  /s/ Rajeev Bhalla

Scott A. Buckhout  Rajeev Bhalla

President and Chief Executive Officer  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Principal Executive Officer  Principal Financial Officer

   

August 1, 2014  August 1, 2014


